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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

To our shareholders

In 2020, we reported a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$140.86 million, a 33%
improvement as compared to last year. This
improvement was mainly attributable to (i) a HK$50.47
million increase in gain on sale of financial assets, (ii)
a gain of HK$140.51 million arising on change in fair
value of financial assets, whereas we recorded a loss
of HK$80.49 million in last year, and (iii) the absence
of the previous year’s one-off written-off of property,
plant and equipment of HK$49.78 million, which were
partially offset by (i) a HK$192.96 million increase in
the allowance for credit losses on loan receivables,
and (i) a HK$65.18 million increase in the share of
losses of associates.

We reported a segment profit (before taxation) of
HK$191.81 million for our sale of financial assets
business in 2020, whereas we recorded a loss of
HK$79.27 million last year. The turnaround was
mainly due to a trading gain of HK$50.47 million
from disposing of certain Hong Kong-listed securities
and a significant gain on change in fair value of two
Hong Kong listed equities held by us. We will closely
monitor and adjust our listed securities portfolio
from time to time and realise our Hong Kong-listed
securities into cash as and when appropriate in 2021.

Our money lending business recorded a segment
loss (before tax) of HK$148.77 million in 2020. In
2019, we recorded a segment profit (before taxation)
of HK$72.50 million. The deterioration in segment
results was due to (i) the derecognition of certain
interest income on loans due to the deterioration
of certain customers’ ability to pay the interest, (ii)
a significant increase in the allowance for credit
losses on loan receivables, and (iii) the recognition
of a written-off of loan receivables. The significant
increase in the allowance for credit losses on
loan receivables was due to (i) the increase in the
probability of default in calculating expected credit
losses caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, and (ii) the
reclassification of certain loans from stage 1 to stage
2 (underperforming) and stage 3 (non-performing). In
2021, we will slow down our pace and closely monitor
our loan portfolio’s performance, especially the
repayment status of each customer.
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Our sale of jewelry products business was severely
hurt by the COVID-19 pandemic and reported a
segment loss (before taxation) of HK$13.10 million
in 2021. In contrast, we posted a segment profit
(before taxation) of HK$74,000 last year. Because of
the severe travel restrictions and lockdowns recently
imposed by countries worldwide for stemming the
spread of COVID-19 in the first half of 2020, we are
developing our own business-to-business sales portal
for business development and placing sales orders.
Although the initial costs to develop the business-
to-business sales portal are considerable, we believe
that it will help to grow our business worldwide cost-
effectively in the long-run. In the second half of 2020,
the sale of jewelry products was picked up by the
firm sales orders from local companies that carry
out jewelry products trading in Mainland China, a
new sales channel to our sale of jewelry products
business. We will make more effort to develop other
sales channels for the Mainland China market in 2021.

The segment loss (before taxation) of our property
investment business decreased from HK$119.01
million in 2019 to HK$49.98 million. This improvement
in segment results was mainly due to the absence
of a HK$49.78 million written-off relating to the two
hotel villas erected on the first phase of the Subject
Land (as defined below) last year. As the impact of
COVID-19 on the hotel industry is unprecedented and
unpredictable, we have modified our business strategy
for the second and third phases of our 580 Chinese
acre land in Beijing, Mainland China (the “Subject
Land”), in which the units of the building complex
erected will lease out as high-end serviced apartments
on a long-term or short-term lease basis. According to
the development plan, the development of the second
and third phases of the Subject Land completes in the
first quarter of 2022. Marketing activities in leasing
the serviced apartments launched in August 2020.
Since the launch of the marketing activities, we have
received a lot of leasing inquiries. We will put more
effort and resources into our property investment
business in the coming years to ensure the building
works completes as planned.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

For investments in associates, we shared a loss of
HK$98.18 million from our associates in 2020, a 198%
increase as compared to last year. The deterioration
mainly resulted from a substantial increase in our
share of loss from Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited (“Global Mastermind”). Global Mastermind
reported a substantial loss for 2020 mainly due to
(i) a dramatic slump in its travel business segment
resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic, (ii) a significant
increase in impairment loss on its trade and loan
receivables, (iii) a substantial increase in loss on
fair value changes of its investment properties, and
(iv) a total impairment on the carrying amount of its
investment in a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Solution Apex Investments Limited, and the related
inter-company account as announced by Global
Mastermind on 29 December 2020.

As the rollout of vaccination allows lockdown
measures to be gradually reversed, there is a positive
consensus on the 2021 global economic outlook.
However, we remain cautious and watchful about
the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and its
impacts. We will continue to monitor the business
environment with caution and strengthen our business
foundation by focusing on our existing businesses.
Meanwhile, we will continue to maintain a proactive
and prudent approach in its cost control and financial
strategy to strengthen our financial position.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend our appreciation to all fellow directors and
employees for their invaluable efforts, dedication,
and commitment to the Group and to thank all
shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded the revenue of HK$221,757,000, a 12%
increase from HK$198,796,000 for the previous year.
The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to a
HK$50,468,000 increase in gain on sale of financial
assets. Of the total revenue, HK$74,361,000 was
generated from money lending, HK$26,868,000 was
generated from property investment, HK$69,269,000
was generated from sale of jewelry products, and a
gain of HK$51,259,000 was generated from sale of
financial assets.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$140,858,000, a 33% improvement from
HK$209,148,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. This improvement was mainly attributable to (i)
a HK$50,468,000 increase in gain on sale of financial
assets, (ii) a gain of HK$140,509,000 arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), whereas the Group
recorded a loss of HK$80,487,000 in the previous
year, and (iii) the absence of the previous year’s one-
off written-off of property, plant and equipment of
HK$49,782,000, which were partially offset by (i) a
HK$192,958,000 increase in the allowance for credit
losses on loan receivables, and (ii) a HK$65,184,000
increase in the share of losses of associates.

The Group’s sale of jewelry products business
reported a gross loss of HK$287,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2020, whereas a gross profit of
HK$12,274,000 was recorded in the year ended 31
December 2019. The gross profit margin for the sale
of jewelry products decreased from 18% in the year
ended 31 December 2019 to -0.41% in the year ended
31 December 2020. These deteriorations in gross
profit and gross profit margin are discussed in the
section headed “Sale of jewelry products business”
under “Operations Review” below.

Gross profit for property investment increased
by 12% from HK$10,553,000 in the year ended
31 December 2019 to HK$11,785,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2020. Gross profit margin for
property investment increased from 41% in the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 44% in the year ended
31 December 2020. These increases were mainly
attributable to a 30% increase in rental from leasing
the assets of the Club (as defined below) for the
second rental period commencing in October 2020
under the signed club lease agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEFIWRE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of operations (Continued)

Significant items of other gains and losses recorded
by the Group are as follows:

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured the investment property portion of
the Shun Tak Property (as defined below) at
fair value based on a valuation prepared by an
independent qualified valuer and recognised a
loss of HK$19,200,000 arising on change in the
fair value of investment properties.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group
measured its listed securities at fair value
based on the closing prices as quoted on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”) and recognised the gain of
HK$140,509,000 arising on change in the fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent
staff costs and commission of sales team, overseas
travelling expenses, freight charges, and exhibition
expenses incurred by the Group’s sale of jewelry
products business. Selling and distribution expenses
decreased by 42% from HK$5,876,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2019 to HK$3,410,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2020. This decrease was mainly
attributable to the decline in overseas travelling
expenses and exhibition expenses for business
development resulted from the travel restrictions
imposed by nations across the world to curb the
spread of COVID-19.

Allowance for credit losses on financial assets
increased from HK$8,372,000 in the year ended
31 December 2019 to HK$198,470,000 in the year
ended 31 December 2020. This increase was due
to a HK$192,958,000 increase in the allowance for
credit losses on the Group’s loan receivables, which
is discussed in the section headed “Money lending
business” under “Operations Review” below.

Administrative expenses decreased by 3% from
HK$98,888,000 in the year ended 31 December 2019
to HK$95,519,000 in the year ended 31 December
2020. This decrease was mainly attributable to an
HK$8,591,000 decrease in salaries and allowances,
and discretionary bonuses, which was partially offset
by a HK$4,466,000 increase in general administration
expenses, and legal and professional fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Results of operations (Continued)

Share of losses of associates amounted to
HK$98,176,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing (i) the share of loss of HK$18,196,000
from Elite Prosperous Investment Limited (“Elite
Prosperous”), a 49% owned associate of the
Company, (ii) the share of loss of HK$76,484,000
from Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (“Global
Mastermind”), a 29.77% owned associate of the
Company, and (iii) the share of loss of HK$3,496,000
from China Healthwise Holdings Limited (“China
Healthwise”), a 20.27% owned associate of the
Company.

Finance costs increased by 11% from HK$48,891,000
in the year ended 31 December 2019 to
HK$54,278,000 in the year ended 31 December 2020.
This increase was due to the rise in the interest rate
from 8% per annum to 13% per annum in extending
the Notes (as defined below) in September 2020.

The Group recorded a tax credit of HK$35,547,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The tax
credit derived from the recognition of (i) deferred tax
credit of HK$32,224,000 arising from the allowance
for credit losses made on the Group’s loan and
other receivables, and (ii) deferred tax credit of
HK$6,055,000 resulting from the movements in the
deferred tax liabilities recognised for the fair value
adjustments on acquisition of Smart Title Limited in
2015 and the rights-of-use assets. Such tax credit
was partially offset by the current period tax expense
of HK$2,732,000.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, and borrowings. Equity attributable
to owners of the Company decreased from
HK$2,423,931,000 at 31 December 2019 to
HK$2,368,661,000 at 31 December 2020. This
decrease was attributable to the loss incurred by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$54,125,000 (20109:
HK$140,550,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEErWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$668,080,000 (2019: HK$655,561,000)
representing:

(a)

the outstanding principal amount of the
HK$270,000,000 13% guaranteed secured
notes due 2021 issued by the Company
on 29 September 2020 (the “Notes”) of
HK$250,000,000, which is interest-bearing at
13% per annum, secured by (i) a share charge
over 100% issued shares in China Jiuhao
Health Industry Group Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the principal
assets of which are (1) the rights to construct and
operate the club facilities of a membership golf
club and resort (the “Club”) in Beijing, Mainland
China, and (2) the rights to develop and operate
a piece of 580 Chinese acre land adjacent to
the Club (the “Subject Land”) and the rights to
manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land, and (ii) the personal guarantees given by
Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director, and Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai, an executive director, and maturing on 25
September 2021;

the banking facilities in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$162,465,000, comprising (i) an
instalment loan of HK$114,080,000, which is
interest-bearing at 1% per annum over one-
month HIBOR or 3% per annum below the prime
rate quoted by the bank, whichever is lower,
secured by a first legal charge over the Group’s
properties located at Unit Nos. 1201, 1202,
1203, 1209, 1210, 1211 & 1212 and the corridor
on 12th Floor, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(the “Shun Tak Property”), guaranteed by the
Company and two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, and maturing on 18 March
2038, (ii) two advances of HK$5,000,000 and
HK$20,000,000 under a revolving term loan,
which are interest-bearing at HIBOR plus 2% per
annum, secured by the first legal charge over the
Shun Tak Property, guaranteed by the Company
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and maturing on 8 March 2021 and 27 April 2021
respectively, and (iii) various advances in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$23,385,000
under the account payable financing facilities,
which are interest-bearing at 2% per annum over
HIBOR, secured by the first legal charge over the
Shun Tak Property, guaranteed by the Company
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and maturing within five months commencing
from January 2021;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

(c) a loan of HK$200,000,000 granted by a finance
company, which is interest-bearing at 8% per
annum, secured by (i) the post-dated cheques
drawn in favour of the finance company for
payment of the principal and the interests
stipulated under the loan agreement, and (ii) a
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai,
and maturing on 28 May 2021;

(d) the securities margin financing facility of
HK$40,250,000 granted by a securities company,
which are interest-bearing at prime rate plus
3% per annum and secured by the Group’s
listed securities in Hong Kong held in the margin
securities trading account and a personal
guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai;

(e) the securities margin financing facility of
HK$14,065,000 granted by a securities company,
which are interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 6%
per annum and secured by the Group’s listed
securities in Hong Kong held in the margin
securities trading account and a personal
guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai; and

() a cash advance of HK$1,300,000 made by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai to the Group for financing its short-
term funding needs. The cash advance is non-
interest bearing, unsecured, and repayable on
demand.

Gearing ratio

At 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to owners of the Company was 28%
(2019: 27%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$331,887,000 (2019:
HK$210,194,000) and 1.37 (2019: 1.24) respectively.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was
no change in the Company’s capital structure.

EEREFIRE S
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEFIWRE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Material acquisitions of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Material disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
did not have any material disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2020, the following Group’s assets
were pledged:

(a) the Shun Tak Property with a carrying amount
of HK$350,758,000 (2019: HK$377,867,000), of
which HK$210,758,000 (2019: HK$218,667,000) is
classified under “property, plant and equipment”
and HK$140,000,000 (2019: HK$159,200,000)
is classified under “investment properties”, for
securing the banking facilities granted to the
Group;

(o) the 100% issued shares in China Jiuhao Health
Industry Group Limited with an unaudited
combined net assets of HK$1,212,786,000 (2019:
HK$1,041,436,000) after adjusting for purchase
price allocation for securing the Notes; and

(c) the Group’s listed securities in Hong Kong with
a fair value of HK$231,228,000 (2019: Nil), of
which HK$131,101,000 (2019: Nil) is related
to the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
HK$100,127,000 (2019: Nil) is related to part of
the Group’s listed investments in associates, for
securing the securities margin financing facilities
granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Material commitments

At 31 December 2020, the Group had a
total commitment of HK$238,288,000 (2019:
HK$26,854,000), which were contracted but not
provided for, relating to:

(a) the development costs of HK$237,998,000 for
the Subject Land; and

(o) the renovation costs of HK$290,000 for the Shun
Tak Property.

Exchange risk and hedging

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect its
performance. The directors closely monitor statement
of financial position and cash flow exchange risk
exposures and where considered appropriate use
financial instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge this exchange risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes were used by the
Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2020, the headcount of the Group
was 65 (2019: 71). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$45,294,000 (2019: HK$53,885,000).
The decrease in staff costs was mainly attributable to
an HK$8,591,000 decrease in salaries and allowances,
and discretionary bonuses. In addition to basic
salaries, contributions to retirement benefits scheme
and discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.

EEREFIRE S
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEErWE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B #% B A (&)
Key performance indicators FERBEEEZ

The Company has defined the following key AATCHAATEHAEERRRER - 2E
performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are closely ERBIEE(ZERREE]) -

aligned with the performance of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-BL¥E

Notes 2020 2019
Mzt “BIEE “E-n%
Revenue W& HK$221,757,000%87T  HK$198,796,000 T
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ~ AATHEAABLAEEFE
Company HK$140,858,0008 T  HK$209,148,000 %8 T
Equity attributable to owners of the Company K2 FHA AL ER HK$2,368,661,000/8 %  HK$2,423,931,000 8 T
Return on financial assets at FVTPL BAVEABRRZEREER
B 1 56% -18%
Return on loan receivables ERER2EHR 2 6% 9%
Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry HELKBEMMTAERZER
products 3 -43% 0%
Return on property investment NEREZER 4 -3% -3%
Notes: Kt -
1. Return on financial assets at FVTPL includes trading 1. BRAFESABRECESREEZOREEEE

gain and losses, gains and losses arising on change
in fair value, and dividend income. It is measured as a
percentage against opening fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL.

2. Return on loan receivables includes interest income and 2.
written-off. It is measured as a percentage against average
loan receivables (before accumulated allowance for credit
losses, and accrued interest receivables).

3. Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry products 3.
represents segment profit or loss from sale of jewelry
products business divided by average capital employed
and is measured as a percentage.

4. Return on property investment includes gains and losses 4.
arising on change in fair value, rental income, gains and
losses on disposal less amortisation of intangible assets
in respect of the Club, depreciation expenses of the
property, plant and equipment of the Club, depreciation
of right-of-use assets in respect of the Club, and interest
on lease liabilities in respect of the Club. It is measured
as a percentage against opening fair value of investment
properties, opening carrying amounts of intangible assets
in respect of the Club and opening carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the Club.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)

Commentary on the performance of the Group against
each of the KPIs is set out above and “Operations
Review” below.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended
occasionally to correspond with the changing mix of
the Group’s principal activities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Sale of financial assets business

During the year, the Group’s sale of financial
assets business reported a segment profit (before
taxation) of HK$191,807,000, whereas a loss of
HK$79,272,000 was recorded in the previous year.
The turnaround was due to the recognition of (i) the
HK$50,468,000 increase in trading gain, and (i) the
gain of HK$140,509,000 arising on change in the fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL in the year ended
31 December 2020, where a loss of HK$80,487,000
was recorded in the year ended 31 December 2019.
Accordingly, return on financial assets at FVTPL
improved from -18% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to 56% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
acquired nine Hong Kong listed equities with the
aggregate acquisition costs of HK$105,050,000 and
made a trading gain of HK$51,259,000 from selling
three Hong Kong listed equities with the aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$75,979,000 at the aggregate
net sale proceeds of HK$127,238,000.

Movements in the carrying amount of Hong Kong
listed and unlisted equities held by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

THEF WS
Bt %5 B B8 (47)
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A=+—RHIFEAI%5EE80,487,0008
TR - At RAFEFABERZERE
EZzBBBABE=-E—-—hhE+=-A=+—8
FEFEZ- 18 NEEHE-_ZE=-ZF+=A
=+—HILEFEEZ56% °

Wﬁi
_H

zt-t%lﬂ%)&n’éisﬁéﬁﬁﬂ BB A A
105,050,000t  KHAHE="EFBLTR
= AR {8 48 38 15 75,979, ooo,%m: mEHE
FriSsIE S48 A 127,238,000 8T * MELE
B3 51,259,00038 7T o

)
o7

l—%tiEW’

N

REBEEZE-Z2-_ZFR-_ZF-NAFF+-A=1-—
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2020 2019
g g 253 —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZKREE 240,815 287,302
Add: acquisitions /[ UN 105,050 155,910
loss arising on change in ERERBE QAT Z
fair value upon transfer Eﬁfﬁ’&$fﬁ 2B =
to interests in associates * BB - (39,848)
Less: disposals B HE (75,979) (68,496)
gain/(loss) arising on change in BRAFEEBELEZ
fair value recognised Wz (E58) 140,509 (40,639)
transfer to interests in associates ERERBENTZ
s - (53,414)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BzZERAEE 410,395 240,815
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EEBEMWE 7R
OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued) XEKEREEE)
Sale of financial assets business (Continued) HESHEEXEK (&)
Details of the Hong Kong listed and unlisted equities R-IEBE-ZEF+-_A=+—-HHAEEBFZFEZ
held by the Group at 31 December 2020 are as BEBLMRIFLTREZFHFBOT :
follows:
Fair value as Gain/(loss)
compared Dividend arising on
to the received/ change in
consolidated receivable fair value
Number of total assets of inthe  recognised in

sharesheldat  Fairvalueat  the Group at year ended the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Notes 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
e
RIRE
t2A
AYESR L =t-A
i AEER 23 I3
k2 i It k23 e: ERR
e it 2 = =t-A ATESS
=t-A = =t-A :3:5 fiEs2
=2 =t-A RREE B/ &/
fiit RA#E ZAYE BEoHE ElzRE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Name of Hong Kong listed ERLTRESE
equities
Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. ~ #ERRERAT
Istock code; 1466) (RHRE : 1466) 1 1674200 246 0.01% - (976)
BC Technology Group Ltd. BCHHEEERAR
(stock code: 863) (BBRE : 863) 2 12,000,000 215,760 5.6% - 119,760
Boill Healthcare Holdings Ltd. ~ RERBERRERAT
(stock code; 1246) (R - 1246) 3 29,000,000 6,380 0.17% - (16)
Brockman Mining Ltd. TRAEBEERLT
Istock code: 159) (RHRE : 150) 4 40,220,000 4384 0.11% - 1925)
Frontier Services Group Ltd. EERRERERLA
(stock code: 500) (BBRE :500) 5 23,040,000 14,515 0.38% - (1,789)
Heng Tai Consumables Group Ltd. S%HEREEERAF
(stock code: 197) (RS - 197) 6 55,575,000 4,004 0.11% - (4,542)
Huanxi Media Group Ltd. BEEREEERAR
(stock code: 1003) (RS - 1003) 7 22,450,000 31,654 0.82% - 583
Huayi Tencent Entertainment EHRRREERLT
Company Ltd. (RtsE : 419)
(stock code: 419) 8 249,520,000 48,656 1.27% - 37,025
Kingston Financial Group Ltd. ~~ $F|E$REBERAA
(stock code: 1031) (Repfes  1031) 9 33,028,000 22,459 0.58% 330 (3,968)
KuangChi Science Ltd. ERNERRAT
(stock code: 439) (RS - 439) 10 15,455,000 8,346 0.22% - 1,698
Lajin Entertainment Network NEAREEERLF
Group Ltd. (stock code: 8172) (R : 8172) 1 53,500,000 3745 0.10% - (1,605)
Link-Asia International MedTech ~ REENEENEEEERAE
Group Lid. (stock code: 1143 (BARE : 1143) 12 1,500,000 563 0.01% - (369)
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At 24,
THEWE 2R
OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued) XEKEREEE)
Sale of financial assets business (Continued) HESHEEXE®K (&)
Fair value as Gain/(loss)
compared Dividend arising on
to the received/ change in
consolidated receivable fair value
Number of total assets of inthe  recognised in

shares heldat  Fairvalueat  the Group at year ended the year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Notes 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
8z

ZECEE

2R

NYER BE =t-f

R AEER Sk 23 LEE

ZECEf R ZECEE - BEa

- ZECEE 2R =t-H ATESE

=t-R 2R =t-8 LEE fiEse

ez =t-A RoRE Bl W&/
i RG%E ZOVE BEZRE BYZRR (58)

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr
Ocean Line Port Development Ltd. Ef#ENXEERAT
(stock codle: 8502) (R - 8502) 13 12,096,000 3,084 0.08% - (233)
Nimble Holdings Company Ltd. ~ SUERRERAT
(stock code: 186) (RBRE: - 186) 14 58,000,000 35,380 0.92% - 534
SuperRobotics Holdings Ltd. BASRERBRAR
(stock code: 8176) (R - 8176) 15 5,495,000 4,946 0.13% - (1,940)
Town Health International Medical BREREEEEERLT
Group Ltd. (stock code: 3886)  (BR{3%3% - 3886) 16 70,000,000 4,623 0.12% - (2,480)
Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. ~ E#SBEEERAT
(stock code: 376) (RARS - 376) 17 444,000 1430 0.03% - (155)
410,395 330 140,509
Name of Hong Kong unlisted ~ &% L FRERHE
equity
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd.  #7S £EERERAF 18 90,000,000 - 0.00% - -
410,395 330 140,509
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EHEF

am B 53 #h

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Sale

of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes:

ETE

Affluent Partners Holdings Ltd. (“Affluent Partners”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products, and (ii) the
operation of strategic investment and financial services
segment, with the objective to include investments in real
estate agency business, real estate investment funds, and
other potential investment opportunities.

According to its 2020 interim report, Affluent Partners
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$43,573,000
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and
equity attributable to owners of HK$50,190,000 as at 30
September 2020. With the development of its existing
strategic investment and financial services segment,
Affluent Partners expected that the segment would be its
growth driver and would actively make continuous efforts
to find appropriate investment projects in the future. In
addition, Affluent Partners would focus its investments and
operations more in the real estate, co-working spaces and
investment and asset management sectors especially in
Europe and Asia.

BC Technology Group Ltd. (“BC Technology”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in digital assets
trading, brokerage, technologies and services businesses
in Hong Kong and advertising business and the provision
of business park area management services in Mainland.

According to its final results announcement, BC
Technology reported a loss attributable to owners of
RMB247,842,311 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and equity attributable to owners of RMB142,654,575 as at
31 December 2020. Building upon geographic expansion
in 2019, BC Technology’s digital asset arm, OSL, was
strengthened by a growing and diverse customer base
and buttressed by operational redundancies that mitigated
potential business disruption during the pandemic.
Strategic investments in regulatory compliant software,
systems and processes by BC Technology paid dividends
in 2020, and one of the subsidiaries of BC Technology
became Hong Kong’s first licensed digital asset trading
platform to conduct types 1 and 7 regulated activities
related to digital assets. This milestone contributed
to material business wins with several partners from
traditional finance. Looking ahead, BC Technology would
continue to invest in the OSL digital asset platform and
the provision of trading, technology, SaaS solutions
and related services, with a focus on enhancing
security, compliance, and risk management systems. BC
Technology intended to direct resources to its recently
licensed exchange platform in Hong Kong to drive
customer acquisition and revenue growth.
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Boill Healthcare Holdings Ltd. (“Boill Healthcare”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the foundation
piling, property development, healthcare holiday resort
development and operation, and securities investment.

According to its 2020 interim report, Boill Healthcare
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$71,197,000
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$377,998,000 as at 30
September 2020. Boill Healthcare expanded its property
development business in October 2020. Given the
uncertainty of the pandemic and economic development,
Boill Healthcare would continue to assess the situation and
accelerate construction, arrange pre-sales of properties
based on sales targets and expedite the collection of sales
proceeds. Boill Healthcare believed that the pandemic
provided great opportunities for sustainable expansion of
its healthcare holiday resort development and operation
business. This business segment would continue to be its
core business in the future.

Brockman Mining Ltd. (“Brockman Mining”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the acquisition,
exploration and development of iron ore in Australia.

As disclosed in its 2020/21 interim report, Brockman
Mining reported a loss attributable to owners of
HK$2,261,000 for the six months ended 31 December
2020 and equity attributable to owners of HK$673,133,000
as at 31 December 2020. Brockman Mining and Polaris
Metals Pty Ltd (“Polaris”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Mineral Resources Limited (“MRL”), progressed activities
towards satisfaction of their farm-in obligations with to the
farm-in joint venture agreement over Brockman Mining’s
Marillana Iron Ore Project. A drilling and metallurgical
testing campaign by Polaris was completed satisfactorily.
Polaris also completed its technical and cost report on
the Marillana Iron Ore Project. The outcome of both these
undertakings resulted in Polaris providing Brockman
Mining with an indicative development proposal. Brockman
Mining accepted the indicative development proposal
in principle, pending the formal submission of a final
investment decision proposal from MRL. Upon completing
of the farm-in obligations, the joint venture on the
Marillana Iron Ore Project shall be established, and the
development and construction for the Marillana Iron Ore
Project shall commence.
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Frontier Services Group Ltd. (“Frontier Services”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of logistics services in the Belt and Road region; the
provision of online financial market information; and the
provision of integrated security, logistics, insurance and
infrastructure services for clients operating in frontier
markets, with a focus on the Belt and Road region.

According to its 2020 interim report, Frontier Services
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$130,221,000
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$584,317,000 as at 30 June
2020. Frontier Services had established its presence in
the form of security, logistics, insurance and infrastructure
in South East Asia and Africa. With Frontier Services’
unique business modelling and shareholding structure, its
business development remained positive and active during
the six months ended 30 June 2020. The management
would continue to closely monitor Frontier Services’
development, implement any necessary measures and
adopt to any required changes whenever necessary to
tackle any difficulties and grasp any opportunities in front
of Frontier Services.

Heng Tai Consumables Group Ltd. (“Heng Tai”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the trading
of packaged foods, beverages, household consumable
products and cold chain products; (ii) the trading of agri-
products and the upstream farming business; (iii) the
provision of cold chain logistics services and value-added
post-harvest food processing and (iv) other businesses
primarily arising from the securities brokerage business,
the trademark sub-licensing in petrol business and the
tourist retailing business.

According to in its interim results announcement, Heng Tai
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$40,835,000
for the six months ended 31 December 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$1,502,693,000 as at 31
December 2020. Looking forward, the pandemic remained
the greatest uncertainty for the global economy, there
would be substantial consequences for Mainland China
and global economy if the vaccines could not effectively
reduce the number of infections. On top of that, there were
many other uncertainties such as the rise on protectionism
and the increasing competition from domestic brands.
Heng Tai would take a more cautious stance for future
development and continue to implement cost-saving
initiatives, as well as ensure a strong and healthy financial
position to weather any unforeseeable headwinds.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Huanxi Media Group Ltd. (“Huanxi Media”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the media
and entertainment related businesses which include
development and investment in film and TV drama series,
as well as operation of an online video platform.

According to its 2020 interim report, Huanxi Media
reported a profit attributable to owners of HK$20,331,000
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$1,127,516,000 as at 30
June 2020. Starting from mid-July 2020, the cinemas in
Mainland China resumed opening and operation, provided
that effective prevention and control measures were
implemented against the COVID-19 pandemic. Huanxi
Media would arrange the optimal schedule for the release
of its films. Huanxi Media was confident that its films
would generate considerable revenue. In addition, Huanxi
Media seized the increasing paid viewing habit of video
users and rising popularity of streaming media to develop
“huanxi.com” into a selected film and TV content platform
with a full membership system and paid viewing. Huanxi
Media would advance in this direction so as to tap the
benefits from the increased popularity of paid viewing and
thereby further reinforce its presence in the film and TV
industry of Mainland China.

Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Ltd. (“Huayi
Tencent”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) entertainment and media business, and (ii) provision of
offline healthcare and wellness services.

As disclosed in its final results announcement, Huayi
Tencent reported a loss attributable to owners of
HK$56,574,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and equity attributable to owners of HK$776,592,000 as
at 31 December 2020. In 2021, it was expected that the
film production in a number of countries or regions would
return to normal steadily after the implementation of the
guidelines on preventive measures for COVID-19. Coupled
with the progress of the relevant research and vaccination
across the world, the gradual subjugation of the pandemic
might be on the cards with the result of a progressive
recovery of the film industry. Besides, the pandemic
derived the “stay-at-home” economy, the viewership and
influence of many media streaming platforms had soared.
Huayi Tencent would continue to explore the possibility
of premiering online and strengthen its cooperation with
different international media streaming platforms. Huayi
Tencent would continue to closely monitor the latest
development of the epidemic and coordinate with global
distributors for setting appropriate strategic adjustment,
including determining the theatrical release slots according
to the time of reopening cinemas, as well as to explore
chances of collaboration with online streaming media.
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9.

10.

Kingston Financial Group Ltd. (“Kingston Financial”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of a wide range of financial services which include
securities brokerage, underwriting and placements, margin
and initial public offering financing, corporate finance
advisory services and futures brokerage services. Kingston
Financial also provides gaming and hospitality services in
Macau.

As disclosed in its 2020 interim report, Kingston Financial
reported a profit attributable to owners of HK$169,015,000
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$21,811,628,000 as at 30
September 2020. Kingston Financial believed that the
advancement of the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area” (“GBA”) and the development of the
“Belt and Road Initiative” would bring more opportunities
for Hong Kong as an international financial hub. Kingston
Financial would adhere to its prudent management
strategy and rigorously deploy and implement development
plans in line with market conditions, in order to grasp the
opportunities arising from the Hong Kong capital market
and the GBA market.

KuangChi Science Ltd. (“KuangChi Science”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research and
development of “Al” technology-related algorithms, a
platform for big data analysis and professional Al-infused
products for vertical industries based on these algorithms
and platform, as well as the development of an integrated
overall solution.

As disclosed in its 2020 interim report, KuangChi Science
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$11,448,000
for six months ended 30 June 2020 and equity attributable
to owners of HK$899,490,000 as at 30 June 2020.
KuangChi Science focused on future technology business.
It was currently developing and integrating different
future technologies, like “Al” technology and “future
space” technology, and strived to build future intelligent
cities and provided a comprehensive range of innovative
products, services and solutions. The management of
KuangChi Science believed that with the evolution of the
5G network, KuangChi Science’s “Al” technology would
gradually be applied to more vertical industries in line
with its own development goals and industrial needs, in
particular the acceleration of the build-up of smart cities.
Al would become a new impetus that boosted economic
and social development, generated enormous demand for
Al applications and held market prospects in the field of
smart cities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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11.

12.

Lajin Entertainment Network Group Ltd. (“Lajin
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of investment in movies, TV
programmes and internet contents, and the provision of
artists management services.

As disclosed in its 2020 interim report, Lajin Entertainment
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$14,462,000
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$503,045,000 as at 30 June
2020. Lajin Entertainment continued to team up with
talented creative teams as well as powerful and affluent
media companies in the TV/movies industry for investing
in quality TV/movies projects for the sake of effectively
managing and mitigating the risks for its investments.
Furthermore, Lajin Entertainment also established
its strategic cooperation relationship with numerous
established companies that had the capacity for producing
theatrical films, and fully leveraged on its experience and
advantages in the field of internet-based products to
remake classic films and television drama IP to produce
quality internet movies with partners. In order to maximize
the value of Lajin Base, Lajin Entertainment developed two
new business segments, namely performing arts training
business and new media e-commerce business, which
were believed to bring significant revenue and steady
growth to Lajin Entertainment.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Ltd. (“Link-Asia”,
formerly known as Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) electronic
manufacturing services; (ii) marketing and distribution
of communication products; (iii) real estate supply
chain services; and (iv) the securities and other assets
investment.

As disclosed in its 2020 interim report, Link-Asia reported
a loss attributable to owners of HK$69,918,000 for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 and equity attributable
to owners of HK$365,413,000 as at 30 June 2020. In
respect of its EMS and distribution of communication
products businesses, Link-Asia would seek to bolster
ties with its business partners in order to seize new
opportunities. In terms of its EMS business, Link-
Asia would direct greater effort towards the research
and development of Internet of things (loT), Wi-
Fi and Bluetooth enabled products, and explore the
market opportunity in Mainland China. Regarding
to its real estate supply chain services business,
Link-Asia would continue to proactively look for
business opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan-Asia.
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Notes: (Continued)

13.

14,

Nevertheless, Link-Asia would actively consolidate its
resources and act with prudence in pursuing continuous
development in its core businesses, and would seek
new business or investment opportunities to diversify its
income sources.

Ocean Line Port Development Ltd. (“Ocean Line Port”)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in port
operation in Chizhou City, Anhui Province, Mainland China.

As disclosed in its final results announcement, Ocean
Line Port reported a profit attributable to owners of
RMB44,579,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and equity attributable to owners of RMB351,926,000
as at 31 December 2020. It was too early to be fully
optimistic about the business prospect of Ocean Line Port
in 2021. However, Ocean Line Port was fully confident
in its development in the future, with three major works
and measures: (i) responding actively to risks posed by
the COVID-19 pandemic, (ii) strengthening traditional
stevedoring and raising the market share, and (iii)
strengthening logistics (transportation) operation and
promoting transformational development of the port.
Ocean Line Port would make concerted efforts and make
full use of its advantages to broaden sources of income
and reduce expenditure, capture opportunities, expand
and move forward with even greater enthusiasm.

Nimble Holdings Company Ltd. (“Nimble Holdings”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in holding and
licensing of brands and trademarks on a worldwide basis,
distribution of houseware products and audio products in
the United States of America, and the trading of household
appliances, provision of information technology services
and property development in Mainland China.

According to its 2020 interim report, Nimble Holdings
reported a loss attributable to owners of HK$23,000,000
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and equity
attributable to owners of HK$436,000,000 as at 30
September 2020. The operation teams of Nimble Holdings
would endeavour to use their best efforts to overcome
the difficulties brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic
in order to manage the businesses and operation in the
second half of the financial year ending 31 March 2021,
as well as control its costs in all areas so as to minimise
the total expenses to be incurred by it. The management
of Nimble Holdings intended to continue bidding in land
auctions conducted by the local government authorities
in different cities of Mainland China in order to increase
its land bank for future development. The management
believed that the enlarged land reserve would bring
income to Nimble Holdings with reasonable returns in the
future.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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15:

16.

SuperRobotics Holdings Ltd. (“SuperRobotics”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) high-tech
robotics and light machinery engineering; (ii) in-flight
WLAN and WIFI engineering and services provider; and (iii)
developing, distributing and marketing of personal care
treatments, products and services.

As disclosed in its interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2020, SuperRobotics reported a loss attributable
to owners of HK$51,179,000 for the six months ended 30
June 2020 and a negative equity attributable to owners
of HK$29,443,000 as at 30 June 2020. Despite there is a
huge market potential for service robots in Mainland China,
SuperRobotics’ business would be facing tremendous
risks in a short period of time once external demand
weakens for the reason that the COVID-19 epidemic
had impacts on the service industry and manufacturing
industry in its duration of time and intensity of influence.
In view of the persistent social conflict in Hong Kong and
the severe economic downturn that had seriously affected
the industry’s living environment and the consumers,
SuperRobotics expected that its beauty business might
not be optimistic.

Town Health International Medical Group Ltd. (“Town
Health”) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i)
provision of medical and dental services in Hong Kong;
(i) managing healthcare networks and provision of third
party medical network administrator services in Hong
Kong; (iii) provision of medical and dental services, as well
as hospital management and related services in Mainland
China; (iv) trading of listed securities and leasing of
properties; and (v) provision of miscellaneous healthcare
related services.

As disclosed in its final results announcement, Town
Health reported a loss attributable to owners of
HK$281,038,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and equity attributable to owners of HK$3,810,481,000 as
at 31 December 2020. The COVID-19 pandemic would last
and continue to spread across the world, posing grave
threat to the public health and making a heavy blow to the
economy. However, the availability of vaccines and the
activation of vaccination work were expected to contain
the virus, which would boost the world’s confidence about
economic recovery. As the economy gradually recovers
in 2021, it was expected that businesses of Town Health
would return to stable development. In the meantime,
Town Heath would consistently and actively fulfil its social
responsibilities as a medical enterprise and serve the
society with all its might.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)

Sale of financial assets business (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

17.

On 27 November 2017, the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) issued a direction under Section
8(1) of the Securities and Futures (Stock Market Listing)
Rules to suspend the trading in the shares of Town Health
with effect from 9:00 a.m. on that date.

The trading in the shares of Town Health remained
suspended on 31 December 2020.

The fair value of the shares in Town Health held by the
Group of HK$4,623,000 at 31 December 2020 was based
on the valuation report prepared by the independent
professional valuer appointed by the Group.

On 1 March 2021, the SFC has permitted trading in Town
Health’s shares to recommence from 9:00 a.m. on that
date.

Yunfeng Financial Group Ltd. (“Yunfeng Financial”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the writing of
long term insurance business; (ii) securities brokerage and
provision of custodian and other services; (iii) provision of
fund and asset management services as well as financing
and investing solution for clients; and (iv) provision of
corporate advisory, placing and underwriting advisory
services to clients.

As disclosed in its final results announcement, Yunfeng
Financial reported a profit attributable to owners of
HK$618,315,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
and equity attributable to owners of HK$13,380,576,000
as at 31 December 2020. Yunfeng Financial would
prudently monitor the continuing impacts of such
factors as the heightened tensions between the United
States and Mainland China, the higher geopolitical risks
and the uncertain macroeconomic environment on the
execution of its business development plans. Yunfeng
Financial would continue to focus on implementing its
strategic plan to capture growth opportunities in the life
and health insurance and wealth management markets
in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
with a view to successfully transforming itself into a
comprehensive one-stop financial services provider
offering high-quality online and offline insurance and
wealth management solutions to its customers.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Sale of financial assets business (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

18. Hsin Chong Group Holdings Ltd. (“Hsin Chong”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in building
construction, civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
installation, property development and investment.

Based on its latest published financial information,
Hsin Chong reported a loss attributable to owners of
HK$704,973,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2018
and equity attributable to owners of HK$9,990,782,000 as
at 30 June 2018.

On 17 December 2019, the Exchange cancelled Hsin
Chong’s listing and the shares in Hsin Chong have no
longer listed and tradeable on the Exchange since then.
The share certificates of the shares in Hsin Chong remain
valid.

The directors believe that the future performance of
the Hong Kong listed and unlisted equities held by
the Group is largely affected by economic factors,
investor sentiment, demand and supply balance of an
investee company’s shares and fundamentals of an
investee company, such as investee company’s news,
business fundamentals and development, financial
performance and future prospects. Accordingly,
the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual
investee company in the Group’s equity portfolio, and
proactively adjust the Group’s equity portfolio mix in
order to improve its performance.

Money lending business

During the year, the Group’s money lending
business generated interest income on loans
amounting to HK$74,361,000, a 29% decrease from
HK$104,034,000 for the previous year, and reported
a segment loss (before taxation) of HK$148,768,000,
whereas a segment profit (before taxation) of
HK$72,496,000 was recorded in the previous year.
The deterioration in segment results was mainly
attributable to (i) the derecognition of certain interest
income on loans due to the deterioration of certain
customers’ ability to pay the interest, and (ii) the
increase in the allowance for credit losses on loan
receivables as discussed below.
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EHEBEFIWRE S

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Money lending business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group granted a new loan in the principal amount of
HK$21,800,000 to a customer, and extended the final
repayment dates of ten existing loans in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$655,000,000. The Group’s
customers made drawings in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$35,600,000 from the existing and new
loans and repaid HK$46,633,000 to the Group.

During the year, a customer failed to repay the loan’s
outstanding principal amount of HK$25,000,000
together with the accrued and unpaid interest thereon
according to the loan agreement. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the customer
to recover the loan’s outstanding principal amount
and the accrued and unpaid interest thereon. The first
hearing will be held on 7 April 2021. The Group wrote
off part of the loan and interest receivables from
the customer amounting to HK$15,775,000. Another
customer failed to pay an interest payment on the
loan to the Group in December 2020 under the loan
agreement. In January 2021, the Group commenced
legal proceedings against the customer for
recovering the loan’s outstanding principal amount of
HK$55,000,000 together with the accrued and unpaid
interest thereon. In March 2021, the Group recovered
the outstanding principal amount of the loan together
with the accrued and unpaid interest thereon from
the customer. After the reporting date, the Group
has also commenced legal proceedings against a
customer who failed to pay interest on the loan to the
Group under the loan agreement during the year for
recovering the loan’s outstanding principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 together with the accrued and unpaid
interest thereon.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Money lending business (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed an impairment assessment on the Group’s
loan receivables with reference to a valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer.
Based on the valuation, a HK$197,432,000 allowance
for credit losses on loan receivables was made,
a HK$192,958,000 increase compared to that for
the year ended 31 December 2019. This significant
increase was due to (i) the increase in the probability
of default in calculating the 12-month expected
credit losses of loans caused by the COVID-19
pandemic classified under stage 1 (performing), (ii)
the reclassification of a loan that had significant
deterioration in credit risk from stage 1 to stage 2
(underperforming), and (iii) the reclassification of
three loans that had objective evidence of impairment
from stage 1 to stage 3 (non-performing). At 31
December 2020, the Group’s loan receivables,
together with accrued interest receivables (before
accumulated allowance for credit losses), amounted
to HK$976,599,000 (2019: HK$1,000,071,000). Return
on loan receivables for the year ended 31 December
2020 is 6% (2019: 9%).

Sale of jewelry products business

During the year, the Group’s sale of jewelry products
business generated revenue of HK$69,269,000, a
1% increase from HK$68,422,000 for the previous
year, and reported a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$13,103,000, whereas a segment profit (before
taxation) of HK$74,000 was recorded in the previous
year.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Sale of jewelry products business (Continued)

During the first half of 2020, the Group’s sale of
jewelry business was severely affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19 as the Group was not able to
fulfill its sales orders due to the lockdown imposed
in Mainland China, Europe, and the United States to
curb the spread of COVID-19. In the second half of
2020, the sale of jewelry products picked up resulted
from the firm sales orders from local companies that
carry out jewelry products trading in Mainland China,
a new sales channel developed by the Group. During
the year, the Group recorded a significant decrease
in sales orders from the United States as the United
States has imposed an extra tariff on jewelry products
from Mainland China since September 2019. In view of
the severe travel restrictions and lockdowns recently
imposed by countries around the world for stemming
the spread of COVID-19 in the first half of 2020, the
Group is developing its own business-to-business
sales portal for business development and placing
sales orders. Although the initial costs to develop the
business-to-business sales portal are considerable,
the directors believe that it will help the Group grows
its business worldwide cost-effectively in the long-run.

The gross loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 was mainly due to the higher moulding and
production costs incurred for producing samples for
business development and the business-to-business
sales portal, and lower profit margin for jewelry
products sold to Mainland China through the local
companies. Besides, the Group’s sale of jewelry
products business reported a loss of inventories of
HK$4,914,000 as certain jewelry products were stolen
during a business trip to Europe, and such stolen
jewelry products were derecognised from the Group’s
inventories and recognised as administrative expense
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed an impairment assessment on the Group’s
trade receivables with reference to a valuation
prepared by the independent professional valuer.
Based on the valuation, an allowance for credit losses
on trade receivables of HK$315,000 was recognised,
a HK$259,000 increase compared to the year ended
31 December 2019. This increase was due to the
increase in the probability of default in calculating the
12-month expected credit losses of trade receivables
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Sale of jewelry products business (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories of
jewelry products, including raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished goods, amounted to
HK$28,618,000 (2019: HK$32,000,000) and the
Group’s sale of jewelry products business had
undelivered sales orders amounting to HK$2,200,000
(2019: HK$800,000).

Return on capital employed in sale of jewelry products
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is -43% (2019:
0%).

Property investment business

During the year, the Group’s property investment
business generated rental income of HK$26,868,000,
a 5% increase from HK$25,549,000 for the previous
year, and recorded a segment loss (before taxation)
of HK$49,979,000, a 58% improvement as compared
to the previous year. The improvement of segment
results was mainly attributable to the absence of a
HK$49,782,000 written-off relating to the two hotel
villas erected on the first phase of the Subject Land
in the previous year. Of the total rental income,
HK$21,773,000 was generated from the assets of
the Club and HK$5,095,000 was generated from the
investment property portion of the Shun Tak Property.

As the impact of COVID-19 on the hotel industry is
unprecedented and unpredictable, hotels face the
prospect of a long recovery. As such, the Group
has modified its business strategy for the second
and third phases of the Subject Land, in which the
units of the building complex erected will lease out
as high-end serviced apartments on a long-term
or short-term lease basis. In leasing the serviced
apartments on a long-term lease basis, the tenants
prepay the rental of the lease period in stages before
the lease commencement date. On the other hand,
the development costs will significantly reduce as
the interior of the building complex is no longer
decorated at a five-star hotel standard. Accordingly,
the total development costs reduce significantly from
RMB904,425,000 (equivalent to HK$990,164,000) to
RMB650,000,000 (equivalent to HK$711,620,000),
which is financed by the internal resources of the
Group, income generated from the Group’s property
investment operations, prepaid rental for long-term
leases, and external borrowings. The directors believe
that the modified business strategy will not only
improve the Group’s cash flow, but also reduce the
annual operating and maintenance expenses.

EEREFIRE S

RIECIRE (&)
HEREEMRK(F)

RZBZZEF+ZA=1+—H  AEBEZKE
EnRFEBEEEMH  Z2RRERR) B
28,618,000 jt (= & — i & : 32,000,000
BRI)IRAEB2HEREERELE
2,200,000 st (==& — A4 : 800,000/ JT)
ZARREHERTE °

BE-ZE-ZF+-A=+—HILLEE 4
BREERMAEAZE®RE-43% (ZE—H
F:10%) e

FR > AEBZYEREEREE2HE K
A 5 26,868,0008 T * B EF 225,549,000
BT ME%  WiEB 2 EBEBERFA)
49,979,0008 7T BBEFRNE58% o DI
BEUEDNETEARTEREFEREZEHIRE
— B ER £ = P AR Bl 22 0 I il 85 49,782,000 78
T e REBESWAEF 21,773,000 78
TTREEMZ2EENR5,095,0008TREGFE
MEREYEID o

HRFEERBESEEETEEXAIRRE
HUFERNTE  AHEERHERTRRE
BoElt AEECHBITARIRBIRE
REZBRNWEBRE  MEERNWEELR
EREBEUSERIIEHEEEERBES
HEREALNE  RPEHEBRBALENEF
REHRGE A M D EREANEPNAES -
S—FH '  HREEGSBABTBUEER
HIERERE  WMABEAEKERD -
It > %5 A AN A B A R 904,425,000 T
(#8572 990,164,000 8 ) KigH D EARYE
650,000,000 T (#HZ£1 711,620,000 & 7T ) »
HAKEANBER AEENEREXBEE
HWA -~ UAREEEFARMOES R INRE
MEB c EBMRE - BEITEBRBETETR
%i%ﬁﬁiﬁ%  BARO B FEERER
F;ﬁ o



32

Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEFIWRE S

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Property investment business (Continued)

In May 2020, the Group invited tenders for the
building works and awarded the tender to a Mainland
Chinese construction company in June 2020. The
building works have commenced in July 2020 and
expect to complete in the third quarter of 2021. After
the building works, the building complex erected on
the second and third phases of the Subject Land
is put under interior decoration and prepared for
buildings inspection by the relevant governmental
authorities. According to the development plan, the
development of the second and third phases of the
Subject Land completes in the first quarter of 2022.
Marketing activities in leasing the serviced apartments
launched in August 2020. Since the launch of the
marketing activities, the Group has received a lot of
leasing inquiries.

The Group has temporarily suspended the
development of the cultural business as the Group
is in discussion with a potential joint venture partner
relating to the proposed setting up of a football
training school under the brand of a football club
of the Premier League or the Campeonato Nacional
de Liga de Primera Divisiéon on the first phase of
the Subject Land. According to the memorandum
of understanding dated 29 April 2020, the proposed
setting up of the football training school shall include
but not limit to (i) the leasing of the first phase
of the Subject Land to the potential joint venture
partner for setting up the football training school
and organising sports events, (ii) the establishment
of a jointly controlled operation, in which Smart
Title Limited and the potential joint venture partner
combine their operations, resources, and expertise
to set up the football training school and share the
profit generated from the football training school, and
(iii) the formation of a jointly controlled entity to set
up the football training school. The final arrangement
for the proposed setting up of the football training
school shall be subject to the official written approval
from the football club of the Premier League or the
Campeonato Nacional de Liga de Primera Division. As
at the date of the annual report, discussion with the
potential joint venture partner is still underway and no
terms of the proposed setting up of a football training
school have reached.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Property investment business (Continued)

Given the modification of the business strategy for
the second and third phases of the Subject Land
and the temporary suspension of the development
of the cultural business, the relevant discounted
cash flow projections used to measure value in use
for determining the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit of Smart Title Limited have adjusted
to reflect the impacts on the expected cash inflows
and outflows resulted from the modification and the
suspension.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
performed impairment tests for the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of Smart Title Limited and the
intangible assets relating to (i) the rights to construct
and operate the club facilities of the Club, and (ii)
the rights to develop and operate the Subject Land
and the rights to manage the properties erected on
the Subject Land with reference to two discounted
cash flow projections to assess the value in use of
the property investment business in Beijing, Mainland
China. As the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of the Group’s property investment
operations under Smart Title Limited exceeded its
carrying amount, no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets was required.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors tested
the right-of-use assets for impairment with reference
to the two discount cash flow projections to assess
the value in use of the property investment business
in Beijing, Mainland China and concluded that no
impairment for the Group’s right-of-use assets was
required.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
measured the investment property portion of the
Shun Tak Property at fair value. Based on the
property valuation report prepared by the independent
qualified valuer, the fair value of the investment
property portion of the Shun Tak Property decreased
from to HK$159,200,000 at 31 December 2019 to
HK$140,000,000 at 31 December 2020. The decrease
in the fair value was due to the current subdued office
demand and rental correction cycle. Accordingly, the
Group recognised the loss of HK$19,200,000 arising
on change in fair value of investment properties.

Return on property investment for the year ended 31
December 2020 is -3% (2019: -3%).
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments in associates

Elite Prosperous is an investment holding company
and the principal asset of which is the term loan
of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,410,000)
advanced to an unlisted investment holding company.
The principal subsidiaries of the unlisted investment
holding company are engaged in (i) agency payment
services, (ii) currency exchange services, and (iii)
provision of online, mobile and cross-border payment
services. Pursuant to the loan instrument, Elite
Prosperous is entitled to convert the term loan into
(i) such number of preferred shares in the capital
of the unlisted investment holding company, or (ii)
such number of preferred shares in the capital of
one of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the unlisted
investment holding company, which is engaged in
provision of online, mobile and cross-border payment
services. In May 2019, a subsidiary of the unlisted
investment holding company has been awarded
a stored value facilities licence by Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. During the year, no conversion
of the term loan was taken place as the unlisted
investment holding company has been doing a fund
raising exercise. At the end of the reporting period,
Elite Prosperous measured the term loan at fair
value. Based on a valuation report prepared by the
independent professional valuer, the fair value of
the term loan decreased from HK$62,861,000 at 31
December 2019 to HK$25,726,000 at 31 December
2020 and Elite Prosperous recognised a loss of
HK$37,135,000 arising on change in the fair value of
the term loan in profit or loss. During the year, Elite
Prosperous reported a loss of HK$37,135,000 and
the Group shared a loss of HK$18,196,000 from Elite
Prosperous.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

Global Mastermind is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision and operation of travel business, treasury
management business, money lending business and
provision of securities, asset management and finance
advisory services. During the year, the Group further
acquired 31,500,000 shares in Global Mastermind
at a consideration of HK$1,477,000, and the
Group’s shareholding interests in Global Mastermind
increased from 29.04% to 29.77% accordingly. The
further acquisition resulted in a gain on bargaining
purchase of an associate of HK$1,849,000. During
the year, Global Mastermind reported a loss of
HK$267,084,000, a 389% deterioration as compared
to the previous year, and the Group shared a loss of
HK$78,333,000 from Global Mastermind, which was
partially offset by the gain on bargaining purchase of
an associate of HK$1,849,000. The deterioration in
Global Mastermind’s results for the year was mainly
due to (i) a dramatic slump in its travel business
segment resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic, (ii)
a significant increase in impairment loss on its trade
and loan receivables, (iii) a significant increase in loss
on fair value changes of its investment properties,
and (iv) a substantial loss of assets resulting from
the Incidents (as defined below), details of which
are disclosed in the section headed “Additional
Information on Audit Qualification” below.

China Healthwise is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
sales of Chinese health products, money lending
business, and investment in financial instruments.
During the year, China Healthwise repurchased and
cancelled 160,650,000 of its issued shares (before
the share consolidation effective on 25 September
2020), and the Group’s shareholding interests in
China Healthwise increased from 18.86% to 19.26%
correspondingly. The repurchase and cancellation
resulted in a gain on deemed acquisition of an
associate of HK$290,000. In addition, the Group
acquired 7,840,000 shares in China Healthwise (after
the share consolidation effective on 25 September
2020) and the Group’s shareholding increased from
19.26% to 20.27%. The Group recognised a gain on
bargaining purchase of HK$917,000. During the year,
China Healthwise reported a loss of HK$25,222,000,
a 80% improvement as compared to its results for
the previous period, and the Group shared a loss
of HK$4,703,000 from China Healthwise, which was
partially offset by the gain on deemed acquisition
of an associate of HK$290,000 and the gain on
bargaining purchase of HK$917,000. The improvement
in China Healthwise’s results for the year was mainly
due to (i) the recognition of a gain from disposal of its
OBM toy business, and (ii) a significant decrease in
fair value loss on its financial assets at FVTPL.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Future Prospects

After a major downturn of the global economy in
2020 caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the global
economy is forecast to rebound as the rollout of
vaccination allows lockdown measures to be gradually
reversed. However, this rebound is contingent on
successful and speedy deployment of vaccines and
continued accommodative fiscal, monetary, and
financial conditions in the world’s larger economies
and is unlikely to arrive before the second half of
2021. Overall, the directors believe an end to the
COVID-19 pandemic and ongoing policy support will
contribute to a brighter future.

As the financial market recovery is well advanced
compared to the economic recovery, the directors
will closely monitor and adjust the Group’s listed
securities portfolio from time to time and realise the
Hong Kong-listed securities held by the Group into
cash as and when appropriate in 2021.

As the development of the second and third phases
of the Subject Land has commenced, internal cash
resources of the Group are allocated to finance the
building works. The directors slow down the pace
of the Group’s money lending business and closely
monitor the performance of the loan portfolio,
especially the repayment status of each customer
in 2021. Besides, the Group has commenced legal
proceedings against three existing customers to
recover the outstanding principal amount of the loans
together with the accrued and unpaid interest thereon.
The directors expect that the interest income on loans
generated from the Group’s money lending business
in 2021 will be less than that in 2020 by 10% to 20%.

Although COVID-19 severely impaired global demand
in 2020, the Group obtained considerable sales orders
from the local companies selling jewelry products to
Mainland China in the second half of 2020. The Group
will make an effort to develop other sales channels
for the Mainland China market in 2021. The directors
expect the Group’s sales of jewelry products business
in 2021 to improve slightly compared to 2020.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (Continued)
Future Prospects (Continued)

The business development on the first phase of the
Subject Land is still underway, and the Group has just
commenced the building works of the second and
third phases of the Subject Land. The directors expect
the performance of the Group’s property investment
business in 2021 will be mostly the same as in 2020.
Given that the building works of the second and third
phases of the Subject Land have just commenced, the
directors will put more effort and resources into the
Group’s property investment business in the coming
years to ensure the building works completes as
planned.

Although there is a positive consensus on the 2021
global economic outlook with the vaccines being
rolled out, the directors remain cautious and watchful
over the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and
its impacts. The directors commit to monitoring the
business environment cautiously and strengthening
the Group’s business foundation by focusing on its
existing businesses.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION

Audit qualification

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” in the Independent Auditors’ Report
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020, the audit
qualification relates to the scope limitation concerning
the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in
associates in the consolidated statement of financial
position includes an amount of HK$104,083,000 as
at 31 December 2020 in respect of the Group’s share
of net assets of the Global Mastermind Group as at
31 December 2020 and the Group’s share of results
of associates in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income includes
an amount of HK$76,484,000 and an amount of
HK$56,000 in respect of the Group’s share of loss and
share of other comprehensive expense of the Global
Mastermind Group respectively for the year ended 31
December 2020.

EEREFIRE S

RIECIRE (&)
RIRAI= (&)

RS -—RRZEBHRNDEETH M
FEBCRMAIBUMRE_—_RE=-—MR2EE
TR EERHAEEYEREXBZR-F
TFRABABLE_Z_ZFHER - &
REBMRE_RE=-"BR2BETIRCER
B EEARRHFRERESODORERRA
SEMEREREY  URREEIRERET

EI5ERK °

BEMEREEEL  ARLEN =58
BREHEA RS LBEE  ESHNFRTHR
FERECBREREYENABHES - £5
HHEEEREHES  WEBLINERE
EUREAREES EHER -

FRELRBERZHEMESR

ERRERER

BUNAEEBEE_Z-_EF+-_A=+—HL
FEZHEAUBRRANBIZEMBEET
[REERCEE |-BRFFE  EZREER
HEESEMBMRARPEAEERBEE AT 2
BREvREOE(BEEBEAEBRR -_ZE-ZF
T A=+ BB ABEBE2EEFE
£%8104,083,000 8 t) RrcEE R EME
HRBERPAEBOEBHE LN 2EE(BE
ERAEEEE-ZE-EF+-A=+—HL
FEMMMBRABEE 2 FEEREtEZEAX
£ %85 Bl 576,484,000 % 7T &% 56,000 3% 7T )
2 EERFIER -



38

Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEFIWRE S

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Incidents on Global Mastermind

As disclosed in Global Mastermind’s announcement
dated 29 December 2020, during the second half
of 2020, Solution Apex, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Global Mastermind, conducted three purported
investments for HK$47,534,000 (the “Purported
Investments”, which bears the same meaning
as “Purported Payments to the Purported Three
Parties” defined in the Independent Auditors’
Report) and made unexplained cash withdrawals
amounting to HK$11,231,000 (the “Unexplained
Cash Withdrawals”, which bears the same meaning
as “Purportedly Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals”
defined in the Independent Auditors’ Report). Based
on the information available to Global Mastermind,
the Purported Investments and the Unexplained Cash
Withdrawals appeared to have been carried by the
then sole director of Solution Apex, Mr. Allan Yap,
without the board of directors (the “Board of Global
Mastermind”) of Global Mastermind’s authority (the
“Incidents”).

Upon knowing the Incidents, the Board of Global
Mastermind examined the information and documents
gathered relating to the Purported Investments and
the Unexplained Cash Withdrawals in detail and cast
doubt on the values and purposes of the Purported
Investments and the Unexplained Cash Withdrawals.
Accordingly, the Board of Global Mastermind resolved
to make impairment and recognise a loss of assets
arising from the Incidents of HK$58,765,000 on the
Purported Investments and the Unexplained Cash
Withdrawals (the “Loss”) on 29 December 2020.

In response to the Incidents, the Board of Global
Mastermind resolved to (i) remove all director(s)
of Solution Apex and Durable Gold, the immediate
holding company of Solution Apex, and replace them
by Global Mastermind’s designated persons, (ii)
engage external legal advisers to commence legal
proceedings to seek to recoup the cash utilised
for the Purported Investments and the Unexplained
Cash Withdrawals and/or to seek damages and other
remedies from individuals and entities against whom
the Group may have causes of action as a result
of the Incidents (the “Recovery Actions”), and (iii)
establish an internal investigation team (the “Internal
Investigation Working Team”) comprising directors
and senior management of Global Mastermind
unrelated to the Incidents to investigate on the
Incidents and oversee the progress of the Recovery
Actions.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Incidents on Global Mastermind (Continued)

To limit its exposure on and enable it to stay
away from the uncertainty of litigations relating to
the Incidents and the Recovery Actions, Global
Mastermind disposed of the entire issued share
capital of Solution Apex to an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$1 as adjusted by
the outcome sharing adjustment mechanism, which
enables Global Mastermind to retain the majority
outcome and proceeds from the Recovery Actions.

The disposal of Solution Apex was completed on 29
December 2020.

Please refer to Global Mastermind’s announcement
dated 29 December 2020 for details of the Incidents,
the Purported Investments, the Unexplained Cash
Withdrawals, the disposal of Solution Apex, and the
outcome sharing adjustment mechanism.

Disclaimer of opinion on the Global Mastermind
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020

As Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore Stephens”),
the auditor of Global Mastermind, was unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy itself regarding the causes of the Incidents,
and commercial substance and nature of the
Purported Investments and the Unexplained Cash
Withdrawals. Moore Stephens was also unable to
determine whether any adjustments that might have
been found necessary to the amount of the Loss of
HK$58,765,000 being recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss and consequentially to the related
elements making up the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the related presentation and disclosures in
the Global Mastermind Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
As a result of the above, Moore Stephens did not
express an opinion on the Global Mastermind Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Executive directors’ view on the audit qualification

The executive directors have given careful
consideration to the audit qualification and the
basis for the qualified opinion and have had an
ongoing discussion with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited (“HLB”), the Company’s auditors, and the
management of Global Mastermind when preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statement for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The executive directors have obtained the following
understanding from the management of Global
Mastermind:

(a) Based on the preliminary findings of the Internal
Investigation Working Team and the information
currently available to it, the Board of Global
Mastermind is of the view that:

(i) the Incidents are standalone events solely
caused by the personal conduct of certain
then directors and/or officers of Solution
Apex and/or Durable Gold, with no other
personnel in the Global Mastermind Group
appearing to have any involvement in
or knowledge of the happening of the
Incidents; and

(i) with the resignation, removal, and/or
suspension of duties of all then directors
and officers of Solution Apex and Durable
Gold by Global Mastermind and the
implementation of the reinforced internal
control policies and other measures, event
similar to the Incidents are highly improbable
to recur in future.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Executive directors’ view on the audit qualification
(Continued)

(b)

The Board of Global Mastermind is of the view
that the possibility of any adjustment in respect
of the Incidents to be made is remote and the
Incidents should not have any continuing effect
on the Global Mastermind Group’s consolidated
financial statements going forward for the
following reasons (the “Reasons”):

(i) Prior to the Incidents, the only asset of
Solution Apex was the bank balances and
cash of HK$58,765,000. Upon knowing the
Incidents, the Loss of HK$58,765,000, which
is equivalent to the entire bank balances and
cash of Solution Apex, was recognised in
the year ended 31 December 2020, resulting
in no other assets and/or liabilities in the
statement of financial position of Solution
Apex as of 29 December 2020. In other
words, the Board of Global Mastermind
has already written down the entire assets
side of Solution Apex to zero to fully reflect
the extent of loss suffered by the Global
Mastermind Group.

(ii) The disposal of Solution Apex was
completed on 29 December 2020, and
any continuing effect of the Incidents
over Solution Apex shall have no negative
impact on the Global Mastermind Group
whatsoever. Therefore, the Board of
Global Mastermind is of the view that the
Incidents should not have any impact on the
consolidated financial position of the Global
Mastermind Group as at 31 December 2020.

Based on the above, the Board of Global
Mastermind is of the view that the issues
giving rise to the Incidents have no carried
forward effect on the Global Mastermind Group
consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2021, and that any modified
opinion in the forthcoming year should only
relate to the comparability of 2020 figures in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2021.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Executive directors’ view on the audit qualification
(Continued)

(c) The audit committee of Global Mastermind
agreed with the preliminary findings of the
Internal Investigation Working Team and the
implementation of reinforcement measures on
internal control to prevent the recurrence of
similar events in future. After considering the
Reasons stated above, the audit committee of
Global Mastermind concurs with the views of the
Board of Global Mastermind that the Incidents
should not have any continuing effect on the
Global Mastermind Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the coming financial year end and
that any modified opinion in the forthcoming year
should only relate to the comparability of 2020
figures in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021.

(d) The Board of Global Mastermind has obtained
the understanding with Moore Stephens that
Global Mastermind considers itself to have
addressed the issues giving rise to the disclaimer
of opinion on the Global Mastermind Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and in the light of the
Reasons and barring unforeseen circumstances,
a disclaimer of opinion in respect of the same
issues should no longer be required to be
included in the Global Mastermind Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2021.

The executive directors have discussed the
above understanding from the management of
Global Mastermind with HLB. Having obtained the
understanding from HLB, the executive directors
expect, in the light of the Reasons and barring
unforeseen circumstances, the audit qualification
relates to the scope limitation concerning the
carrying amount of the Group’s interests in Global
Mastermind and the Groups’ share of loss of the
Global Mastermind Group will be removed in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2021, except for the effect on
the comparability of 2020 figures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON AUDIT
QUALIFICATION (Continued)

Audit committee’s view on the audit qualification

The audit committee reviewed the information
provided by the Company in respect of the
circumstance leading to the audit qualification. The
audit committee discussed the audit qualification with
HLB at the meeting of the audit meeting held on 26
March 2021 and agreed with the audit qualification.

At the board meeting held on 30 March 2021, the
audit committee reported to and discussed the
audit qualification with the board of directors. The
audit committee also discussed the understanding
obtained from the Board of Global Mastermind with
the executive directors, and the audit committee
concurred with the executive directors’ view.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties
which may impact the Group’s financial conditions,
results of operations or future performance and how
the Group to mitigate these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete
and comprehensive statement of all potential risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group, but rather those
risks which the Group currently believes may have a
significant impact on the Group’s performance and
future prospects.

Principal risks Description
TEREE A B

Strategic risk

Strategic risk is the risk that medium
KRR

and long-term profitability and/or
reputation of the Group could be
adversely impacted by the failure
either to identify or implement
the correct strategy, or to react
appropriately to changes in the
business environment.

R BE A | B A PR oK BE Rt I SR B e I SR G
FHEXRGSELBEREMBALE
B R RABFEIR REEERT

M Bz mR

Economic risk

Economic risk is the risk of any
R Lk

downturn in economic conditions
could impact the Group’s
performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’
inability to repay loans and lower
asset values.

CERRSIASEEEY TARR - 5
I T BNt

EEEEREMIEREERE -

EEREFIRE S

FHRELREER2HMER (7)

BERZEEEHERRERRZE

ERZESCEHALARERERRERR
ZERFRENESN - BERZEEER=-F
A+ ABETZERSR LEES
ANWMEZRERR URBEERREER -

A—E - F=-A=1+HETZESE2SE
b EREEENESERENHENREZX
REBER - BERZESNTHEHTESTHRRER
BRABEEENE2TH  MBEXZEERE
HITES2ER -

TERBEAARREE

AREFEAEE 2B - EBEXEHIAK
KRCFTEABRTAPEERERAEEHMN
AEBEZERRENRT -

WHE R EERES A EEHEE 2 PFAEER
Bl N R 2 R AR - HEARKESR
KAEEZERM IR ANEE 2 KRB R ARRA
SBREATE -

Mitigating actions

FFREE

Extensive investment management
experience of the Board.
EEERREEEZEELR -

Regularly review on strategy and
performance of each business unit.
EHRNBEEBEM 2 RBRKRRA o
Perform comprehensive due diligence on
all potential acquisitions.

AR EEWBESRETEZEASHEE -

Regularly review forward looking
indicators to identify economic
conditions.

TEHRAR T AT IE M B AR AR B BB IR IR o

43



44

Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEFIWRE S

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Principal risks Description

FERERE ABE

Credit risk Credit risk is the risk of financial
FEERK loss to the Group if a customer or

counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual
obligations.
EERBAMERIACEFEFIRZYHF
REBRREBITHENET  AEEE
STHBEEzRERE -

Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the
RENE S E K Group will not be able to meet its

financial obligations as they fall due.
RBETREBAREERERTHEMZ
MBEEZER -

Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in

ERER equity prices will affect the Group’s
income and the value of its holdings
of equities.

BERERSETETIEBRAREFRFR
SEEZRESBZREE -
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FERBRAAREEE)

Mitigating actions

EFREIE

Fully understand customers and carry
out credit quality assessment on
customers before granting loans.
REHEFANZ2E T BEFYHEFETE
BEEHEFME -

Regularly monitor loan receivables and
assess for their recoverability.
EREFRERERRTREAEKEE -
Limit credit risk exposure by granting
loan to any single customer of not more
than 8% of the consolidated total assets
of the Group.
BROEME-EFRETZREAEBRES
EERESN cERURFIEERRE -
Make rental contracts with tenants with
an appropriate credit history.
HEAEEEEEACFABEATZIELY -

Regularly monitor liquidity and statement
of financial position.
EREERBESRUBARREK

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBEERDES R IRAEGE ©

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing
only in securities listed on stock
exchanges.
EHRERENBESFRIMLTRSZRERD
E€RkE -

Ensure acceptable and appropriate
finance in place, or believed to be
available before committing investment
projects.

E@Eg’ﬁlﬁ BAIERC AR EAEZRE
=== 7 °

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to
address any portfolio issues promptly.
EHEEREREASUNBFERIMIRE
HERRE -

Spread price risk exposure by investing
a number of equities.

REZERZUDBERRR -
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Principal risks
FERE

Exchange risk
B 5% B

People risk

AERER

Legal and
regulatory risk
EEREERR

Description
A&

Exchange risk is the risk that
changes in foreign exchange rates
will affect the Group’s income and
the value of its holdings of assets.
EimRAKLEREERAREREE
EBEZNEEZEH 2 REMR -

People risk is the risk of loss of the
services of any directors, senior
management and other key personnel
which could have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s businesses.
ABRBREIMNESE  SREEAERH
HEBAER R AIEHAREEEKE
RERTREEZ R o

Legal and regulatory risk is the risk
that a breach of laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations
or disputes, resulting in additional
costs being incurred, civil and/or
criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
EREREERBAERERER AR ATREL
AR - AERMY  EEBEIRE R
ER/RHNERFREBEEZAR -

THEF WS

FERRBRAAREEE)

Mitigating actions

EFREIE

Closely monitor statement of financial
position and cashflow exchange risk
exposures and where considered
appropriate use financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward
rate agreements, to hedge this exchange
risk.

R ERMBRRARRRERE @R X
EEHRAABEANBRATERESH T A (WEY
HNEER - SMNEHIRER BRI R ) B
BE 50 [P o

Provide competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to
attract and retain the employees the
Group needs.
RHAEBREHIZ2RBRENGTBUBRREIE
EERNORSI RGBT ZAL ©
Ensure that the staff of the Group has
the right working environment to enable
them to do the best job possible and
maximise their satisfaction at work.
BRAEBZEIFSEZIFREUSE
f%%kﬂ%@ﬁl#&%l#ﬁ%ﬁ%k
koo

Monitor changes and developments in
the regulatory environment and ensure
that sufficient resources being made
available to implement any required
changes.
ERRAERRE BN URIBRAMAZE
RENEBREMUREZEE -

Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.
BERSREAFIHMEEALER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
standards on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the code of business conduct and
ethics applicable to the directors and employees, and
the training and continuous professional development
of directors. The Board has also reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry, all directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The directors also ensure that
the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as its auditors for the year ended 31
December 2020. The statement by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 93 to 106 of the annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other executives, is
delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to four committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, to assist the Board
in discharging its duties and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical information of the directors as at the
date of this report are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors on pages 90 to 92 of the annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Save and except for (a) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers, and (b) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%, 25%,
and 25% respectively in the issued share capital of
Twin Success International Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, there
is no relationship between the members of the Board.

The Company Secretary of the Company is
responsible to keep minutes of all Board and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
at all times met the requirements set out in Rules
3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

For a director to be considered independent, that
director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of directors, the Board follows the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

The directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on directors’ training. All
directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
received for the year ended 31 December 2020 to the
Company.

A summary of training received by the directors during
the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Executive directors: HITEE .
Mr. Lei Hong Wai TIEEEE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIRELE
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy PRIZEE £ 4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIEN 4
Independent non-executive directors: BV HEHITESE :
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRELE
Mr. Ng Heung Yan KREZxE
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen HEREE
Note 1:

1: Television programmes or webcasts

2: Courses, seminars or workships

3: Reading

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Audit and assurance, and financial reporting

On 28 December 2020, the Chairman of the Board
held a meeting with the independent non-executive
directors, without the presence of the executive
directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
has taken up the roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Lei possesses essential leadership skills and has
extensive experience in corporate management and
business development. The Board is of the view that
currently vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions as well as execution of long-
term business strategies.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company
and the Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi, and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
and discuss the remuneration structure and packages
of each executive directors and the discretionary
bonuses of the executive directors for making
recommendations to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill up
the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they
arise, in light of challenges and opportunities facing
by the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy
aiming to ensure the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee will evaluate,
select and recommend candidate(s) for directorships
to the Board by giving due consideration to selection
criteria including but not limited to:

(a) diversity in aspects including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge and length of service;

(b) commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the
Company’s business is involved in;

(d) independence;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
(e) reputation for integrity;

(f) potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board; and

(@) plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend retiring director(s) to the Board for re-
appointment by giving due consideration to the
selection criteria including but not limited to:

(a) the overall contribution and service of the retiring
director(s) to the Company, including but not
limited to the attendance of the meetings of
the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addition to the
level of participation and performance on the
Board and/or its committees; and

(b) whether the retiring director(s) continue(s) to
satisfy the selection criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend candidate(s) for the position(s) of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
by giving due consideration to the factors including
but not limited to those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and
3.13 of the Listing Rules in addition to the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a director in accordance
with the following procedures and process:

(@) the Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort;

(b) the Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the selection
criteria;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(c)

the Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to
the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter
make the recommendation to the Board in
relation to the proposed appointment, and
where a non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate
to be interviewed by the members of the
Board who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

all appointment of directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as director of
the relevant director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as director, as the case
may be) to be filed with the relevant Companies
Registry.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee held two meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and
evaluate and recommend the retiring directors to
the Board for re-appointment at the annual general
meeting in 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy is the chairman of
the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, and risk management and internal control
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and their performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
Prior to the commencement of an audit, the Audit
Committee meets the Company’s external auditors
to review and discuss the audit plan and key audit
matters of the Group. It also has separate meeting
with the Company’s external auditors at least once a
year with the absence of the management to discuss
any issues arising from the audit and any other
matters the external auditors may wish to raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed with the external
auditors the audit plan and key audit matters of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The Audit Committee reviewed with the external
auditors the unaudited and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, the annual report for 2019,
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020, and the interim report for 2020 before
their submission to the Board for approval. It also
reviewed the review report on risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and discussed
the findings on the review report with Infinity Concept
Ripple Limited, which is an independent firm of
professional accountants appointed by the Board
to carry out an annual independent review. The
Audit Committee also discussed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems with the
executive directors to ensure the executive directors
had performed their duties to have effective systems
properly in place. The Audit Committee also discussed
with the management and the external auditors the
accounting policies and practices which might affect
the Group and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 26 March 2021, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held three meetings.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2020 are set out as below:

ERHELE

REBZ-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLEFER
BEEREAQAAZEASEZHFELERSIWM
T

Meetings Attended/Held
BHE/CETeE

Annual

general Remuneration Nomination Audit Finance

meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee

REEF

K8 gz¢ FMzEe R#Z8E BhZEEE fBZEEE

Number of meetings EE Ve 1 30 1 2 3 0
Executive directors: #i7Es.
Mr. Lei Hong Wai gk 1 29/30 11 212 NATER NATER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REBEE 11 29/30 NATER NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy RiELs i 29/30 NATER NATER NATER 0/0
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEBLE 11 28/30 NATER N/ATER N/ATER NATER
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEES
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FRFLE 1 28/30 N 212 33 NATER
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 111 28/30 1/1 212 33 NATER
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERLE 11 28/30 NATER NATER 33 0/0

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical information of Mr. Chan are set out in the
Biographical Details of Directors on page 91 of the
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$819,000 and non-audit services fees
of HK$183,000. The non-audit services consist of
taxation services and reviewing the Group’s interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2020. The Company also engaged two audit firms
to perform audit services and non-audit services for
certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China
and incurred audit services fees of HK$10,000 and
non-audit services fees of HK$6,000. The non-audit
services consist of taxation and annual inspection
services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

As with all businesses, the Group is exposed to
risks and uncertainties in pursuit of its strategic
and business objectives. The Board acknowledges
that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for
reviewing their effectiveness.

However, due to inherent limitations of any system
of risk management and internal control, it should
be noted that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
its strategic and business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In view of each business units being actively managed
by the executive directors, all the executive directors
are responsible for monitoring that appropriate
process and controls are in place to effectively and
efficiently manage risks, so that the strategic and
business objectives of the Group can be met. Principal
risks are identified by assessing the possible effects
on the Group’s reputation, stakeholders, earnings,
capital and liquidity, and the future sustainability of
the Group’s businesses. They are closely monitored
and overseen by the executive directors on a
regular basis. Risk information is communicated to
employees, who have a responsibility to co-operate
with the executive directors’ initiatives and to carry
out their duties avoiding excessive risk.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

(@) A code of business conduct and ethics that
requires all directors and employees of the Group
to maintain the basic standards of ethical and
legal behavior in conducting business.

(b) A risk management process which enables
identification and assessment of risks that could
impact on the achievement of agreed strategic
and business objectives, and ensures that
appropriate mitigating measures and controls are
put in place.

(c) Clearly defined organisational structure, with
defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms
to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

(d) A comprehensive set of policies and procedures
relating to operational and financial controls,
including capital expenditure.

(e) A comprehensive system of financial reporting.

() An annual review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

As the Company does not have an internal audit
function, the Audit Committee engaged Infinity
Concept Ripple Limited to carry out the annual
independent review on the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020. The annual independent review
covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group. The review
report from Infinity Concept Ripple Limited was
presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board. No material internal control defects
were found. Accordingly, the Board, in conjunction
with the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and effective.

The Board reviewed the need for internal audit
function, but has decided that because of the size of
the Group it cannot be justified at present. The Board
will review this decision annually.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Company has adopted the Policy and Procedures
on Disclosure of Inside Information which contains
the guidelines to the directors and all the relevant
employees of the Group to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise any
query in relation to the Group’s businesses at
the general meetings. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Finance Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended).

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company. The requisition in writing must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses at the registered
office of the Company not less than six weeks before
the general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution, and not less than one week
before the general meeting in case of any other
requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 1211, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower
168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2268 8236

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy adopted on 31 December
2018, the Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment,
and amount of dividends are subject to the Board’s
discretion having regard to the following factors:

(@) the earnings, financial conditions, capital
requirements and future plans of the Group;

(b) the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
(c) the economic outlook;

(d) the contractual restrictions on the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders;

(e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the
payment of dividends by the Company; and

() any other factors the Board may consider
relevant.
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This report was approved by the Board on 30 March
2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

BR -HERELRS

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report contains information and data on the
environmental, social and governance performance of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.

This report has been prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group is principally engaged in sale of financial
assets, property investment, money lending, and
design and sale of jewelry products. The design
and sale of jewelry products business does not
involve manufacturing of jewelry products. The
manufacturing of the jewelry products is outsourced
to subcontractors, who are third parties independent
of the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules).

ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental Policy

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to
manage the impact of its business on the environment
both now and in the future. The Group will use its
best endeavours to conduct its operations in a manner
that is environmentally responsible and sustainable.

The Group commits to:

(@) meet or exceed all legal and regulatory
requirements for environmental protection;

(b) maintain awareness within the Group of the
responsibility of the Group and its employees to
ensure protection of the environment;

(c) reuse, recycle and responsibly dispose of all
electronic waste; and

(d) purchase environmental preferable products and
favoring products with reputable certifications or
labels.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Use of Resources, the Environment and Natural
Resources

As the Group is principally engaged in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending,
and design and sale of jewelry products, the Group
requires limited natural resources to operate and
does not produce any hazardous or non-hazardous
wastes. Therefore, the Group has a relatively low
environmental impact.

Emissions

The Group’s direct environmental impact comes from
its office premises, air travel and fuel consumed by
owned motor vehicles. The Group continuously seeks
ways to minimise the Group’s environmental footprint
and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing
emissions.
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For the year ended
31 December
BEt+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-8F C—EZ-NF
CO; emissions in kg

BAFstE 2 S RE

Source of greenhouse gas emissions AERBHERYIRIR

— electricity (office premises) — EN(WRAEYE) 335,254 75,565

— air travel — Mz Ek 14,946 74,813

— fuel consumed by owned motor — BEAREMMEEZE

vehicles 22,081 111,383

Total o 372,281 261,761
The source of greenhouse gas emissions measured BERBEHRYEBRIRUAFFEZ SR
in CO. emission in kg increased from 75,565 in the HWEsts  HnEmBE=-E—h&E+=8
year ended 31 December 2019 to 335,254 in the =t+t—HBLEEEZ75565EMEHBE=-Z=
year ended 31 December 2020. This increase was EFE+-_A=+— E|JJ:$1§2335 254 o 4t
attributable to the operations of a showing room for MmIERE=ZE2=EFE N\ A ﬁ_z<<<¢§1_}3A£§—itﬁ
the marketing and leasing activities of the serviced HMeRERXANECTEEERESIHES
apartments erected on the Subject Land since August Frgh o

2020.

The following measures are taken by the Group to
reduce emissions:

(@) Communicating the importance of environmental
issues to the Group’s employees.

(b) Purchasing environmental preferable products
and favoring products with reputable
certifications or labels.

(c) Encouraging the use of public transportation
to reduce the Group’s employees’ local travel
impact.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

BE HERELERS

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment and Remuneration

The Group has a strong commitment to ensure that
all its employees are treated fairly and that the Group
provides equal opportunity both to existing employees
and in its recruitment process. Merit is the primary
basis for employment with the Group. All employees
and applicants for employment should be treated
and evaluated according to their job related skills,
qualifications, abilities and aptitudes only.

The Group is committed to ensure that no employees
or applicants are subjected to unlawful discrimination,
either directly or indirectly, on grounds of a protected
characteristic. This commitment applies to all
aspects of employment, including recruitment and
selection, training, promotion and career development
opportunities, terms and conditions of employment,
grievance handling and the application of disciplinary
procedures, and selection for redundancy.

The Group seeks to consider employees from
a wide range of backgrounds in its recruitment
processes, and the Group does not tolerate any
form of harassment or discrimination of employees
with regards to race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation or religion. Active harassment
and discrimination in the workplace in any form is
unacceptable. The Group regards any actions by an
employee that constitute harassment or discrimination
as serious misconduct.

The Group has developed and implemented a
competitive remuneration structure which is key for
the Group to attract, motivate and retain the best
talent. In addition to basic salaries, the Mandatory
Provident Fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits
include medical scheme and share options. The Group
continually reviews its remuneration structure to
ensure it remains attractive and competitive.

The Group has remained diverse, with 52% (2019:
44%) of its employees being women. The Group also
employs a broad age range, with 20% (2019: 21%)
of its employees under 30 years old and 23% (2019:
18%) above 50 years old.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Health and Safety

The Group is committed to the health and safety
of all employees. The Group will work to eliminate
hazardous practices and behaviour, which could cause
accidents, injuries or illness to employees, visitors
and the general public. The Group strives to have
injury free workplaces. The primary goal is to assist in
providing a safe and healthy workplace environment
for the Group’s employees and visitors.

The objectives of the Group in ensuring health and
safety are to:

(a) comply with all relevant statutory obligations;

(b) provide adequate resources to establish and
maintain safe systems of work;

(c) maintain health and safety competency and
integrate health and safety requirements in all
aspects of business;

(d) ensure all incidents are reported and thoroughly
investigated with a view to preventing a similar
injury occurring; and

(e) promote a positive health and safety culture that
is based on the principle that all incidents can be
prevented.

All managers and contractors are accountable for
health and safety performance in their areas. All
employees are required to follow rules for safe and
healthy operations, report hazards to their managers
and must always report any injuries that occur to
either themselves or others.

During the year, there was no reportable hazardous
incident (2019: Nil).
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BR -HERELRS

SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Training and Development

The training and development of the Group’s
employees is key to employee retention, and
ensuring that employees continue to have the
skills and expertise that is core to the Group’s
sustainable business success and growth. Employees
are encouraged to attend courses, seminars and
workshops that are relevant to their jobs and the
Group reimburses for related expenses in full.

During the year, the Group paid staff training
expenses amounting to HK$4,000 (2019: HK$83,000).

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to be an employer of choice.
The Group values its employees and recognises their
contribution towards achieving sustainable business
success and growth for the Group and creating value
for its stakeholders.

The Group does not tolerate unethical labour
standards and complies with local labour legislations
and minimum wage laws in the countries where it
operates.

The labour standards of the Group are:
(a) Child labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of child labour.

(b) Forced and compulsory labour

The Group shall not engage in or support the use
of forced or compulsory labour, or bonded or
involuntary prison labour. Employees are free to
leave upon reasonable notice.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

Labour Standards (Continued)

(c)

Health and safety

The Group shall provide a safe and healthy
workplace environment and shall take effective
steps to prevent potential accidents and injuries
to employees’ health by minimising, so far as is
reasonably practicable, and in co-operation with
its employees, the causes of hazards inherent in
the workplace.

Freedom of association

The freedom of association is respected and
the Group will comply with the relevant labour
relations legislation in the countries where it
operates.

Discrimination

The Group shall not engage in or support any
discriminatory practices in hiring, remuneration,
access to training, promotion, termination or
retirement based on race, gender, age, disability,
sexual orientation, religion or other conditions
that could give rise to discrimination.

Working hours

The Group shall comply with applicable laws and
industry standards on working hours andholiday
entitlements. Overtime shall be voluntary and
shall not be demanded on a regular basis.

Remuneration

The Group shall comply with the local labour
legislations and minimum wage laws in the
countries where it operates. All work related
activities are carried out on the basis of a
recognised employment relationship established
according to the local labour legislations.

During the year, no non-compliance of Hong Kong
labour legislations or Mainland China’s labour laws
was reported or noted (2019: Nil).
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BR -HERELRS

SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices
Supplier Relations

The Group views its suppliers as partners who make
an important contribution to the Group’s sustainable
business success and growth. Employees of the
Group are expected to be honest and fair in all
business interactions with suppliers, which include
contractors, consultants and other agents.

The choice of suppliers of goods and services must
be made based on the best value received by the
Group. In addition, the Group believes in doing
business with those suppliers who demonstrate high
standards of ethical behavior. The Group will not
knowingly engage suppliers who operate in violation
of applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

All agreements with suppliers that are important for
the conduct of the Group’s business should be in
writing and must specify the goods and services to be
provided and the fees to be paid. Such agreements
must be in line with reasonable competitive and
market practices, and the relevant Group’s policies
and procedures.

Customer Relations

The Group believes that customers are vitally
important to its sustainable business success and
growth. Employees of the Group have a paramount
duty to act with integrity, respect, diligence and
competence in their dealings with the Group’s
customers.

To preserve its customer relationships:

(a) the Group does not misrepresent its services or
products in any sales or promotional efforts;

(b) the Group communicates clearly so that
customers understand the terms of the business
relationships, including contracts, performance
criteria, schedules, prices and responsibilities;
and

(c) the Group protects its customers’ confidential
information pursuant to contracts with its
customers and all applicable privacy laws in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Product and Service Responsibility

(a)

Design and sale of jewelry products

The Group shall not make any untruthful,
misleading or deceptive representation or make
any material omission in selling or marketing of
any jewelry products.

All supplies of raw materials used in the Group’s
jewelry products shall be acquired from legitimate
sources which, to the best knowledge of the
Group, have no involvement in funding conflicts.
The Group prohibits knowingly buying or selling
conflict precious stones or assisting others to do
SO.

The Group will not knowingly engage
subcontractors who operate in violation of
applicable laws or regulations, including local
environmental, employment and safety laws.

Money lending

In addition to compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Money Lenders Regulations and
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance, the Group strictly prohibits
abusive, misleading or fraudulent lending
practices. In providing money lending services
to its customers, the Group adopts the following
responsible lending practices:

(i) The Group provides its customers with the
information they need to make fully informed
decisions about its money lending services.

(i)  The Group prices its money lending services
based on appropriate factors, including the
risk and cost of extending loans, competition
and marketplace strategy and conditions,
and soundness consideration.

(i) The Group only approves applications where
it believes the customer has the ability to
repay the loan according to its terms.

(iv) The Group provides timely responses to
customers’ questions and complaints, and
takes prompt corrective action if it has made
an error.
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BE HERELERS

SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
Personal Data Privacy

The Group will only collect personal data from its
employees and customers ethically and lawfully. It
also seeks to collect personal data in a fair manner,
and in a way that is not unreasonably intrusive. If an
employee is collecting personal data on behalf of the
Group, he or she must inform the person involved of
(i) the purpose for which personal data is collected
and, unless consented by the person involved, the
personal data collected cannot be used for any new
or additional purpose, (ii) the personal data collected
cannot be transferred to any third party unless
required by law or upon informed consent from the
person involved, and (iii) subject to the requirements
of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the person
involved has the right to request assess to and correct
the personal data collected by the Group. Steps must
be taken to ensure that the use of personal data is
complying with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Employees must ensure that the confidentiality of
personal data contained in the Group’s records is
strictly maintained.

During the year, no non-compliance of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance was reported or noted (2019:
Nil).

Anti-corruption and Ethics

The Group commits to maintain confidence in the
integrity of the Company. All directors and employees
are responsible for the Company achieving the
highest levels of business and accountable for acting
in line with the policies and standards outlined in the
Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, and (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior. The Group’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics clearly states
that:

(@) All directors and employees are prohibited
from soliciting, accepting or offering any bribe
in conducting the Group’s business or affairs,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Anti-corruption and Ethics (Continued)

(b)

All directors and employees should not engage in
activities or hold or trade assets that involve, or
could appear to involve, a conflict between their
personal interests and the interests of the Group.

No gift or entertainment should ever be offered
or accepted by a director, an employee or any
family member of a director or an employee
unless it (i) is consistent with customary business
practices, (ii) is not excessive in value, (iii) cannot
be construed as a bribe or payoff, and (iv) does
not violate any laws or regulations.

Directors and employees are advised not to
engage in frequent gambling activities, e.g.
mahjong, with persons having business dealings
with the Group.

Directors and employees should not accept
any loan from, or through the assistance of,
any individual or organisation having business
dealings with the Group. There is however no
restriction on borrowing from licensed banks or
financial institutions.

Directors and employees are required to protect
proprietary, commercial and other information
that is confidential to the Group. These
obligations of confidentiality continue after an
individual’s employment has ceased with the
Group.

During the year, no instance of non-compliance
relating to bribery, extortion or fraud was reported or
noted (2019: Nil).
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BR -HERELRS

SOCIAL (Continued)
Community, Business Conduct and Ethics

While the Group is accountable to its key
stakeholders, the Group also takes into account of the
communities in which it operates. The Group commits
to make a positive impact on its neighbourhoods by
being a good neighbour to the communities. In view
of the current Hong Kong’s political and economic
landscape, the directors believe that compliance with
laws, integrity and fair dealing are the prime interests
of the communities. As such, the Group is committed
to make the communities in which it operates, better
places to do business by managing its business in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates and in accordance
with the highest level of business ethics and personal
integrity in all types of transactions and interactions.

The Company Secretary has been designated by
the board of directors to monitor changes and
developments in the regulatory environment and
ensure that sufficient resources being made available
to implement any required changes. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Group
complying with all applicable laws and regulations of
the countries in which it operates.

All directors and employees are responsible for the
Company achieving the highest levels of business and
accountable for acting in line with the policies and
standards outlined in the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics. They are required to comply
with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which
serves to (i) emphasise the Company’s commitment
to ethics and compliance with the letter and the spirit
of all laws and regulations, (ii) set forth the basic
standards of ethical and legal behavior, (iii) provide a
mechanism for reporting instances non-compliance,
and (iv) help prevent and detect wrongdoing.

During the year, no non-compliance of the laws and
regulations in Hong Kong or the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics was reported or noted (2019: Nil).
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 48 and 25 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes to the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, comprising an
analysis using financial key performance indicators,
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year, if any, and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business can be
found in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 7 to 45 of the annual report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance and the Group’s compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and an account of
the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
that have a significant impact on the Group and on
which the Group’s success depends can be found in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 64 to 75 of the annual report.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report form
part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the Group’s financial position
at that date are set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements on pages 107 to 283 of the
annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 284 of the annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

On 29 September 2020, the Company issued
HK$270,000,000 13% guaranteed secured notes due
2021. The issuance proceeds of HK$270,000,000 was
utilised to set off against the outstanding principal
amount of the 8% secured notes issued by the
Company on 25 August 2017.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$448,892,000 (2019: HK$453,123,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this directors’ report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Ng Heung Yan, and
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

As each of Mr. Ng Heung Yan and Mr. Wong Tak
Cheun has served the Board for more than nine
years, their further appointment shall be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with code
provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”).

The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries included
in the consolidated financial statements (other than
those listed above) were:

Mr. Guan Jialin
Ms. Han Fang
Ms. Wong Siu Yan

Biographical information of the directors of the
Company are set out on pages 90 to 92 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in Section
469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020,

the interests of the

directors and the chief executive and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
were as follows:

Long positions

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares held
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RZEBE-_EF+-_A=+—8 BEXLQTAR
BEERPEKAEISIEFEE 2B
% ARARARBRIFARBLTRTAES
ETESRFNEZETAUEMS X IER
Ao ARBEEBEERFETHRAERBS 2HE
ATRADBREBEEE 2 KRG - HEERHD
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L5
a. ZXAEEREE001ETZEER

Percentage

and capacity of the issued

BFE2EEREAREH share capital
Held by of the
controlled Company
Beneficial corporations HARRAE
Name of directors Notes owner ZEFQTE Total ERITRA
EEfE oz EXBEEA BEEzER F BO
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 and 2 408,740,000 583,832,803 992,572,803 25.99%
THEEE 1Kk2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 17 and 2 — 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REELLE 1R2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1and 2 — 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
SREI B e 1K2
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy 6,319,500 — 6,319,500 0.17%
PREEZE L4
Notes: iigz4
1. Twin Success International Limited (“Twin Success”) 1. Twin Success International Limited
beneficially owns 583,832,803 ordinary shares of the (T'Twin Success |)E## 45 583,832,803
Company. BRAATEBRRES

Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited. Silver Pacific International
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Silver
Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan.

On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its
583,832,803 ordinary shares of the Company in
favour of Kingston Finance Limited as security for a
loan facility.

Twin Success# 7l H Silver Pacific
International Limited #%5 50% &= & Silver
Pacific Development Limited# 745 50% &
#= ° Silver Pacific International Limited
B ZifELE 2 EHEE - Siver Pacific
Development Limited 7 B REVE SR
50% fE#s KRB B S A S 50% FEs ©

2. RZE—NFEXAHEHB  Twin Success
EUEHENKERARNASIRABERE
583,832,803 AN RE AR fEH—18
EXmE KA o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)
b. Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each of China

Healthwise Holdings Limited, a 20.27% owned
assocate of the Company

EERFTETHRAERKRG » HEARSG
K& %z B (4)
R (4E)

b. FEHEHEREZKERLE (LR AHEE
20.27% #w 2 HE R 7)) FKEE1.00
BrzEER

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of China

Healtwise

Holdings Limited

Number of 1 Bl & B

ordinary shares REZER

held BRAEFE

Name of director Capacity ez BRITRA
EEnE 14 EEREE Bt
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 57,463,636 7.46%

THERE ERERA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors,
chief executive nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme
are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, no share options were outstanding
and granted under the Company’s share option
scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed
“SHARE OPTIONS”, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

MEXFEBEEN RZBEZFF+= ﬁ
=+—H BEEE - TETHRABRKES

%%Ai%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ%%EZEﬁ&
7 HEROSESFTEETAREZSIAE -

Bk
AN EBRET B BEHNRS M B RRME

46 o

Fr - BEBRERBEAQT ZBREEH
RITERERE -

WERDHESF 2ZH

BRI BMRFE | — BT EE S FAXAFHA
EAHE QBB L EMZEE  FESAL
WIEA QB HEMEMEABENRDHES
M -



EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above and in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(@ On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
provided a personal guarantee to secure the
Company’s repayment obligations under a loan of
HK$200,000,000 granted by a finance company.
No consideration was paid by the Company to
Mr. Lei Hong Wai for providing the personal
guarantee. No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal guarantee
given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision of
personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai
remained full force and effect.

(b) On 30 January 2020, 2 March 2020, and 8
April 2020, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan made cash
advances of HK$600,000, HK$400,000, and
HK$200,000 respectively to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The
cash advances were non-interest bearing and
unsecured. On 29 June 2020, the Group repaid
the cash advances to Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

(c) On 9 March 2020, Mr. Lei Hong Wai provided
a personal guarantee to secure the Group’s
repayment obligations under a securities margin
financing facility of HK$40,000,000 granted by
a securities company. No consideration was
paid by the Company to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for
providing the personal guarantee. No security
over the assets of the Group was provided for
the peronsonal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision of
personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai
remained full force and effect.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(d) On 28 August 2020, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$1,300,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs. The cash
advance is non-interest bearing and unsecured.

As at 31 December 2020, the cash advance of
HK$1,300,000 remained outstanding.

(e) On 29 September 2020, each of Mr. Lei Hong
Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton provided
a personal guarantee to guarantee the punctual
performance by the Company’s obligations under
the HK$270,000,000 13% guaranteed secured
notes due 2021 issued by the Company on 29
September 2020 pursuant to the subscription and
note instrument agreement dated 25 September
2020. No consideration was paid by the Company
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai and/or Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai Elton for providing the personal guarantees.
No security over the assets of the Group was
provided for the personal guarantees given by
Mr. Lei Hong Wai and/or Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision of
personal guarantees by Mr. Lei Hong Wai and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton remained full force
and effect.

() On 22 October 2020, Mr. Lei Hong Wai provided
a personal guarantee to secure the Group’s
repayment obligations under a securities margin
financing facility of HK$14,000,000 granted by
a securities company. No consideration was
paid by the Company to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for
providing the personal guarantee. No security
over the assets of the Group was provided for
the personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision of
personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong Wai
remained full force and effect.

Other than as disclosed above, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director or a connected entity of a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 August 2018, It R MAFE B BEER A
7] (Beijing Bayhood No. 9 Business Hotel Company
Limited, “Bayhood No. 9 Co.”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as lender entered into the
loan agreement between Mr. Guan Jialin, a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, as borrower
and Ms. Hao Yuhui, the spouse of Mr. Guan Jialin, as
guarantor in relation to the granting of a loan in the
principal amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,532,000) for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan was interest bearing
at 9% per annum, secured by a real estate mortgage
over a residential property located in Beijing, Mainland
China (the “Property”) owned by Ms. Hao Yuhui, and
maturing on 23 August 2020. The terms of the loan
agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis
between Bayhood No. 9 Co. and Mr. Guan Jialin
with reference to terms and conditions of the loan
agreements entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

On 20 September 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co., Mr. Guan
Jialin, and Ms. Hao Yuhui entered into a supplemental
agreement relating to the amendment of the condition
precedent of the loan agreement dated 20 August
2018. Pursuant to which, the loan agreement was
conditional upon the real estate mortgage over the
Property having been duly registered with dtZJE
ZEREEES (Real Estate Bureau of Beijing Shunyi
District, the “Real Estate Bureau”) by Mr. Yuan
Huixia (as an agent of Bayhood No. 9 Co.) and Ms.
Hao Yuhui. Mr. Yuan Huixia is a then director and
legal representative of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Concurrently, on 20 September 2018, Mr. Yuan Huixia
executed an irrevocable undertaking in favour of
Bayhood No. 9 Co., pursuant to which:

(@) Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of Bayhood No.
9 Co. and together with Ms. Hao Yuhui, register
the real estate mortgage over the Property with
the Real Estate Bureau;

(b) in the event that Mr. Guan Jialin does not repay
the loan in accordance with the loan agreement,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall sell the Property on the
instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer the
proceeds in full to Bayhood No. 9 Co.;
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) in the event that Bayhood No. 9 Co. proposes to
change the mortgagee of the mortgage over the
Property or terminate the mortgage, Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall execute all necessary documents on
the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co. to effect
such change or termination; and

(d) unless on the instruction of Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
Mr. Yuan Huixia shall not change the mortgagee
of the mortgage over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao Yuhui and Mr.
Yuan Huixia was a connected person at the subsidiary
level of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as at the date of the loan agreement, the
entering into of the loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement with the undertaking)
constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors (including all the independent non-
executive directors) confirmed that the terms of the
loan agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) were fair and
reasonable, the transactions contemplated thereunder
were on normal commercial terms and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Announcements in respect of the loan agreement and
the supplemental agreement with the undertaking
were published on 20 August 2018 and 20 September
2018 respectively in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement with the undertaking)
became unconditional on 26 September 2018 and the
drawdown of the loan was made on 29 September
2018.

On 2 June 2020, Mr. Guan Jialin repaid the loan
of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$27,178,000)
together with the accrued interest thereon of
RMB599,000 (equivalent to HK$651,000).

Other than as disclosed above, the Group had no
connected transactions during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial RZEBE-EF+-A=1+—H ' XA EREHF
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to S RHERGIECIFEFEEZETERRE LM
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance R THRREHEEAQABCSBITREAZ
shows that the following shareholders had notified EEERANEARAT -
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.
Long positions HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company ARAFEREEO0.01 BT 2ZER
Number of ordinary shares held and capacity
BEZERREEARSH Percentage
Person of the issued
having share capital
a security Held by of the
interest controlled Company
Beneficial in shares  corporation(s) LY NG
Name of shareholder Notes owner RROEE ZEHAF Total BERTRA
REE8E/ 15 i BREBAA BHEZZAL BEZRE @t [EpilA
Twin Success 1and 4 583,832,803 - - 583,832,803 15.29%
1X4
Silver Pacific International Limited 1,2and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
12Kk4
Silver Pacific Development Limited 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
123K4
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1,2and 4 408,740,000 - 583,832,803 992,572,803 25.99%
THBEE 122K4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIELE 1'3Kk4
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1,3and 4 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.29%
REIELE 1'3Kk4
Kingston Finance Limited 4and 5 - 583,832,803 - 583,832,803 15.28%
SHERKERAR 185
Ample Cheer Limited 4and 5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
4K5
Best Forth Limited 4and 5 - - 583,832,803 583,832,803 15.28%
1R5
Ms. Chu Yuet Wah 4,5and 6 - - 583,832,815 583,832,815 15.28%
ZRELL 4°5K6
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

(Continued)

Notes:

Twin Success is owned as to 50% by Silver Pacific
International Limited and as to 50% by Silver Pacific
Development Limited.

Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai.

Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung
Kwok Fan.

On 5 June 2018, Twin Success pledged its 583,832,803
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of Kingston
Finance Limited as security for a loan facility.

Kingston Finance Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ample Cheer Limited, which is owned as to 80% by Best
Forth Limited and as to 20% by Insight Glory Limited. Ms.
Chu Yuet Wah owns 100% interest in Best Forth Limited
and Insight Glory Limited.

Out of the 583,832,815 ordinary shares of the Company,
12 ordinary shares are interested by Kingston Securities
Limited. Kingston Securities Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Galaxy Sky Investments Limited, which is
wholly owned by Kingston Capital Asia Limited. Kingston
Capital Asia Limited is wholly owned by Kingston Financial
Group Limited. Active Dynamic Limited owns 49.19%
interest in Kingston Financial Group Limited. Ms. Chu Yuet
Wah owns 100% interest in Active Dynamic Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company

as at 31 December 2020.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

(@) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the chairman
of the board of directors and an executive
director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited,
a company listed on GEM operated by the
Exchange (stock code: 8063) and engaged in
the provision and operation of travel business,
treasury management business, money lending
business, and provision of securities, asset
management and finance advisory services.
Therefore, Global Mastermind Holdings Limited
competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s sale of financial
assets and money lending businesses.

(b) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is the vice chairman
of the board of directors and an executive
director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange (stock code: 348) and engaged in
sales of Chinese health products, money lending
business, and investment in financial instruments.
Therefore, China Healthwise Holdings Limited
competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s sale of financial
assets and money lending businesses.

(¢) Mr. Lei Hong Wai is the chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited. Therefore, China
Healthwise Holdings Limited competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s sale of financial assets and money
lending businesses.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group
is set up by the directors of the Company on the
basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2020, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 15.53% (2019: 12.27%) and
53.03% (2019: 49.97%) of its revenue from sales of
goods or rendering of services respectively.

In 2020, the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 86.20% (2019: 64.22%) and
97.03% (2019: 93.00%) of its purchases respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, a close
associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of
the Company owns more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of Company) have an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

This report was approved by the Board on 30 March
2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman
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Biographical Details of Directors
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 53, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 19 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China,
in 2002. Mr. Lei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and associates
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin
Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
International Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is
currently the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) (stock code: 348) and an associate of
the Company. Mr. Lei was the chairman of board
of directors and an executive director of Man Sang
International Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange (stock code: 938), during the
period from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018 and 26
June 2015 to 3 April 2018 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 55, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 31
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and an associate
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Twin Success International Limited and Silver Pacific
Development Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Cheung
is the elder brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Cheung is
currently the chairman of the board of directors and
an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM operated by the
Exchange (stock code: 8063) and an associate of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is also the vice-chairman of
the board of directors and an executive director of
China Healthwise Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Exchange (stock code: 348)
and an associate of the Company. Mr. Cheung was an
executive director of Man Sang International Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange
(stock code: 938), during the period from 26 June
2015 to 3 April 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy, aged 58, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. He has over 32 years of experience
in accounting and financial control. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Administration Degree from the University of Ottawa
in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree in
Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan is the chairman
of the Finance Committee of the Board. Mr. Chan
also holds directorships in five subsidiaries of the
Company. He is the Company Secretary of the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 53, was appointed as
the non-executive director on 31 August 2011 and
redesignated as an executive director of the Company
on 18 September 2014. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s design
and sale of jewelry business. He holds directorships
in three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
has over 29 years’ working experience in the field
of architecture. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a member of The Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, Registered Architect
in Hong Kong and an Authorised Person in the List of
Architects. He obtained his Bachelor Degree of Arts
in Architectural Studies from The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor Degree in Architecture
from The University of Hong Kong in 1991. He was
selected as an awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection organised by Junior Chamber
of International Hong Kong in 2005. He has been
teaching as a part-time position in the Architecture
Subject Group of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education since September 2009 and
has been appointed as an Adjunct Lecturer since 1
January 2014. Mr. Cheung has been the director of
his own architectural practice, Oritecture Limited,
since 10 December 2009. He is the younger brother of
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive director of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 51, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 25
May 2010. Mr. Wan is a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 27 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member of
the Asia Institute of Building.

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 50, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since
31 August 2011. Mr. Ng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board and a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Board. He has over 23 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a project director in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 56, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director since 7
November 2011. Mr. Wong is the chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board and a member of
the Finance Committee of the Board. He is a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
He has over 31 years of experience in auditing,
financial management, mergers and acquisitions
gained from certain senior finance related positions
in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong,
companies listed in Hong Kong and a company listed
in the United States of America. He is currently the
finance director of a private company in Hong Kong.
Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Huanxi Media Group Limited (stock code:
1003) and China Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock
code: 348), both of the companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Exchange. Mr. Wong was an
independent non-executive director of Man Sang
International Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange (stock code: 938), during the
period from 12 July 2016 to 5 November 2018.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Bl # &3t 6 F % 0 A R A F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 107 to 283, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION
Interests in associates

As disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group held 29.77% equity interest
in Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (“Global
Mastermind”) as at 31 December 2020. Global
Mastermind and its subsidiaries (the “Global
Mastermind Group”) are accounted for by the
Group as associates of the Group using the equity
method of accounting. The carrying amount of the
Group’s interests in associates in the consolidated
statement of financial position includes an amount
of HK$104,083,000 as at 31 December 2020 in
respect of the Group’s share of net assets of the
Global Mastermind Group as at 31 December 2020
and the Group’s share of results of associates in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes an amount
of HK$76,484,000 and an amount of HK$56,000
in respect of the Group’s share of loss and share
of other comprehensive expense of the Global
Mastermind Group respectively for the year ended
31 December 2020. In applying the equity method
of accounting to the Group’s interests in the Global
Mastermind Group, the Group has recognised its
share of net assets of the Global Mastermind Group
as at 31 December 2020 and its share of loss
and other comprehensive expense of the Global
Mastermind Group for the year then ended based on
the consolidated financial statements of the Global
Mastermind Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2020.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

As disclosed in note (ii) in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, Global Mastermind received
a letter (the “Letter”) in December 2020 from Mr.
Ma Chunlong (“Mr. Ma”) which the directors of
Global Mastermind represented that the Letter was
purportedly written for and on behalf of Solution
Apex Investments Limited (“Solution Apex”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Global Mastermind, alleging, among
other things, that (a) Mr. Ma was appointed as the
sole director of Solution Apex on 1 December 2020;
and (b) Solution Apex made three payments to
three parties (the “Purported Three Parties”) with
the aggregate amount of HK$47,534,000 in July
2020 (the “Purported Payments to the Purported
Three Parties”). As represented by the directors of
Global Mastermind, neither the directors of Global
Mastermind nor Global Mastermind had known or
met Mr. Ma before Global Mastermind received the
Letter. Also, as represented by the directors of Global
Mastermind, the sole director of Solution Apex had
been Mr. Allan Yap (“Mr. Yap”) since 19 December
2014, and, until 1 December 2020 as described below,
Global Mastermind had not received any notice from
Mr. Yap about his bankruptcy; Mr. Yap was adjudged
bankrupt by the High Court of Hong Kong on 3
August 2020. In respect of the above matters, the
directors of Global Mastermind, in December 2020,
enquired the directors of Durable Gold Investments
Limited (“Durable Gold”) which is the immediate
holding company of Solution Apex. Durable Gold is a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global Mastermind.
The directors of Global Mastermind were notified,
among other things, that (a) Mr. Yap had ceased to be
the sole director of Solution Apex with effect from 1
December 2020; (b) Mr. Ma was appointed as the sole
director of Solution Apex and was also appointed as a
director of Durable Gold with effect from 1 December
2020; (c) the bank balance held by Solution Apex
with the aggregate amount of HK$47,534,000 was
utilised for the Purported Payments to the Purported
Three Parties around July 2020; and (d) the remaining
bank balance of Solution Apex of HK$11,231,000
was withdrawn entirely in August 2020 (“Purportedly
Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals”).
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

As represented by the directors of Global Mastermind,
the Purported Payments to the Purported Three Parties
and the Purportedly Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals
(collectively referred to as the “Incidents”) were carried
out without the authorisation from the directors Global
Mastermind. On 29 December 2020, the directors of
Global Mastermind had resolved to (a) remove Mr. Ma
as the director of Solution Apex and Durable Gold with
the immediate effect and replace them with Global
Mastermind’s designated persons; (b) instruct external
legal advisers to commence legal proceedings to seek
to recoup the Purported Payments from the Purported
Three Parties and the Purportedly Unauthorised
Cash Withdrawals and/or to seek damages and other
remedies from individuals and entities against whom
Global Mastermind may have causes of action as
a result of the Incidents; (c) establish an internal
investigation working team to investigate the Incidents
and to oversee the progress of the actions to be
carried out by the external legal advisers; (d) recognise
a loss in respect of the Incidents of HK$58,765,000
in the consolidated profit or loss of the Global
Mastermind Group for the year ended 31 December
2020; and (e) enter into an agreement with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose
of Global Mastermind’s entire shareholdings in Solution
Apex at a cash consideration of HK$1 with an outcome
sharing mechanism enabling Global Mastermind to
retain any amount, recovering from the actions to be
taken by the Purchaser against Mr. Yap, the Purported
Three Parties or other individual and entities involved
in the Incidents, at a distribution ratio of 99% to Global
Mastermind and 1% to the Purchaser, details of which
are set out in Global Mastermind’s announcement
dated 29 December 2020.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

Given the circumstances described above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves in respect of the causes of the
Incidents, and commercial substance and nature
of the Purported Payments to the Purported Three
Parties and the Purportedly Unauthorised Cash
Withdrawals. Any adjustments that might have been
found necessary to the loss in respect of the Incidents
of HK$58,765,000 recognised in consolidated profit
or loss of the Global Mastermind Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the related elements
in the consolidated financial statements of the Global
Mastermind Group might have material effects on the
financial position and financial performance of the
Global Mastermind Group as at and for the year ended
31 December 2020. Consequently, as the Group
accounts for its interests in the Global Mastermind
Group on an equity method of accounting basis, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves that the Group’s share
of net assets of the Global Mastermind Group as at
31 December 2020 included in the carrying amount of
the Group’s interests in associates and the Group’s
share of loss and other comprehensive expense of
the Global Mastermind Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 included in the Group’s share of
results of associates in the consolidated financial
statements were free from material misstatements.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the Group’s
share of net assets of the Global Mastermind Group
as at 31 December 2020 and share of loss and other
comprehensive expense of the Global Mastermind
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 referred
to above may have consequential significant impacts
on the loss and other comprehensive expense of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, the net
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and
the related elements and disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BRESEHE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZ1G1E

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements

BE2HGREUBHRERMET20 -

At 31 December 2020, the Group has investment
properties with carrying amounts of HK$140,000,000
and loss arising on change in fair value with an
amount of HK$19,200,000 recognised in profit or loss.
RZZBZZ2F+ZA=+—8 " SEREYEREE
#140,000,000 8 7T » WHAB#m K HE a%’z}ﬂ?tﬁﬁ@?iz%
519,200,000 & JT °

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is
determined by adopting the valuation techniques with
assumptions of market conditions and judgement.
The Group also engaged an independent qualified
professional firm of valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques.
f%lhé%¥2@$ﬁﬁh%@ﬁm&ﬁ&&ﬂﬁZﬁﬁ
RMEE - BEEETFZER -XBIUESERBEXAERD
FIERBEEE < HERIIM -

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and
the significant assumptions and judgement involved
in the valuation, valuation of investment properties is
identified as a key audit matter.

AR TR EM T ERRREEIR 2ERBREH
B REVEMLERD ABEREKSE -

BIZBENEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EENERHBRELRSENER

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s determination of the
valuation of investment properties included:
;“ﬁAEEFEkQW¥EEZ¥VEf@

e evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent
external valuers;
iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%\

BEOIRES

e assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies, key
assumptions and estimates used,
based on our knowledge of the relevant
industry and using our valuation experts;
BREESHHEBTELRBRIAESZ 2
HEER ¥Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ£ B R R
RiEFHRE ;

e challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and
REZEHEBRITEZRE
BREEEE K

=81k

e checking, on a sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.
ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁk%%i%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%

We found the management judgement and
estimates used to assess the fair value of
investment properties were supportable
by available evidence.
EERBEEBHERMATARTARED X
ZRFETDHAER B -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
HARERER(A

Impairment assessment on loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables

BREEEFEEERBEZHEFG

Refer to notes 26, 28 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

EORSHFRE M ERKRMEF26 - 28 %29 °

At 31 December 2020, the Group had loan
receivables, trade receivables and other receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, of HK$772,921,000,
HK$29,554,000 and HK$69,351,000 respectively.
Management judgement was required in assessing
and determining the recoverability of loan receivables,
trade receivables and other receivables, and adequacy
of allowance made.

RZZEZEF+ZA=+—RH - EEEZEWER-E
EWREREMERREGIREERZEERHEBRER) D
Bl &772,921,00078 JT ~ 29,554,000 JT & 69,351,000 /&
Lo RFMREBEERKER - B S EWKIER H M EKK
gzﬁjuﬁuﬁl'I#LLX&FMHH?EH%Z}EE'IEH%  EEEAEEH

In determining whether there was objective evidence
of impairment loss, the Group took into consideration
the credit history of the customers and the current
market condition which may require management
judgement.

REEREANESE2THRERK X BEEZREFZ
FETHRRETR  ER AR EARZEEREFLHE -

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of loan receivables, trade receivables, and
other receivables under the expected credit losses
model involved the use of significant judgement and
estimates.

EEHINZEFS AR EREEFEERETRRER
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HRELEERGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter (Continued)

EENERHBRERSENRE (A

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
loan receivables, trade receivables and
other receivables included:

=

EEHEEEREWRER  BHRWHERE

b ERRIR 2 BER fh 2 EREF B

discussing the Group’s procedures on
credit period given to customers with
the management;

HEEEN® SEEOEFRUEEDS
ZREF

checking, on a sample basis, the aging
profile of the loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables at
31 December 2020 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;
RMREERTHBBTHTIR =2 =
ZEFE+ZA=+-BRKER - EFRW
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)

RREELEE(E)

Impairment assessment on loan receivables, trade
receivables and other receivables (Continued)

BEXEHENEERBEZREG (&)

Refer to notes 26, 28 and 29 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively. (Continued)
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BIZBENEE

HRELEERGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter (Continued)

EENEREBRELRSENEE(F)

e inquiring management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables
past due at 31 December 2020 and
corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers
based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and
MEEBEHAN-_ZE-BEFt+tA=1+—
BFAMEEERESRBRZEBZER
URBERERBE XIS Z2EE  flURER

SRk THMERF ZHEXBBR BT
g%ﬁz BIERH %4 5 ik I H ity B
2K

e assessing the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.
AEEHEREEBERBRELRENES
M ERMEEEEETIERARE - UFE
MZEHBEERERTEME  YHAE
HERMEEBERZERRELESR B

BERAEMEER -

We found the management judgement and
estimates used to assess the recoverability
of the loan receivables, trade receivables
and other receivables and determine the
impairment provision were supportable by
available evidence.
EERREBEHERATARIGRKE
M B REWGRIE K H b FE W SR IE 7T B W R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
HREZERE)

Impairment assessment on the Group’s intangible
assets and goodwill

BREEEFEEERBEZHEFG

Refer to notes 22, 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

EDRSHREMERRMEF22 23Kk 24 -

The Group has intangible assets and goodwill of
HK$862,058,000 and HK$289,841,000 respectively
relating to the property investment segment at 31
December 2020. Management performed impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill and
concluded that no impairment loss on intangible
assets and goodwill was recognised. This conclusion
was based on value in use model that required
significant management judgement with respect to
the discount rate and the underlying cash flows,
in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure. Independent external valuations were
obtained in respect of the impairment assessment
on intangible assets and goodwill in order to support
management’s estimates.

EEER _Z_EF+-_A=+—HZEFEERBES A
# 862,058,000 7T ) 289,841,0008 T » JIEY ¥R E S
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We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill involved
the use of significant judgement and estimates.
FEEINZEEHRBRLEERBEZHEBEY RE
B RHE R L5t e
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HRELEERGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter (Continued)

EENERYHRREZSENEE (A)

Our audit procedures in relation to the
management’s impairment assessment of
intangible assets and goodwill included:
ESREEERENEERBE 2REMN L2
ERREFEE

e evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objective of the independent
external valuers;
iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ%‘%

IRES

e assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation methodologies, key
assumptions and estimates used based
on our knowledge of the relevant
industry and using our valuation experts;
REESHEBTEZRBRRBAEESE
HEER ¥Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ& %ﬁﬁ&
REETREEE

e challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the business and industry, and
REBETEHEBRITE IR
BRREEEE . K

R

e checking, on sampling basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

HMERERT R AR A RS 2 EE M RAE
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We found the management judgement

and estimates used to assess the

recoverability of cash-generating unit and

determine the impairment provision were

supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact.
As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about the carrying amount of the Group’s
interests in associates as at 31 December 2020 and
the Group’s share of results of associates for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, we are unable
to conclude whether or not the Other Information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the content of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BIZBENEE

BRBMRERRE M B RREARENSE
(&)

o HMEFTAESNBERERE  URES
FrfEEstERBEKEESSSHE

s REBERAUFELKLERSHERR
BRE TREBECENNEZRR &
ERORY EREFEKENELR
BMERRBNSHARBEREEANTEE
HEZ - ESRERBRFEEATEE
HEZ  EEFERGBEREPIRBEN
EIBREUVBHERANMEEENRK
B MRMEBEENKEERNE - AHER]
EEMER  c TENERUBEREE
BEAMAESHERRRDER
AREARBERAEEY BEXETH
BEEHERENEN -

o FMERESHMBHRR(BEENRE NE
BIH - BRBRAR  URAGRSWBR
REBEAFIHEBEIZREE -

e B BEEERSERIEBEDNUH
EXESAEENERERRE UMGESY
BHREABRER -ELEABEEE B
BERATEENERIF - FEEART
ENERBRAERIER -

IEREEEN (AP EE)ERTENG

=5
IBEREEE AR EABLRE  AEES
5

ST (ol T

B R B AR E R M ERREE

3

21

EEFHEREESREREY  HPELOE
FAEMBIENEEESR  LRFARSER
ATEYEESHE Y ENEER BT -
524 B4 B0 2 P SREN 47 B) ok 7 B B 0 42 6 (a3 )
BRI EEE -



106

Independent Auditors’ Report
5% 3L % B Bih ¥ =

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
FEeEex

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Revenue & 6 221,757 198,796
Cost of sales THEM A (84,639) (71,145)
Gross profit EF) 137,118 127,651
Investment and other income BEREMEA 7 14,092 3,583
Other gains and losses Hib =Rk EE 8 122,071 (146,597)
Selling and distribution expenses  $HERDHEFAX (3,410) (5,876)
Allowance for credit losses on THEEZEE
financial assets EERE 9 (198,470) (8,372)
Administrative expenses THFEX (95,519) (98,888)
Share of results of associates B E N RS (98,176) (32,992)
Loss from operations KEFE (122,294) (161,491)
Finance costs RMEEMA 10 (54,278) (48,891)
Loss before taxation BREL AT 1B (176,572) (210,382)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEFiEe, (FX) 11 35,547 (1,724)
Loss for the year KEEEE 12 (141,025) (212,106)
Loss for the year attributable to: U TATEEEFESIE :
Owners of the Company RABEBA (140,858) (209,148)
Non-controlling interests R ER (167) (2,958)
(141,025) (212,106)
Loss per share BRER 16
Basic (Hong Kong cents) BEARGEMW) (3.69) (5.48)
Diluted (Hong Kong cents) s OE) (3.69) (5.48)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HERREfMEZEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loss for the year REEEE (141,025) (212,106)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ZNFEEHMEEKE (%) -
for the year, net of income tax HIBRFTEH &
Items that may be reclassified HEAREEN 7 HE B 7
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEAR :
Exchange differences arising on BREBIEBELECER
translating foreign operations =X 85,822 (22,861)
Reclassification adjustments for a HEBNEK 2EHDE
foreign operation disposed of TR (508) —
Share of other comprehensive FEAE — BB E AR 2 HAth
(expense)/income of an associate 2EFAX) & (88) 345
85,226 (22,516)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  ANEEEMEEKZE
for the year, net of income tax (FX) » IBRMEBIE 85,226 (22,516)
Total comprehensive expense AEETHAMX
for the year (55,799) (234,622)
Total comprehensive expense DTATEGEAFEZEA
for the year attributable to: X :
Owners of the Company AATEBA (55,270) (231,773)
Non-controlling interests RS (529) (2,849)
(55,799) (234,622)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FREMBRAE

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE-FF+=-F=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERRXE 18 654,528 496,171
Right-of-use assets EREERE 19 244,716 226,164
Investment properties BREYE 20 140,000 159,200
Intangible assets mEEE 22 862,058 829,696
Goodwill GRS 23 289,841 272,324
Interests in associates REE AT 2R 25 177,341 272,151
Deferred tax assets EIERIBEE 41 50,642 15,974
Prepayments and other receivables &1+ 78 & H b fEUR FR 18 29 25,441 201
Loan receivables ERE R 26 161,430 480,534
2,605,997 2,752,415
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 32,993 36,515
Loan receivables EBWER 26 611,491 497,516
Trade receivables g 2 EWIE 28 29,554 39,864
Deposits, prepayments and other &% + AN FUE R HAiFEUR
receivables IH 29 96,360 126,738
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFFABRERZSH
through profit or loss EE 30 410,395 240,815
Tax recoverable ] Y [B] 77 18 - 243
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 31 54,125 140,550
1,234,918 1,082,241
Total assets BEEMAE 3,840,915 3,834,656
EQUITY =
Share capital R 32 38,196 38,196
Reserves ] 2,330,465 2,385,735
Equity attributable to owners of A FEE AEGES
the Company 2,368,661 2,423,931
Non-controlling interests IR (6,004) (5,475)
Total equity S 2,362,657 2,418,456
KIERBRERRAR
“ECEREER



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
= 3|
ReMBKRE
At 31 December 2020 R —EFE_—FF+_-H=1+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B 5 EFIE 33 7,961 5,510
Deposits received, accruals and ERZEE - B ERAREAM
other payables FEA{+FhiE 34 101,536 98,548
Receipts in advance FEUWFRIE 35,480 21,024
Tax payables Fiﬁﬁlﬁ 84,966 88,695
Bank borrowings RITIERX =% 35 162,465 155,720
Other borrowings HAu gk 36 254,315 200,000
Lease liabilities HEERE 37 3,042 742
Secured notes EREE 38 250,000 299,841
Amount due to an associate S — F'ﬂﬂﬁ%%"’l\\jf)’t 39 1,966 1,967
Amount due to a director BN —REERE 40 1,300 —
903,031 872,047
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deposit received and other g2llmRe R EM
payables FE{$2R1B 34 62,583 53,561
Lease liabilities *ﬂ%\ﬁﬁ 37 282,123 258,509
Deferred tax liabilities ERIBEE 41 230,521 232,083
575,227 544,153
Total liabilities BEAE 1,478,258 1,416,200
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 3,840,915 3,834,656
Net current assets RBEEFRE 331,887 210,194
Total assets less current BEEABERRBAERE
liabilities 2,937,884 2,962,609
The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 REMEHRREI107E283ECR=ZE=—F

to 283 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed

on its behalf by:

ZACZHHARESSHARBRENE > YHT

PIATHEREE

Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah Billy
TifE PR G2 2=
Director Director
EF EE
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the WEMt 2 I sE R NS 8 sRFT o —3p o

consolidated financial statements.
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premium

it RiER FLCT BiEn At i EXEE REEA Mt FERER it
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr 73 i i i -2 &R 7ER bz 7En 7Er
(Note g) (Note b) Note ¢)
(Hia) (Hie) (o)
At 1 January 2019 H=Z-nE-5-A 38,196 1,807,051 17,761 404,663 20228 9,063 (78,602 437,344 2,655,704 (2.626) 2,653,078
Loss for the year KEERE = - = = = o = (209,148 (209148 (2958 1210
Other comprehensive expense for the year  ZEEEH2ERE
Share of ther comprehensive ElRENT2E02E
income of associates s - - - - - - k] - 345 - 345
Exchange differences arising on BESNsHEL,
ranslating foreign operations EfZE - - - - - - (22,970) - (22,970) 109 (22.861)
Total comprehensive expense forthe year ~ AEE2ERRAR - - - - - - (22,625) (209,149) (231719 26%) [234622)
Release on lapse of equity-setted WRELE R
share-based payment XiEEE - - - - - (9,063 - 9,063 - - -
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-AE+2AZT-RR
1 January 2020 E28E-f-R 38,19 1,807,051 17,761 404,663 20,28 - (101,227) 237,259 2,428,931 (5,475 2,418,456
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - (t40858) (140856 (167 (141,029)
Other comprehensive expense for the year  REEEH2ERR
Share of other comprehensive expense Bl -EEEAT A
of an associate AERX - - - - - - (68) - 1] - (89
Reclassffcation adjustments for a BHESNER B
foreign operation disposed of HERE - - - - - - (606) - (5068) - (508)
Exchange differences arising on BESNsHEL,
ranslating foreign operations EiZE - - - - - - 8,184 - 8,184 (362) 85,822
Total comprehensive evpense forthe year ~ AEE2EHREE - - - - - - 86,588 (140,856) (85,210 (629) (65,799)
Derecognition of equity component MERI-BEELT
of convertiole bonds of fiaTERES
an associate ZERER - - - - (1,199) - - 1,193 - - -
A3t December 2020 H-8-gE+-pz1- WG L0 T M 100 - RN W W B4 200
KERBRERRAT
—2-2FEyg

111
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeRagEnx

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium to retained profits
pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30 April 2008
and 12 December 2011.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot make a distribution out
of the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than its liabilities.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the
fair value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in equity-
settled share-based payment reserve.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEReRE

2020 2019
—E-RE —E-hE
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
maF FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Loss before taxation BREIAIE A (176,572) (210,382)
Adjustments for: BT HEGEHH% .
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEHE 12, 22 19,895 20,092
Allowance for credit losses on loan EHRERZEERERE
receivables 9 197,432 4,474
Allowance for credit losses on other HithEKMRIBZ EEFE
receivables B 9 723 3,842
Allowance for credit losses on trade EZRWHEZEERR
receivables BB 9 315 56
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREZITE
equipment 12, 18 22,885 22,994
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRREEZNE 12 2,773 2,586
Dividend income REWA 7 (330) (670)
(Gain)/loss arising on change in BATETFABERZ
fair value of financial assets at TREELATEEZY
fair value through profit or loss EEz(Wz)/HE 8 (140,509) 80,487
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB ARz iz 8 (947) -
Interest expenses MNERX 10 54,278 48,891
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFIEWA 7 (66) (43)
Interest income on other receivables HtEW B 2 FI2 WA 7 (1,691) (2,554)
Loss arising on change in fair value BRENELNTFEEE
of investment properties EEZEE 8, 20 19,200 16,400
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEY¥ - BMERRXEZ
and equipment Ee () 8 8 (72)
Loss of inventories FEE®E 12 4,914 -
Share of results of associates i AN e 98,176 32,992
Written-off of property, plant and WEEME - BRERZE
equipment 8 177 49,782
Xig



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeReR=E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hE
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Mzt FET FET
Operating cash inflows before EEESHEAZKE
movements in working capital BE&ARA 100,661 68,875
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (M, (1,124) 857
Decrease in loan receivables W ERRD 7,697 186,215
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & ZEWRERD / (#n) 9,995 (6,946)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments B BAREREM
and other receivables FEWRFIER A 6,974 48,923
Increase in financial assets BATESABRER
at fair value through profit or loss ZEBMEELM (29,071) (87,415)
Increase in trade payables B 5 EAFRIEE M 2,035 1,992
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received, TUIRE - B EH
accruals and other payables R EAREM B M,
R ) 8,264 (41,735)
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance TEWFIERE I, (GE4 ) 12,409 (36,239)
Cash generated from operations EERECZRAS 117,840 134,527
Tax paid EHE (3,002) -
Net cash generated from operating REFEREEZ
activities ReF8 114,838 134,527
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Dividend received 2R E 7 330 670
Bank interest received 2 RRITFI S 7 66 43
Interest on other receivables received 2 U E BN IE 2 FIL 8 2,472 2,026
Net cash outflow from disposal of a HE—EHRBAREE
subsidiary ZEERLFHE 43 (116) -
Payments for acquisition of interest in BUEBER —EBE AT Z
an associate BRI (3,453) -
Proceed from disposal from property, HENE BMEKREMS
plant and equipment I - 97
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE  MERERE
equipment and investment properties RIREME (144,801) (27,021)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFAZESTE (145,502) (24,189)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeReRER
E_FBEf =+ —AILEE

2020 2019
—E-BF —E-hE
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Mzt FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERIBRIE 82,214 81,766
Proceeds from other borrowings HAib BT E 54,315 =
Advance from an associate —EBE DR BN - 1,967
Advances from directors EEBR 2,500 45,000
Repayment to a director BERT—RES (1,200) (95,000)
Advance from a shareholder —BREEBR - 7,200
Repayment to a shareholder BRTF-ERR - (7,200)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITERER (75,469) (83,247)
Repayment of secured notes Fﬁmﬂiﬁﬂ (50,000) -
Repayment to an associate — R E D RER (1) -
Repayment of lease liabilities *ﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬁn (1,991) (510)
Interest paid ERFE (61,322) (56,195)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEAZRE BHE (50,954) (106,219)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRASEEMWOAL)
and cash equivalents BinFEE (81,618) 4,123
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEBIz2EERES
beginning of the reporting period Z£EY 140,550 140,628
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREHIFE
changes (4,807) (4,201)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end BREHRZEERES
of the reporting period ZEY 54,125 140,550
Analysis of the balances of cash BeRBREEEY
and cash equivalents ERRON
Cash at bank and on hand BITRFERE 31 54,125 140,550
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the M 2 BN GRE MRk - -

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office, and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries (together with the
Company, referred to as the “Group”) are sale
of financial assets, property investment, money
lending, and design and sale of jewelry products.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’
Report of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Definition of Material

The application of the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2°
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020}
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries with change of control

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-
use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and a
contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition policies

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of jewelry products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Dividend

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.

Sale of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Sale of financial assets at FVTPL is
accounted for on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiZ —FE_FEF+ _F=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition policies
(Continued)

(vi) Membership income

Membership entrance fees represent non-
refundable upfront registration fee for
lifetime entitlement by members for using
the golf facilities and enjoying certain
privileges in other facilities in the club
and are recognised on a reducing balance
method for which the membership is granted
and the reducing rate is based on historical
usage pattern of existing members.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from “loss before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
investment properties are depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiZ —FE_FEF+ _F=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

Golf courses 3.33%
Buildings 3.33%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%-33.33%
Office equipment 10%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 10%-25%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-33.33%
Plant and machineries 10%-33.33%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception
or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exception to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

L any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

TESTREBREE)

HE (&)
EEBEREBEA (E
RO E R E

BN AREEEZRE RS E B I H
HEFIFARR  WRQIFEDNREF
B RIXREIRH A FEIBERR
?‘j—gﬁl\*ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ’\ W AEREEEZ

HEEE
REERKBBEY  AEERZBARTH
HENHRRERIRGAEHEEE - i

HERSHWARHEUERE  AXEES
EMEERKE RPN EEERARITE
HENRWRE -

HENRBRE
e RBEEMNR(BEEEMNEEMNR)
HAEMEREEER ;

e HRTEHMLEMELNFIKG A
ERAZEHR L RS F BN E
HMEN

e REFMKEEERBEHEIGHNS
26 ;

s MASKESEBETERERE A
BEENTHEE K

e NEHRMAEESTHERERL
IEFAER - RILAENHEEIMR -

REAKBENE  HEEERBAEER
REENREHRAE -



136

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

The Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-
lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease components on the basis of
their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBERME#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HEE)

The Group as lessor (Continued) AEFEREBA (E)
Refundable rental deposits AR E# %

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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Intangible assets BREE
Intangible assets acquired separately BUIKEZREEE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiZ —FE_FEF+ _F=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of
CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiZ —FE_FEF+ _F=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or
a group of CGUs) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out or weighted
average method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as cost of sales in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend incomes which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue or investment and other
income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

L the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& B 3 8 Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer

credit impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are

measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the
“Investment and other income” line item.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including loan receivables, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the end of the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed on an individual basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 180 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes
of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
(i) a trade receivable is more than 240 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate, and (ii) the credit
quality of a loan receivable is classified
as underperforming or non-performing in
accordance with the Group’s credit rating
system.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. IEREEERMEME)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE &)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEZE(E)

(iv) Write-off policy (iv) HEEBCR

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of (i) trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
270 days past due, (ii) loan receivables,
when the credit quality are classified as
non-performing in accordance with the
Group’s credit rating system, and (iii) other
receivables, when the other receivables
become credit-impaired financial assets,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the
amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loan
receivables, trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or equity instruments according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, amount due to an
associate, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
amount due to a director, lease liabilities, and
secured notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuers to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
Group’s obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of “exchange reserve”
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in
a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under
“Investment and other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred. 5% of relevant income vests
immediately upon the completion of service in
the relevant service period, while the remaining
portion vests in accordance with the MPF
Scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the PRC
is to make the specified contributions under the
schemes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-
based payments determined at the grant date
without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (equity-settled share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based
payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(1)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below),
that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
The Group has not recognised any deferred tax
on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Principal versus agent consideration
(principal)

The Group engages in trading of jewelry
products. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the
Group reassessed whether the Group should
continue to recognise revenue on gross basis
based on the requirements in HKFRS 15. The
Group concluded that the Group acts as the
principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to
the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods and the Group has inventory risk.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Assessment of economic useful lives of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
asset and intangible assets other than goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives other than goodwill are depreciated or
amortised over their economic useful lives.
The assessment of estimated useful lives is a
matter of judgement based on the experience
of the Group, taking into account factors such
as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and
tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of
assets, changes to the estimates used can result
in variations in their carrying amounts.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end
of each reporting period or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. An estimation of
the value in use of the CGU involves estimating
the future cash flows expected to arise from
its continuing use and applying the appropriate
discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the CGU.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

At 31 December 2020, one of the listed equity
securities in Hong Kong held by the Group has
been suspended from trading on the Exchange
since 27 November 2017 and no unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets are available.
The fair value measurement of the suspended
listed equity securities is classified under Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy and uses a valuation
technique based on significant unobservable
inputs. Judgement and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair value of the suspended
listed equity securities. See note 51 for further
discussion.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the estimated
amount for which properties could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
or the valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates and assumptions. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has
exercised their judgements and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there be any
changes in assumptions due to change of market
conditions, the fair value of the investment
properties will be adjusted accordingly.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

ECL for financial assets

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables
based on various factors including the
aging of the receivables, historical write-off
experience and forward looking information.
The identification of impairment of receivables
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying amounts of receivables and the
allowance for credit losses on receivables is
recognised in the years in which such estimates
have been changed. See note 51 for further
discussion.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customers’ taste and competitors’
actions in response to severe industry cycle. The
directors reassess the estimations at the end of
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s operating segments have been
determined based on the information reported to
the Chairman of the board of directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
The Group currently has four operating segments:

(@) Property
investment

Leasing of rental properties

(b) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets at
assets FVTPL
(c) Money lending Money lending

(d) Sale of jewelry Design and sale of jewelry
products products

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

reoE

AEBzEESMERBEAESSERE
(METEKERRENBREZEHERTE -
BRER T AETMERERELREE
RE - AEBEEXBDHRBEER
MERFRHEZERRBEBERE L
EE - AREREE s MERHERAK
MRS 2 REE MR E - HE R KO &
BRREMEESH - ARERBAN

BEE DR

(@ MERE GEN-EENEEYES

(b) HETHMEE HERAFVE

FFABERZ
) fBE BE
(d HEKRBEEMR RTRESHKE

Em



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 8 MR R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment
revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other
selected financial information for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 by operating

segments are as follows:

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 December 2020

llg % /ﬂ-\ %B (Ilz'é-.;)

BE-ZE_ZFERKR-_ZFE—-—HN&E+=H
=S+—BLEEE > AEERLESHE
ﬁzﬂiﬁ‘%%a ¥B - BE -8
BEREMEREVHERZINAT :

2 R EE
BE_F_SFFf_A=1—-HILFE

Sale of Sale of

Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products Consolidated

HE HE
NERE tREE &8 KEER &e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue HkE 26,868 51,259 74,361 69,269 221,757
Segment (loss)/profit 2H(EE) /8 (49,979) 191,807 (148,768) (13,108) (20,043)
Interest income on bank deposits  #/THERZFERA 66
Unallocated corporate expenses KA E %R (4,141)
Finance costs AMEER (54,278)
Share of results of associates ~ EfEBEAREE (98,176)
Loss before taxation BREEIEE (176,572)
Income tax credit FERER 35,547
Loss for the year TEERE (141,025)
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ReEDER(E)
BE—ZE-NFFt-A=1+—HILFE

Sale of Sale of

Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated

HE HE
NERE tHEE B& KEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
FiEx FAT FET TEx FET
Segment revenue 2k 25,549 791 104,034 68,422 198,796
Segment (loss)/profit 2E(EE) /B (119,006) (79,272) 72,496 74 (125,708)
Interest income on bank deposits R/ TERZFERA 43
Unallocated corporate expenses ER PEREERY (2,834)
Finance costs BMEER (48,891)
Share of results of associates ~ JEfiHE A T%E (32,992)
Loss before taxation BB AIEE (210,382)
Income tax expense Frigbims (1,724)

Loss for the year rEEFR

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

Segment results represent (loss incurred)/profit
earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of
associates, certain investment and other income,
certain other gains and losses, finance costs and
income tax credit/(expense). This is the measure
reported to the Chairman of the Board for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2020

e E)

ITHEERAE

R-E-FF+-/A=1+—H

Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products Consolidated
HE HE
NERE CHEE =g REER g4
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn A TEn T
Segment assets THEE
— Hong Kong - 5B 371,039 423,033 815,560 60,533 1,670,165
— The PRC il 1,980,923 - - - 1,980,923
2,351,962 423,033 815,560 60,533 3,651,088
Unallocated corporate assets KPELEEE 189,827
Consolidated total assets GREESE 3,840,915
Segment liabilities AHaE
— Hong Kong - 5B (116,039) (66,427) (4,372) (49,921) (236,759)
— The PRC - HE (768,137) - - - (768,137)
(884,176) (66,427) (4,372) (49,921)  (1,004,896)
Unallocated corporate liabilites ~ k2B %81 (473,362)
Consolidated total liabilities GRRaRAE

(1,478,258)

KIEHM IR EERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) K& I (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEEREE(E)
At 31 December 2019 R-BE-NFE+ZHA=+—H
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated
o _#E HE
NERE SREE BE& KEER e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE7x FiEx FiE7 FiErx FiEx
Segment assets AHEE
— Hong Kong - &4 389,477 255,696 1,098,870 73,927 1,817,970
— The PRC - 1 1,742,041 - - - 1,742,041
2,131,518 255,696 1,098,870 73,927 3,560,011
Unallocated corporate assets RABESEE 274,645
Consolidated total assets ReBEA 3,834,656
Segment liabilities PHEE
— Hong Kong - &8 (119,300) (12,111) (9,766) (43,734 (184,911)
— The PRC ~ 3 (700,605) - - ~  (700,605)
(819,905) (12,111) (9,766) (43,734)  (885,516)
Unallocated corporate liabilites KB A EE( (530,684)
Consolidated total liabilities SEAEe (1,416,200)
For the purposes of monitoring segment BERASRREERITELEER -

performance and allocating resources between

segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in associates,

certain deposits, prepayments,

other

receivables and cash and cash equivalents

that are not attributable to individual
segments. Assets used jointly by individual
segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual segments;
and

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other borrowings,
secured notes, certain accruals and other
payables, certain tax payables, amount
due to an associate, and amount due to a
director that are not attributable to individual
segments. Liabilities for which segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to
segment assets.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5.

e E)

Hit o EBE

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_S_FF_A=1—HAUFE

Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated
#E #E
nERE tHEE f& KEER &e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FATL FATL FATL FATL FATL
Amount included in the measure of segment  $tB2H(EE) / RRRIHEE
(loss)/profit and segment assets it Az S8
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FENE - BERRE 156,894 - - 156,901
Allowance for credit losses on loan receivables W& 2 EEEBRE - - (197,432) - (197,432)
Allowance for credit losses on other AtENE FEFERE
receivables (723) - - - (723)
Allowance for credit losses on trade BARYEZ EERERR
receivables - - - (315) (319)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEEH (19,895) - - - (19,895)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1%  BERKE2ITE (22,862) - - (23) (22,885)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZNE (2,477) - - (296) (2,773
Dividend income BREWA - 330 - - 330
Gain arising on change in fair value of financial  RATEF AERRZEHEE
assets at FVTPL APEEBELE UG - 140,509 - - 140,509
Government grants HIEY 537 - 216 988 1,741
Interest income on other receivables RS EZFIEHA 1,691 - - - 1,691
Loss arising on change in fair value of RENFLTEZBEEZER
investment properties (19,200) - - - (19,200)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERREZEE
equipment 8) - - - 8)
Loss of inventories FEER - - - (4,914) (4,914)
Membership Income SHENA 1,653 - - - 1,653
Written-off of property, plant and equipment 41  BERRE (17) - - - (17
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 =FE=ZFF{+ -H=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. REQI(E)
Other segment information (Continued) HibhpBER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 Br—F-NF+-A=+—HILEFE
Sale of Sale of
Property financial Money jewelry
investment assets lending products  Consolidated
$#HE H#HE
NERE SREE #g hEER &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FEr FEr FEr FAr
Amount included in the measure of segment B2 % (EE) / ERRI Y
(loss)/profit and segment assets BEMTAZEE
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FEN% - BERRE 39,168 - - 17 39,185
Allowance for credit losses on loan receivables EWEH zEEFREE - - (4.474) - (4474
Allowance for credit losses on other Rt E EREERE
receivables (3,842) - - - (3,842)
Allowance for credit losses on trade BARUSE EERERE
recelvables - - - (56) (56)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEEH (20,092) - - - (20,092)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BERRBZHE (22,936) - - (58) (22,994)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets REREEZNE (2,502) - - (84) (2,586)
Dividend income REBA - 670 - - 670
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERZ A KR
equipment 2 70 - - 72
Interest income on other receivables Rt RRFEZFERA 2,554 - - - 2,554
Loss arising on change in fair value of financial  RATEFABEKZSRERE
assets at FVTPL ATERBEECER - (80,487) - - (80,487)
Loss arising on change in fair value of RENELVEZDELZFR
investment properties (16,400) - - - (16,400)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment  Hi#¥1% « BERRfE (49.782) - - - (49,782)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external
customers and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location are detailed

5. K& E)

=& R

AEBEEREBRTEHEE - A5H
pBNUEISRAHIIETF 2RER
EBRHFRDEEZERFIWT ¢

below:
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
REHNEE 2 WE ERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEE ZE-hEFE ZEBEZEf —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEr FiET FEr FET
Australia BN 495 254 - -
Europe BUM 11,747 14,940 - -
Hong Kong E/% 187,742 158,978 537,512 661,311
The PRC R 21,773 20,454 1,833,599 1,594,596
The United States of America EFBERH - 4,170 - -

221,757 198,796 2,371,111 2,255,907

Note:

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, other

receivables and loan receivables.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue

of the Group are as follows:

FRBEETBRELERREE - EMERRR
REWERR -

FBRIEEFZEHR

REFFzZWEREBRFEQASEER
WEHEBER10% A LT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Customer 1° EE 1 N/ARE R 24,393
Customer 2' =FE 2! 34,430 23,806
Customer 32 BFE 32 N/ATRE R ¢ 20,454
Customer 43 EFE 48 29,916 —

N N

Revenue from sale of jewelry products.

Revenue from property investment.

Revenue from sale of financial assets.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

REFEKRBER 2K -
REAMERE 2 Wi o
REFETHERE 2N -
HEREIEEAREAREER10% A
J: o

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE 6. W=

172

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-BF —FAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Disaggregation of revenue from BERAMKREER
contracts with customers within EISRKEEANREEFFE
the scope of HKFRS 15 BNz WFEMHA
Disaggregated by types of goods and 1#E R EREEE D IF
services
— sale of jewelry products — HEKREER 69,269 68,422
Revenue from other sources kB H M RFz W=
— sale of financial assets at — HERAFEABER
FVTPL, net ZERMEE T 51,259 791
— interest income on loans — BERFEWA 74,361 104,034
— rental income — AW A 26,868 25,549
Total revenue Al 221,757 198,796
Timing of revenue recognition WEER 2
— a point in time — BRE-EEH 69,269 68,422
— over time — R—EBREERA — -
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHZWE
customers 69,269 68,422

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts

disclosed in the segment information.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. Wz=(#)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-BF ZFAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sale of jewelry products HEKRBEEM 69,269 68,422
Revenue from contracts with REFEFEH2WEFE
customers 69,269 68,422
Sale of financial assets at FVTPL, net $§E&ERAFETABRRZ
TREE  FHE 51,259 791
Interest income on loans ERFE U A 74,361 104,034
Rental income HEWA 26,868 25,549
Total revenue Ul E 221,757 198,796
Revenue from sale of financial assets at FVTPL is REHEERLAFEFTABERZSME
recorded on a net basis, details of which are as EZWERFHEEEANR  #B0T
follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial REHEERAFEFABER
assets at FVTPL ZEmEEZFERE 127,460 69,451
Carrying amounts of financial assets = CE&ZEAFEABHEE
at FVTPL sold plus transaction costs Z&@EEZREESR M
R5EH (76,201) (68,660)
51,259 791

KERMRATRAR  47g
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= &
FeEMBEERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE
7. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 7. RERHMEKA
For the year ended
31 December
BE+T-A=1t—HLEE
2020 2019
g g 223 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividend income BB A 330 670
Government grants B &R 1,741 -
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZFE WA 66 43
Interest income on other receivables ~ HEUFIE 2RI B WA 1,691 2,554
Membership income FEKRA 1,653 -
Sundry income FEIEUA 8,611 316
14,092 3,583
During the current year, the Group recognised RAEAFER  AEERIAGEFTEIM
government grants of HK$1,741,000 in respect EEHBEM 2B ER1,741,0008
of COVID-19 related subsidies, of which Jt» H 71,661,000 jt & 80,0008 T
HK$1,661,000 relates to Employment Support PREEBRFNEENEESITH
Scheme and HK$80,000 relates to the Retail HZ[RBEIFERIZEXEYTE ]
Sector Subsidy Scheme under the Anti-epidemic 5@ -
Fund provided by the Hong Kong government.
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HttWzmKREE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Gain/(loss) arising on change in RAFEFABGZRZ
fair value of financial assets ERMEEATFEES
at FVTPL EE W (58) 140,509 (80,487)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —E B AR 2 W 947 —
Loss arising on change in fair value of REVWEAFEEBHEE
investment properties ZEE (19,200) (16,400)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BMERSZHEZ
plant and equipment (B518) W= (8) 72
Written-off of property, plant and W - MERRKE
equipment (177) (49,782)
122,071 (146,597)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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9. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES ON 9.

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 8 MR R T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

FINANCIAL ASSETS

TRMEEZFEBRRES

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

2020 2019
—E-THF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Allowance for credit losses on loan ERERZEEEE
receivables: BiE
— 12 months ECL — 12@RFEHREERE 11,402 4,474
— lifetime ECL not credit-impaired — WEREEREBE2ZHER
SEE#E 62,303 —
— lifetime ECL credit-impaired — FEREBEZZHEHREE
EE 123,727 —
197,432 4,474
Allowance for credit losses on other HihEWRFIEZ EEEE
receivables: B
— 12 months ECL — 128 R FEHEEEE 723 3,842
Allowance for credit losses on trade B RWFIEZEERFE
receivables BiE 315 56
198,470 8,372

FINANCE COSTS

10. MEEH

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-ZA=+t—BHLHFE

2020 2019
—E-RF  ZFAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFRZHE 3,528 4,321
Interest on other borrowings HtERZFE 18,357 16,000
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEZFE 12,867 12,947
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBZHEIER 28,105 24,231
62,857 57,499
Less: interest on lease liabilities BT ABEREE

capitalised in the cost RAZEERLEE
of qualifying assets BEFE (8,579) (8,608)
54,278 48,891

KB R A RAT
By Y L
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FeMBGwERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 11. IS8R (FAX)
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-BA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-BF —FAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREHR
— current tax — AHEABIIE - (5,721)
— over provision in prior years — BEAFEBERE 36 20
36 (5,701)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIEE SR
— current tax — ZNERBIIE (2,768) (914)
Deferred tax credit (note 41) IEERIEIK % (M2t 41) 38,279 4,891
35,547 (1,724)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above

HK$2,000,000 for both years.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BREMEAHANEHZFNE 2EKE
E = B2 i) & 2,000,000 T % A R
8.25% K9 i X HH » ™ i 82,000,000
BITRMAE IR 16.5% N REF « TF
ERARFEFEHERFENEEREE 2R
NAS 4 BIR16.5% 2 8 — B REH o

At RMEFE BEBEMNEH ZE
2,000,000 % 7T 2 fi 5t F& 3R B & A LA
8.25% =t & » M i# 482,000,000 T 2
fhEERBUR A L 16.5% 5T & ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
(Continued)

11. FIEHER(FX) (&)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

REFECEFRSHRETLCEMBH
FENDREEFREBHEERREG - FEMH
BRAARMEFEZHELE25% °

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year
can be reconciled to the loss before taxation
per consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:

AEERBBER) MXEKRSER
RAZBRBABEEROT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Loss before taxation FRBL A& 1B (176,572) (210,382)

Taxation at domestic income tax rate  LUE it FF 158 B5t#i (30,955) (42,229)
Tax effect of income not taxable for B L BARBWA 2B

tax purpose 2E (33,028) (769)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  Fi# LA I fIF B 2 B 7§

for tax purpose 2E 23,943 33,305
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not R ATFIEEIE 25

recognised 2t 4,529 11,602

Tax concession (Note) BB E(E) - (165)

Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (36) (20)

Income tax (credit)/expense FIEH(ER) X (35,547) 1,724
Note: BEE -

WHEERBERERMAGIFRESHEGERES
ZBEEE -

It represents the tax concession from the enactment of
the two-tiered Profits Tax rates by the Inland Revenue
Department.

KERMRATRAR 477
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. XFEFR
Loss for the year has been arrived at after AEEBEDIRGTA) AT EEE
charging/(crediting): B/

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLHFE

2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E
(included in administrative expenses) (st A{THBIX) 19,895 20,092
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERE € -
— audit services — B 829 976
— non-audit services — EREARE 189 207
1,018 1,183
Cost of inventories sold BEFEE 2R 69,556 56,149
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREREZINE
equipment 22,885 22,994
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEZITE 2,773 2,586
Net foreign exchange loss [EREEFE 67 77
Loss of inventories (included in FEEE(GTAITHREX)
administrative expenses) 4,914 -
Rental expenses in respect of short- EHHEE - HERX
term leases 80 290
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BRESHE) :
emoluments):
— salaries and allowances — HE&RER 41,887 46,621
— discretionary bonuses — BIBTEAL 2,298 4,910
— contributions to retirement benefits — ERARIEFFTEIE X
scheme 1,109 2,354
45,204 53,885
Gross rental income from investment HREREVERELEES
properties and operating rights el A (26,868) (25,549)
Less: direct operating expenses B ERAEEESRAZ
incurred for investment REVMERKEEE
properties and operating ErHEKERE
rights that generated rental
income during the year 15,083 14,996
direct operating expenses FRIE\|EEHESKA
incurred for investment ZREVERKER
properties and operating EECEHELSERX
rights that did not generate
rental income during the year - 617
(11,785) (9,936)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13. EERTHRER ZME
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or FRAENSIENEARAESRITHE
payable to the directors and the chief executive B2 & 4% 524,792,0008 T (==
officer of the Company during the year was — L% : 26,692,000 T ) ¥ 5t Al 1T
HK$24,792,000 (2019: HK$26,692,000) and MY |- BE-E-_ZTER_ZET—N&E
was included in “administrative expenses”. +TZA=T—HLEE FFFRTH
The emoluments of each director and the BB HERBEALTRAREEA
chief executive officer for the years ended 31 MGG ENT -
December 2020 and 2019 disclosed pursuant to
the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance are as follows:
Contributions
Salaries and Discretionary to retirement
Fees allowances bonuses benefit schemes Total
He FeREN HERA RARAEMH &3t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z3C%F ZB-NF CBCBE CE-NE ZBIRE CE-AF CBC%E CE-NE CBCRE CE-nE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fér  FEr  TEx  FEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  FEr TErT FEn
Executive directors #i7EE
M. Lei Hong Wai, Eiley
the chief executive officer (THEE) - - 8,400 8,400 700 1,400 18 18 9,118 9,818
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REELE - - 8,400 8,400 700 1,400 18 18 9,118 9,818
Mr. Chan Kin Wah Billy Riztt - - 4,800 4,800 400 800 18 18 5,218 5,618
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEBLE 120 120 840 840 - 100 18 18 978 1,078
Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FAFLE 120 120 - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EEREE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments Hess 480 480 22,440 22,440 1,800 3,700 72 72 24,792 26,692

The executive directors’ and the chief executive
officer’s emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive officer of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

LERRZBTESRTRES M <
AREREEFARARFEBSHIEM
BB <ME  LABIYFHNTEEHE
REEERAESRERB2ME -

RBE-Z-_ZFF+-_A=1t—HILHF
ER WEARQNBESHTHARKE
FEBEHREEMHE 2LZH(ZZE—N
FLE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any
of the directors and the chief executive officer as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
as compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

The executive directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on their
duties and responsibilities in the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, no executive directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS IN WHICH DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY HAVE MATERIAL
INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.
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13. EERITHRARZHNE (&)

14,

REBEZE-_F-_BF+-A=+t—-HLHF
ER AEEREQEANESRITHA
AXNMESERRSI KRS MBAEEH
g%ﬁ)éi%ﬁb  REBBWE(CE -

KABDHATEERTHRABREREZETR
A DIRBESEAREAEEZBERER
BE -

REE-E_BER_F-hET+_A
SH-ALEER  BEATESRE
ARABRES AR BEEAEE R
BREBRE -

BRESTEFRENGEEMBRERME

AESHAEARERZRS
é Ill\J

BREGEMBHRKRME49BEEI - BB
AARESHESHERAQIAFARQ
BMEMME AR TR LEAKREEER
B 36 A ¥R 5 B R = 3R 5 A 9 A ) B R 4D
FECEARRG  ZERGHNDERE
RIEL o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year included three directors (2019:
three directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2019: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor the chief executive officer of the
Company are as follows:

15. AR aHES

rEBREER2EEEHEEYLSE
R=ZBE(ZE-hLF =8E%) -
BECHEHBREEMBHR/RRMT3
WE - BTWMA(ZE—NF  ®WB)IL
IARRBEBSHITHRAB 2GS HES
ZEEFEBEOT -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019

—ECEE —E-hEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances E e =1 2,532 2518

Discretionary bonuses BI1ETEAL 211 422
Contributions to retirement benefits BB R B

scheme 36 36

2,779 2,976

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MENFUTHEZRSHIEALAE
EREREABUT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2020 2019
—E-2F —ZE-hF
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 Z#8TZE 1,000,000 T - -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7t
%£1,500,00038 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 &7t
%2,000,000387T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, none of the non-director and the non-chief
executive highest paid employee was granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group under the share options scheme of the
Company.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

RBE-Z-_ZER-_Z—-—HIEF+=A
=S+—HLEFER BEFESEKFT
BB FEEREBEAQLABREST
B EHAEE C REERBIRE -

BRETEFFENGS U BERERM T
46
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_FH#{+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BRE#E
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per AAREEAEEEREAREBEEE
share attributable to the owners of the Company TiR B AT 8BS & -
is based on the following data:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1t—BLEE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt EEREAREEEE
diluted loss per share FPT R 2 B8
Loss for the year attributable to KAREEANEBLEAFEE
owners of the Company B8 (140,858) (209,148)
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-B=1+—-HLEE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
’000 ‘000
FiE FiE
Number of ordinary shares EBREE

Weighted average number of ordinary RiTEEREARR#EER

shares for the purpose of basic and R FT A 2 B AR A

diluted loss per share 198

3,819,606 3,819,606

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2020 was presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2019 does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options since their assumed exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

17. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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17.

REBE-Z-EF+ZA=+—HLHF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z = FE-FF+ -F=+—HIFE&E

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - BMEKRZE
Furniture
Golf ~ Construction Plantand  Leasehold Office Motor and
Building courses  inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total

fr AEXEE  ERIE  RBRRAR RENRRE  BOEIR nE GARKE it
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSOOO RSO
&1 i &7 i - i - - TEn

Cost
At 1 January 2019 R-2-15-A-8 307,366 63,651 77,051 1,79 wom 26% 3,905 5518 596,196
Additions during the year ~ AEEATE = = 3,513 674 2687 305 = 6 39,185
Disposals HE = = = (39 - - (1,050) (565) (1,649)
Wrtten-off fis - = (£9,762) = 2,381) = = = (52,169)
Exchange alignment EiE (3559) (1412 (1,349) (39) (134 (3) (62 (3) (1215
At31 December 2019and ~ R=F-7,
1 January 2020 tZR=+-8R
ZECRE-f- 393,813 62239 61,434 2307 43849 2002 279 4T 5746
Addtions during the year ~ AEERTE - - 156,674 - - 7 20 - 156,901
Derecognition upon disposel ~ WHE-BHEL T
of asubsidiary (rote 43 RLBEHE49) - - - - - (291) (662) (164) (1,117)
Disposals HE - - - ) - - - (155) (199)
Written-off fi# - - - - - - - (244) (244)
Exchange alignment R 10230 4,026 12720 19 2,165 8 141 64 29573
At 31 December 2020 H-5-8k
tZBz1-8 404,043 66265 230,828 2497 46,014 2,102 2,492 4428 750,269
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3fHTERHE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-1E-F-B 31,549 907 - 1016 13570 1110 162 2,485 60435
Charge for the year REETH 15,066 208 - U 3,279 675 5% 307 2,99
Elminated upon disposals ~ HiEREH - - - 2%) - - (1,050) [548) (1,624)
Eliminated upon writen-off  iAE41H - - - - 2,381) - - - 2.381)
Exchange alignment ] (636) (248) - (3) (263) 20) @) 19 (1,241)
At31 December 2019and  W=E-7E
1 January 2020 +2A=1-AR
ZZ-%%-5-B 45979 11,639 - 1,200 14,205 1,765 1,080 2315 78183
Charge for the year REEHE 14,898 2,781 - 276 35640 513 48 2% 2,885
Eiminated upon disposal of R E-EHEATE
asubsidiary fnofe 43) i) - - - - - (259) (174) 8) (17)
Elminated upon disposals B ER#H - - - ) - - - (150) (190)
Eliminated upon wrtten-off ~ isgE¥1E - - - - - - - (67) (67)
Exchange alignment Eigs 2313 904 - 114 9% 64 7 % 4447
At 31 December 2020 H-5-8k
+ZBz1-8 63,190 15,324 - 1,550 18,780 2,087 1,466 234 104741
Carrying amounts RAEE
At 31 December 2020 H-5-8f
o B 340,853 50941 230,828 u 27,23 615 1,06 208 65458
At 31 December 2019 -1
+ZB=1-8 347,834 50,600 61,434 1197 20,644 1137 1713 2612 496,171
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group capitalised depreciation of right-of-use
assets and incurred interest expense on lease
liabilities of HK$3,521,000 (2019: HK$3,556,000)
and HK$8,579,000 (2019: HK$8,608,000)
respectively.

All of the Group’s buildings, golf courses and
construction in progress located in the PRC
are held on medium-term lease. The Group’s
buildings located in Hong Kong are also held on
medium-term lease.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group recognised a written-off furniture and
fixtures of HK$177,000 as result of the renovation
work in the Group’s buildings located in Hong
Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group recognised a written-off of construction
in progress of HK$49,782,000 as a result of the
demolishment of two hotel villas erected on the
a piece of 580 Chinese acre land (the “Subject
Land”) adjacent to a membership golf club and
resort (the “Club”) in Beijing, the PRC. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 5
November 2019 for details.

The Group has pledged its buildings located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$210,758,000 (2019: HK$218,667,000) to
secure the Group’s bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

18. Y% - MERKRE (&)

REBZ-_ZEZ-_ZEF+-A=+—H1Lt
FER A&EECS 5 5 %83,521,000
BT(=ZZ— hF 3,556,000 7T) K%
8,579,000/8 T (=& — L : 8,608,000
BT)ZEAREENEREEAGES
ZRAEEZERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FHAREEE
The
Staff Subject Office
dormitory The Club Land premises Total
PAE
BIEE gff £ 3iuh ) ES #at
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-NE
—A—-H - 82,912 153,869 - 236,781
Additions NE - - - 592 592
Depreciation charge  #TEBX - (2,502) (3,556) (84) (6,142)
Exchange alignment ~ ERHZ - (1,767) (3,300) - (5,067)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—-h#F
and +=A=+-8
1 January 2020 R-Z-EF
—A—-H - 78,643 147,013 508 226,164
Additions hE 10,747 - - - 10,747
Depreciation charge ~ #TERX (645) (2,477) (3,521) (296) (6,939)
Exchange alignment ~ ERHE 565 4,920 9,259 - 14,744
At 31 December 2020 R=-Z_ZF
+=B=+-H 10,667 81,086 152,751 212 244,716

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—BHLHFE

2020 2019

—EZEF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FAET FBT

Depreciation charge ERX 6,939 6,142
Less: depreciation capitalised in the & - st AR BREERAK

cost of qualifying assets ZEBRLITE (3,521) (3,556)

depreciation charged to the FASFEES
operator of the Club ZIE (645) -
2,773 2,586

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Expense relating to short-term leases EEEHRHEERBAHNAEBHHK
and other leases with lease terms HREEAE 16T EAR
end within 12 months of the date of Bz 12@ARER 2 HMA
initial application of HKFRS 16 EvH% 80 290
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRSRHEE 13,778 12,638
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R MG ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

19.

20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Group leases (i) an office, (ii) the rights
to construct and operate the club facilities of the
Club, and (iii) the rights to develop and operate
the Subject Land and the rights to manage the
properties erected on the Subject Land for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 2 to 50 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group entered into a new lease agreement for
a staff dormitory. The new lease agreement is
entered into for a fixed term of 4.17 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

Lease liabilities of HK$285,165,000 (2019:
HK$259,251,000) are recognised with the related
right-of-use assets of HK$244,716,000 (2019:
HK$226,164,000) at 31 December 2020. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out certain office units in Hong
Kong under non-cancellable operating leases
with rentals receivables monthly. The leases run
for a period of three years and do not contain the
unilateral rights to extend the lease at the end of
the leases.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency
risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as
all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee
and lessee’s option to purchase the leased
properties at the end of lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. REWME (&)
2020 2019
g g 253 —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value ATE
At 1 January MR—HB—H 159,200 175,600
Loss arising on change in fair value RERRBERZATEED
recognised in profit or loss EEZEE (19,200) (16,400)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 140,000 159,200
Unrealised loss on change in fair value i A#fr&EBHERA HAUzs
of investment properties included REBIEBEZREYE
in the “Other gains and losses” line NEESBEEZARER
item in the consolidated statement 518
of profit or loss (19,200) (16,400)

All of the Group’s properties’ interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

REBBAULLHEFERIES A
REABEZIBENERZIGERA QYT
ERATE  URERIESRENE -

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment properties located in Hong {ZRAE B L FEFEY
Kong held on medium-term lease BEzREME 140,000 159,200

All of the Group’s investment properties have
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank
borrowings.

AEBZEZRREYECEFRLAEH
RITERZER M@ -

KERKBREBRAR
—ToEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. REWME (&)
Details of the Group’s investment properties are AEBREVEZHFBEINOT :
as follows:
Attributable
interest to
Location Existing use Tenure the Group
i 25 RERAZ®E FH AEEELER
Portion of Unit No.1202 Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
and the corridor and S RHEAFR A
whole of Unit Nos.1201
and 1212 on 12th Floor,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong
BB FHEBF 168-2005%
FEROLTEE 12124 1202 E R ER
R&EIB1201 K 1212 E
21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 21. BEWMEZAFEFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEEER

The following table presents the fair value TREREBUBHRELENE 135

of the Group’s investment properties A FEFERREN=ZALAFESE

measured at the end of the reporting period Fo ZHIREBRBEHREZE

on a recurring basis, categorised into the MEEFEZRENMELAFE 2

three-level fair value hierarchy as defined TEFENR B ELER

in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The MERAZMABB2TEEEREER
level into which a fair value measurement is BEMETE  BHAMWT

classified is determined with reference to the

observability and significance of the inputs

used in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured e F1HRMFE: I EEAE1NE
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted AEB(MHEPEEREEE
quoted prices in active markets for SFTERBRERT IS 2 REHR
identical assets or liabilities at the BERE)GTEZAFE

measurement date;

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 21. BREMEZ AT EFTEE)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZERE)

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured o E2RMFEE:FEAFE2HREWA
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable FBEMIAHFEEIREERLZ
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and ABREAYB) BEXEER
not using significant unobservable BERATAEBEWARBFEZ
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs AEE - TABRE AZIEE
for which market data are not available; MIZEER T A28 A SIS
and &

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e ZFEIRMHE:FAERTAH
using significant unobservable inputs. REABIBAEZATE-

Fair value measurement categorised into
AFEFTEIES
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1HK F28K FEIK et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET FET FAET THET

At 31 December 2020 R-E-TH&

+=ZHA=+-—H
Recurring fair value BEMAFETE
measurement
Investment properties NREBZRE
located in Hong Kong LY - 140,000 - 140,000
At 31 December 2019  R=-Z—h%&
+=A=+—H
Recurring fair value BEMAFETE
measurement
Investment properties NRBEBZIRE
located in Hong Kong LY/E3 — 159,200 — 159,200

KERMRATRAT  1gg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z ==

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, there were no transfers between
Levels 1 and 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

The Group’s investment properties were
measured at fair value at 31 December 2020
and 2019. For the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, the valuations were carried
out by APAC Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“APAC”). APAC has among its staff
members with appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the locations and
categories of properties being valued. The
directors have discussion with APAC on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuations were performed at the
end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
investment properties is their current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties
located in Hong Kong is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available. The
market price per square foot is positively
correlated to the fair value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22 BEEE
Operating Operating
rights in rights Software
respect of the in respect of and
Subject Land the Club licenses Total
BRIRbR EBEf
ZIRER LIRER BHRER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEn FET FiEr FiEr
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-B-H 879,433 54,326 38 933,797
Exchange alignment EHEZ (19,179) (1,185) (1) (20,365)
At 31 December 2019 and RZBE-NE+ZA=1t-HRK
1 January 2020 ZEZEE-A-H 860,254 53,141 37 913,432
Exchange alignment ERHE 55,295 3,416 2 58,713
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZFE+-A=1-H 915,549 56,557 39 972,145
Accumulated amortisation and 2 BERRESE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-A-H 60,593 4,755 38 65,386
Charge for the year KEEYH 18,630 1,462 - 20,092
Exchange alignment ERAR (1,614) (127) (1) (1,742)
At 31 December 2019 and R=B-AE+ZA=1T-AR
1 January 2020 —2-%%-5-AH 77,609 6,090 37 83,736
Charge for the year KEEYH 18,447 1,448 - 19,895
Exchange alignment B iR 5,984 470 2 6,456
At 31 December 2020 R-BEZZFE+-A=+-H 102,040 8,008 39 110,087
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-Ef+-A=1+-H 813,509 48,549 - 862,058
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nE+ZA=t-H 782,645 47,051 - 829,696

KIEREIREBRAF 191
“ECEFER
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful
lives. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Operating rights in respect of the
Subject Land

Operating rights in respect of the Club 37 years

Software and licenses 3 years

47 years

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land were acquired through a business
combination completed on 6 October 2015. The
operating rights represent (i) the rights to develop
and operate the Subject Land, and (ii) the rights
to manage the properties erected on the Subject
Land up to 30 January 2062. The operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land were granted to it
AN REHBIEER A (Beijing Bayhood No.
9 Business Hotel Company Limited, “Bayhood
No.9 Co.”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, under the cooperation construction
and operating agreements. The cost of the
operating rights of HK$938,061,000 represents
the fair value of such assets valued by D&P
China (HK) Limited (“D&P”), an independent firm
of qualified professional valuers, as at 6 October
2015, being the completion date of the business
combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Subject Land
are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Operating rights in respect of the Club

The operating rights in respect of the Club were
acquired through a business combination as
completed on 6 October 2015. The operating
rights represent the rights to construct and
operate the club facilities of the Club up to 31
December 2051. The operating rights in respect
of the Club were granted to Bayhood No. 9 Co.
under another cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The cost of the operating
rights of HK$57,948,000 represents the fair value
of such assets valued by D&P as at 6 October
2015, being the completion date of the business
combination.

The operating rights in respect of the Club are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation charge for the year is included in
the “Administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the impairment testing on the
operating rights in respect of the Club are
disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Software and licenses

Software and licenses were acquired through a
business combination as completed on 6 October
2015.

Software and licenses are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL 23. BE&
Total
st
HK$°000
FET
Cost RN

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NF—-—H—H 325,845
Exchange alignment R (7,121)

At 31 December 2019 and F—ﬁ 7‘L¢+—ﬂ—+—5&

1 January 2020 —E-Z2F—-HA-—H 318,724
Exchange alignment & AR 20,502
At 31 December 2020 AZB-ZF+=-HA=+—H 339,226
Accumulated impairment losses 2T BEEE
At 1 January 2019 R=-ZE—hE—HA—H 47,438
Exchange alignment (R (1,038)
At 31 December 2019 and EA—i n¢+—ﬂ—+—ﬁ)§2

1 January 2020 —EZEF-—-H—H 46,400
Exchange alignment B AR 2,985
At 31 December 2020 R=—TB=-TBFE+=-HA=+—H 49,385
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZBEHE+=-H=+—H 289,841
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hF+=ZA=+—H 272,324
Particulars regarding impairment testing FRAEEBRENRZHBEREEMEKIR
on goodwill are disclosed in note 24 to the KM 24 E

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

24. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE

ASSETS AND GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing,
intangible assets and goodwill in respect of
the operating rights set out in notes 22 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements have
been allocated to an individual CGU, namely
Smart Title Limited (“Smart Title”), engaged in
property investment business in Beijing, the PRC.
The carrying amounts of intangible assets and
goodwill in respect of the operating rights (net of
accumulated impairment losses) allocated to this
CGU are as follows:

24,

BEREERBERENR

BETHENR KU BERERME
2R23FTEEREKRERECETLEER
BEEIEREZE—EBLREESELENE
Smart Title Limited ([ Smart Title -
RAELEEREYEREEK) - BEL
ERITMEZEcELEENCEREE
FEEBZIREEGIREFEHEERE)W
T

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Intangible assets BEEE
— operating rights in respect of the —BREFBtRE o KER
Subject Land 813,509 782,645
— operating rights in respect of the —EHEmeRER
Club 48,549 47,051
Goodwill Gk 289,841 272,324
1,151,899 1,102,020

The recoverable amount of the CGU engaged in
property investment business in Beijing, the PRC
has been determined based on the value in use
calculations of the operating rights in respect of
the Subject Land and the Club.

RABIEREENEREXB 2REE
EEUz2ARBSECREFTEIE
MEEREEREREEFEMERE
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24. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSETS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

(a)

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Subject Land has
been determined with reference to two
valuations prepared by APAC for both
years. These two valuations use cash flow
projections based on the financial budgets
approved by management covering a 41-
year period (2019: 42-year period). The
discount rates used for property investment
business and cultural business were 13.00%
(2019: 14.00%) and 17.00% (2019: 17.00%)
respectively. The budget period represents
the remaining period of the rights to develop
and operate the Subject Land, pursuant to
the signed cooperation construction and
operating agreements. The discount rates
used reflect estimated weighted average
cost of capital, stage of development, and
specific risks relating to the operations.
Cash flow projections during the budget
period for the operating rights in respect of
the Subject Land are based on the budgeted
revenue, gross margin, operating expenses,
capital expenditures incurred and expected
inflation during the budget period. Expected
cash inflows and outflows, which include the
budgeted revenue, gross margin, operating
expenses, capital expenditures incurred and
expected inflation, have been determined
based on the signed agreements and
management’s expectations for the market
development with reference to the industry
and macro- economic data.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has modified its business strategy
for property investment business on the
second and third phases of the Subject
Land. The units of the building complex
erected will lease out as high-end serviced
apartments on a long-term or short-term
lease basis instead of hotel rooms.
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24. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSETS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

(a)

Operating rights in respect of the Subject
Land (Continued)

As such, the relevant discounted cash flow
projection used to measure value in use for
determining the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit of Smart Title Limited
relating to the property investment business
has adjusted. The key assumptions are as
follows:

(@)

Rental income per square meter of
serviced apartments is based on the
current market rate for comparable
properties nearby, where the rental of
the entire lease period is paid before
the lease commencement date.

Building management fee income per
square meter of serviced apartments
is based on the current market rate for
similar service standards, with a 3%
annual increment.

Rental income of restaurants area and
car parks are based on rate the current
market rate for comparable properties
nearby, with a 3% annual increment.

Operating expenses are based on
management’s estimation, with a 3%
annual increment.

Development costs are budgeted to
be RMB653,770,000 (equivalent to
HK$735,615,000).

24. BREERBERENSR &)

(a)

THEEBMR LR (E)

It A L5 & & E Smart Title
Limited BEAMEREXBR 2 REE
BN ESEE 2 FREEZE
BEeHRRESRERAIC FHAE -
BEEFTERRUOT :

2 EEN 2 HENEER S
A#AT M AIRBEALE 2
BF¥ A RETWATIRBE I
A ELLBYE ZER B KT
BE -

BEXNLCB2BF I KEFTE
HEBEWADRBEECURBEE
ZERTHSKFEMESFI3%
ZIBIRETE o

EREREFESZHESBAT
RBEHEATELLRYEZEA
MIH KN EEF 3% 2 BiE
BE -

RERMXNRBEEE 25
MESGF 3% ZBIREE ©

HERXAEEAARY
653,770,000 T(H % R
735,615,000387T) °



198

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBEHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

24,

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSETS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

(b) Operating rights in respect of the Club

The value in use calculation of the operating
rights in respect of the Club has been
determined with reference to the valuations
prepared by APAC for both years. Those
valuations use cash flow projection based
on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 31-year period
(2019: 32-year period), and discount rate
of 11.50% (2019: 11.90%). The budget
period represents the remaining period of
the rights to construct and operate the club
facilities of the Club, pursuant to the signed
cooperation construction and operating
agreements. The discount rate used is
based on the terminal capitalisation rate
of similar industry and the rental growth
rate of the signed club lease agreement.
Cash flow projection during the budget
period for the operating rights in respect of
the Club is based on the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses during the
budget period. Expected cash inflows and
outflows, which include the budgeted rental
income and operating expenses, have been
determined based on the signed agreements
and management’s expectations for the
lessee not to terminate the signed club
lease agreement and the renewal of club
lease agreement with the same terms and
conditions upon its expiry.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
directors determine that no impairment on the
property investment business in Beijing, the PRC
is required (2019: Nil). The directors believe that
any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the property investment
business in Beijing, the PRC to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.
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. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. REtE RNR 2=
2020 2019
g g 253 —E-h1F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed shares in Hong Kong BEELTRS
— China Healthwise Holdings Limited — HEE&EREERERAE
(“China Healthwise”) (ThEErERE]) 60,059 61,610
— Global Mastermind Holdings — REKRBEBEERRAA
Limited (“Global Mastermind”) (TBIRAE ) 104,083 179,146
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong BERFELTRE
— China Hong Kong Money Limited — HBEBRLAB(THEBRE]D
(“China Hong Kong Money”) 593 593
— Elite Prosperous Investment Limited — Elite Prosperous
(“Elite Prosperous”) Investment Limited
([ Elite Prosperous ) 12,606 30,802
177,341 272,151
Cost of investments in associates REFE QT ZRENAR 240,661 237,207
Amount due from an associate FE UL — B A RS0 38,437 38,437
Share of post-acquisition loss, FEAE BB & 18
other comprehensive expense, net Ht2HEAS 2WRE
dividends received and reserve FRRHE (101,757) (3,493)
177,341 272,151
Market value of listed shares BB HE
— China Healthwise — FEERRER 35,929 53,414
— Global Mastermind — RERKE 64,732 68,076
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. REtE NT 2 REZ ()

RBEEHMR  AEERUTHELQTH
BEAERD

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
interests in the following associates:

Proportion of
ownership interest

Country/place of Principal place and voting power
Name of entity incorporation of business held by the Group Principal activities
1AV FrEERERARER
BEREH R/ th% ITREEBY RERZELH TEXK
2020 2019
“BZBE “E-RF
China Healthwise (Note (i)) Cayman Islands Hong Kong 20.27% 18.86%  Sales of Chinese health
HEERRE () HEHS B# products, money lending
business and investment
in financial instruments
HEPERRER  HEX
BRRESRMIA
Global Mastermind (Note (ij)) Cayman Islands Hong Kong 29.77% 29.04%  Provision and operation
BRERKBE () HEHE ; of travel business,
treasury management
business, money
lending business, and
provision of securities,
assets management
and financial advisory
services
RERELRBRY - &
BEXK  BEXK U
RiR#ES - EEEER
BB AR
China Hong Kong Money ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 30% 30%  Dormant
hEE 5 BB gEER
Elite Prosperous (Note (iif))  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 49% 49%  Investment Holding
Elite Prosperous (#f&Z (i) RERLEHE B REZR
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(i

On 28 October 2019, the Group held 1,483,728,240
shares in China Healthwise, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange (stock code: 348), representing
approximately 18.86% of the issued share capital
of China Healthwise. On 28 October 2019, Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, an executive director, has
been appointed as an executive director of China
Healthwise with immediate effect.

Following the appointment of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton as an executive director of China Healthwise,
the Group has two executive board seats in the
board of directors of China Healthwise and is
regarded as having a significant influence over China
Healthwise. As a result, the 1,483,728,240 shares in
China Healthwise held by the Group are accounted
for as an investment in associate in accordance
with HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, instead of financial assets at FVTPL
in accordance with HKFRS 9, with effect from 28
October 2019.

The 1,483,728,240 shares in China Healthwise
with an aggregate fair value of HK$53,414,000
was transferred to “interests in associates” in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
applying equity method to account for the Group’s
investment in China Healthwise. On 28 October
2019, the fair value of net assets of China Healthwise
exceeded the aggregate fair value of the shares in
China Healthwise transferred by HK$14,044,000.
Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain on
bargaining purchase of HK$14,044,000 in the “Share
of results of associates” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

25. REMENTRI 2R (&)

Biat -

@i

RZE-NEF+AZ+/N\H  xEEEE
1,483,728 240 R Bl & REREE AR D » 15
FEEREREREZERITRA418.86% °
ZAABE—HEMRHEEHEIMRLIZE
[RAG HERTRORBEIAMER L
m(RBDAYE 348) c R=ZE—hE+A
“+NB UTEESREEFEALECERET
ATEEEBEIHNITES  BEFENR -

BEREELEEEZEEATREASERES
YUTES%R  AEBATEHSERREES
SPEMERNTESERE > LWRBYF
BEEREAEEEATED - Bt A&
B354 2 1,483,728,240 RP B B REfiE =
BT REE S EQF 28 RE L
AFREELPXEZRENNEB 2 HEH
BBRRVIWEENBE QAT Z2HRE  MHIER
BEERVBEREENEIRL2HTANK
SEEZHFEUBERERPIERBIZAFE
AERERZEBMEE BZZ—-AE+A
Zt+NBRBER-

AT {EHEE53,414,00058 7T 2 1,483,728,240
BHESERERONEABZEIBEEAE
ERTEEEERECREARSEBESR
EUBRAERAIRBEE AT 2EE ]
R-ZB—HhhE+A=-+NA > HEEE
RECEEFEATFEBBCEE2F
Bl B a2 R R D F B % 14,044,000
BrLe At NEBRGEEERAIE
hHHENREZ EERIAZEBEE RS
14,044,000 7T °
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25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@i

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, China
Healthwise repurchased and cancelled 160,650,000
of its shares (before the share consolidation of the
shares of China Healthwise that became effective on
25 September 2020) from January 2020 to July 2020
and the Group’s shareholdings in China Healthwise
increased from 18.86% at 31 December 2019 to
19.26% at 21 July 2020. As a result of the shares
repurchase and cancellation, the Group recognised
a gain on deemed acquisition of HK$290,000 in
the “Share of results of associates” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Group further acquired 7,840,000 shares (after
the share consolidation of the shares of China
Healthwise that became effective on 25 September
2020) in China Healthwise from September 2020 to
December 2020 at a consideration of HK$1,976,000
and the Group’s shareholdings in China Healthwise
increased from 19.26% at 21 July 2020 to 20.27%
at 31 December 2020 accordingly. The Group
recognised a gain on bargaining purchase of
HK$917,000 in the “Share of results of associates”
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 resulted
from the further acquisition.

The market value of the shares of China Healthwise
held by the Group as at 31 December 2020 is
HK$35,929,000 (2019: HK$53,414,000).

In view of the volume of the shares of China
Healthwise traded in the Main Board of the Exchange
in each of the previous 12 months immediately prior
to the publication of this annual report, the directors
considered that the transactions for the shares of
China Healthwise taken place in the Main Board
of the Exchange did not have sufficient frequency
and volume to provide a pricing information on an
ongoing basis and there was no deep and liquid
market existed for the shares of China Healthwise.
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(Continued)

Given that there was no deep and liquid market
existed for the shares of China Healthwise, the
directors considered that the market value of the
shares of China Healthwise was not relevant to
the measurement of the fair value of the Group’s
interest in China Healthwise. Instead, the directors
determined the fair value of the Group’s interest
in China Healthwise based on its consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020 as a majority of China Healthwise’s assets and
liabilities was measured at fair values in complying
with HKFRSs for financial reporting purposes.
As such, the directors considered the net assets
value of China Healthwise as at 31 December 2020
was closely approximate to its fair value as at 31
December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the Group held 156,212,824
shares in China Healthwise and 153,892,024 shares
of which, with a fair value of HK$35,395,000, have
been pledged to secure the secured other borrowing
— securities margin financing facility granted to the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group further acquired 31,500,000 shares in Global
Mastermind at a consideration of HK$1,477,000 and
the Group’s shareholdings in Global Mastermind
increased from 29.04% at 31 December 2019 to
29.77% at 31 December 2020 accordingly. The
Group recognised a gain on bargaining purchase of
HK$1,849,000 in the “Share of results of associates”
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 resulted
from the further acquisition.
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25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

As disclosed in its announcement dated 29
December 2020, Global Mastermind received a
letter (the “Letter”) in December 2020 from Mr.
Ma Chunlong (“Mr. Ma”) which the directors of
Global Mastermind represented that the Letter was
purportedly written for and on behalf of Solution
Apex Investments Limited (“Solution Apex”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Global Mastermind, alleging, among
other things, that (a) Mr. Ma was appointed as the
sole director of Solution Apex on 1 December 2020;
and (b) Solution Apex made three payments to
three parties (the “Purported Three Parties”) with
the aggregate amount of HK$47,534,000 in July
2020 (the “Purported Payments to the Purported
Three Parties”). As represented by the directors
of Global Mastermind, neither the directors of
Global Mastermind nor Global Mastermind had
known or met Mr. Ma before Global Mastermind
received the Letter. Also, as represented by the
directors of Global Mastermind, the sole director of
Solution Apex had been Mr. Allan Yap (“Mr. Yap”)
since 19 December 2014, and, until 1 December
2020 as described below, Global Mastermind had
not received any notice from Mr. Yap about his
bankruptcy; Mr. Yap was adjudged bankrupt by
the High Court of Hong Kong on 3 August 2020.
In respect of the above matters, the directors of
Global Mastermind, in December 2020, enquired
the directors of Durable Gold Investments Limited
(“Durable Gold”) which is the immediate holding
company of Solution Apex. Durable Gold is a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global
Mastermind. The directors of Global Mastermind
were notified, among other things, that (a) Mr. Yap
had ceased to be the sole director of Solution Apex
with effect from 1 December 2020; (b) Mr. Ma was
appointed as the sole director of Solution Apex and
was also appointed as a director of Durable Gold
with effect from 1 December 2020; (c) the bank
balance held by Solution Apex with the aggregate
amount of HK$47,534,000 was utilised for the
Purported Payments to the Purported Three Parties
around July 2020; and (d) the remaining bank
balance of Solution Apex of HK$11,231,000 was
withdrawn entirely in August 2020 (the “Purportedly
Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals”).
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

As represented by the directors of Global
Mastermind, the Purported Payments to the
Purported Three Parties and the Purportedly
Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals (collectively referred
to as the “Incidents”) were carried out without
the authorisation from the directors of Global
Mastermind. On 29 December 2020, the directors of
Global Mastermind had resolved to (a) remove Mr.
Ma as the director of Solution Apex and Durable
Gold with the immediate effect and replace them
with Global Mastermind’s designated persons;
(b) instruct external legal advisers to commence
legal proceedings to seek to recoup the Purported
Payments from the Purported Three Parties and the
Purportedly Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals and/or
to seek damages and other remedies from individuals
and entities against whom Global Mastermind may
have causes of action as a result of the Incidents;
(c) establish an internal investigation working team
(the “Internal Investigation Working Team”) to
investigate the Incidents and to oversee the progress
of the actions to be carried out by the external
legal advisers; (d) recognise a loss in respect of the
Incidents of HK$58,765,000 in the consolidated profit
or loss of Global Mastermind for the year ended 31
December 2020; and (e) enter into an agreement
with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to
dispose of Global Mastermind’s entire shareholdings
in Solution Apex at a cash consideration of HK$1
with an outcome sharing mechanism enabling Global
Mastermind to retain any amount, recovering from
the actions to be taken by the Purchaser against
Mr. Yap, the Purported Three Parties or other
individual and entities involved in the Incidents, at a
distribution ratio of 99% to Global Mastermind and
1% to the Purchaser.
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25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

After announcing the Incidents, the Internal
Investigation Working Team recommended the audit
committee of Global Mastermind to engage an
independent professional firm (the “Investigator”)
to investigate the Incidents (the “Investigation”),
including circumstances and causes surrounding
the Purported Payments to the Purported Three
Parties and the Purportedly Unauthorised Cash
Withdrawals and the management of Global
Mastermind involved in the Incidents. Up to the
date of Global Mastermind’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Investigator
has not been able to carry out all the necessary
procedures and work for the Investigation because
certain documents and the other procedures, in
particular, in connection with the investigation work
on the circumstances and causes surrounding the
Purported Payments to the Purported Three Parties
and the Purportedly Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals
has not yet obtained. The external legal advisers
are still proceeding with the actions, in seeking to
recoup the Purported Payments from the Purported
Three Parties and the Purportedly Unauthorised
Cash Withdrawals and/or to seek damages and other
remedies from individuals and entities against whom
Global Mastermind may have causes of action, and,
the outcome of these actions is still uncertain up to
the date of Global Mastermind’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The views of the executive directors and the
audit committee on the audit qualification relating
to the causes of the Incidents, and commercial
substance and nature of the Purported Payments
to the Purported Three Parties and the Purportedly
Unauthorised Cash Withdrawals are disclosed in
the section headed “Additional Information on Audit
Qualification” of the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 37 to 43 of the annual report.

In view of the volume of the shares of Global
Mastermind traded in GEM operated by the
Exchange (“GEM”) in each of the previous 12 months
immediately prior to the annual report, the directors
considered that the transactions for the shares of
Global Mastermind taken place in GEM did not have
sufficient frequency and volume to provide a pricing
information on an ongoing basis and there was no
deep and liquid market existed for the shares of
Global Mastermind.

Given that there was no deep and liquid market
existed for the shares of Global Mastermind, the
directors considered that the market value of the
shares of Global Mastermind was not relevant to
the measurement of the fair value of the Group’s
interest in Global Mastermind. Instead, the directors
determined the fair value of the Group’s interest
in Global Mastermind based on its consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020 as a majority of Global Mastermind’s assets
and liabilities was measured at fair values in
complying with HKFRSs for financial reporting
purposes. As such, the directors considered the
net assets value of Global Mastermind as at 31
December 2020 was closely approximate to its fair
value as at 31 December 2020.

At 31 December 2020, the Group held 1,269,250,000
shares in Global Mastermind with a fair value of
HK$64,732,000 determined based on quoted share
price, have been pledged to secure the secured
other borrowing — securities margin financing facility
granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

On 31 August 2017, the Group subscribed for 49
ordinary shares which represent 49% equity interests
in Elite Prosperous at a consideration of US$49. Elite
Prosperous is an investment holding company.

On 5 September 2017, the Group and the other
shareholder of Elite Prosperous, an independent
third party, as lenders entered into the shareholders’
loan agreement with Elite Prosperous as borrower.
Pursuant to the shareholders’ loan agreement,
the Group has agreed to provide a shareholder’s
loan in the amount of US$4,900,000, equivalent
to HK$38,421,000, to Elite Prosperous, being the
Group’s pro rata share of the shareholders’ loan in
the principal amount of US$10,000,000, equivalent
to HK$78,410,000, in aggregate to be provided
by all of the shareholders of Elite Prosperous.
The shareholders’ loan of US$10,000,000 is solely
for the purpose of financing Elite Prosperous’
operating and investment needs. The shareholders’
loan of US$10,000,000 is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. On the same
date, the Group made the shareholder’s loan of
US$4,900,000 to Elite Prosperous. The Group
classified the shareholder’s loan of US$4,900,000
to Elite Prosperous as “interests in associates”.
The maximum amount of the shareholder’s loan
outstanding to the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 was HK$38,437,000 (2019:
HK$38,437,000).
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

All of the associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements.

Summarised financial information of material

associates

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s material associates is set out below.
The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associates’
financial statements prepared in accordance with

ﬁ"“ﬂﬁﬁiﬁimﬁf

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

25. RE DR 2R ()

FIEBE RNAt ARE W BREREFIIE
Fﬁ*gﬁﬁ/i °

ERRELNT U BERME

FRASEEERE N <YK ERE
BEINTX - LTHBERPERR
REBEBMBRELNFERR 2BE QT
MBMKRFATEHEE

HKFRSs.

China Healthwise B & BE #E F
2020 2019
—B-RF ZEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets IRBEE 145,692 53,852
Current assets REEE 288,586 544,575
Current liabilities i I=K (50,347) (263,578)
Non-current liabilities FRBEME (87,640) (8,176)

X18 *E‘é?ﬁ ERRAH
—ECREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. REtE RNR 2w (&)

Summarised financial information of material
associates (Continued)

EERELTRCMBERBREE)

China Healthwise (Continued) B & BEfEJE (4 )
For the
period from
For the 28 October
year ended 2019 to
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZE WIZ—h#F
—E-8F +AZ=+NH
+=H EZE-—hF
=+—H +=A
ItFE =+—HH5H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue for the year/period REE HIB WS 137,853 37,156
Loss for the year/period AEE HBEEER (25,222) (31,017)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income  ANFEE HEHME2E
for the year/period (BAk) "Wz (168) 10
Total comprehensive expense for the AEE /HEEMHAX A
year/period (25,390) (31,007)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

LBt B E R B ERRS MBRE R T
RN E QR 2 R REE 2 R

2020 2019

—B-F —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Net assets of China Healthwise FEERERECERERE 296,291 326,673
Proportion of the Group’s ownership TEBERTESEREREE

interest in China Healthwise 2 R LB 20.27% 18.86%
The Group’s share of net assets of China ZANEEELTEHEEREZ

Healthwise EEFE 60,059 61,610

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in ZNEBRPRERERE
China Healthwise i BREE 60,059 61,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z = FE-FF+ -F=+—HIFE&E

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. REMENTRI 2R (&)
Summarised financial information of material EEBRENRAZHBEERBE (&
associates (Continued)

Global Mastermind REAE
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 318,076 233,914
Current assets REBEE 282,897 684,626
Current liabilities REBEE (250,542) (298,169)
Non-current liabilities kREBEE (811) (3,477)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+t—BHLHFE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Revenue for the year REFE N 37,150 75,640

Loss for the year REEEE (267,084) (54,593)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income ANFEHM2ME(FX), EH

for the year (190) 1,182

Total comprehensive expense for the AFEEHE XL
year (267,274) (53,411)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. REtE RNR 2R (&)
Summarised financial information of material EEBRENTRCHBEERBE(E
associates (Continued)

Global Mastermind (Continued) RIEAHE(4E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial FHiEgEER M EE SRS B IR E AT
information to the carrying amount of the interest BRRZEE N 2EZIRME R

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2020 2019
g g 253 —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net assets of Global Mastermind REKBzEEFE 349,620 616,894
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEBRBRABEREE 2
interest in Global Mastermind FE=LE 29.77% 29.04%
The Group’s share of net assets of REBRMGRRAB 2
Global Mastermind EEFE 104,083 179,146
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest KEBRBIRAB 2R~
in Global Mastermind BREE 104,083 179,146
Aggregate information of associates that are not WIERIE R 2B A R4 EER

individually material

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-ZA=+—BLHFE

2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group’s share of loss and total rEEBREERFEFER

comprehensive expense for the year S HEFEZERE (18,196) (25,332)

Aggregate carrying amounts of the REBRLEHRE NG 2D
Group’s interests in these associates  ZERMEAAE 13,199 31,395
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES

26. EWER

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans to customers AEFRHZER 964,910 991,718
Accrued interest receivables FEW FEST R 2 11,689 8,353
976,599 1,000,071

Less: accumulated allowance for credit & - 2 {Z S5 BEE
losses (203,678) (22,021)
772,921 978,050

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
The loan receivables carry effective interest
ranging from 8% to 15% per annum (2019: 8%
to 15% per annum). A maturity profile of the loan
receivables (net of accumulated allowance for
credit losses) at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
based on the maturity date is as follows:

FFEERYUBRE BRERZE
BMERBENF U E15% (ZE—NF :
FERMEEU E15%) R-B-TER=
E-NE+=ZA=+—H0 REHBEE
PREVER(IKRBEERERMB)
Z‘IJ,HE%/MDT

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets REEE
Within one year —F R 611,491 497,516
Non-current assets FERBEE
More than one year but not exceeding —&F L E{ERBBME
two years 161,430 480,534
772,921 978,050

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
allowance for credit losses on loan receivables
of HK$197,432,000 was recognised (2019:
HK$4,474,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, loan
receivables amounted to HK$15,775,000 was
written-off (2019: Nil).

At 31 December 2020, three loans in the
aggregate principal amounts of HK$260,000,000
are secured by corporate guarantees. At 31
December 2019, two loans in the aggregate
principal amounts of HK$125,000,000 are
secured by corporate guarantees.

F‘W EﬁE Fﬁuﬂlﬁ ZFEEHE%%
1%Z"?{’.‘197,432,000/%7|:(—i U
4,474,000/875T) °

rw E?ﬂﬁé15,775,000,%752E§L|&ﬁ
F(ZE—-NEF &)

R-—E-BF+=-A=+-H0 =%
K & # % £260,000,0008 T 2 &
S AR EREER  R=B—NE
t-ZA=+-8 WMEASLLHEA
125,000,000 Tt 2 EFR U R AERIE

EEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. ERER (&)
Included in the carrying amount of loan ERERR-_Z_ZEF+-_A=+—
receivables at 31 December 2020 is an B REEBEEGEEEEEHB
accumulated allowance for credit losses of 203,678,000 (= & — h &F:
HK$203,678,000 (2019: HK$22,021,000). 22,021,00087JT) °
Details of impairment assessment of loan BE-_ZEZ_ZTEFR-_ZF-NFE+=A
receivables for the years ended 31 December =t+t—HLEFE BEWERZBESG
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 51. FHEEAMEEST o
Movements in the accumulated allowance for FRAZEEEEERESTHNT
credit losses during the year are as follows:
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12 months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
1288 YECEHNE GEREZ
BHEE  ZRHEN 2HEY N
B8 FEFR FEFR st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R=B-hE-F-A 17,547 - - 17,547
Allowance for credit losses BEACEEERE
recognised 4,474 - - 4,474
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-N&
1 January 2020 +ZB=+-HR
“T-EF-H-H 22,021 - - 22,021
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERFIREENEZ
credit-impaired LHEREEEE (2,881) 2,881 - -
Transfer to credit impaired ERZCERE (1,162) - 1,162 -
Allowance for credit losses ERRACEEERE
recognised 11,402 62,303 123,727 197,432
Written-off of loan receivables ~ HSHEWE - - (15,775) (15,775)
At 31 December 2020 RZBEZEF+ZHA=1+-H 29,380 65,184 109,114 203,678
27. INVENTORIES 27. 78
2020 2019
o8& ZZ2-NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Raw materials R A 10,430 10,139
Work-in-progress TE®8m 431 547
Finished goods SR m 22,132 25,829
32,993 36,515
Inventories are expected to be recovered within FEEHER—FRKE -
one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. ES5 WA

2020 2019

—EEF —ZE-hEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

F#ET FET

Trade receivables BB EWFIE 30,014 40,009
Less: accumulated allowance for credit & - it = EEERE

losses (460) (145)

29,554 39,864

The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables (net of accumulated allowance for
credit losses) at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice dates:

BRZAM2INBERR2EZ B
FB(RARFEEBERRB) 2Rk D
MW

2020 2019

—B-RF ZFAF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

0-30 days 0Z30H 6,974 7,510
31-60 days 31&£60H 6,590 6,391
61-90 days 61ZE90H 5,924 6,852
91-120 days 91&120H 5,627 3,617
121-180 days 1212180 H 3,490 9,084
Over 180 days 180 AU L 949 6,410
29,554 39,864

The Group allows credit period ranging from 0 to
270 days to its customers. The directors assess
the credit status and impose credit limits for
customers in accordance with the Group’s credit
policy. The credit limits are closely monitored
and subject to periodic reviews.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
allowance for credit losses on trade receivables
of HK$315,000 was recognised (2019:
HK$56,000).

Included in the carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2020 is an
accumulated allowance for credit losses of
HK$460,000 (2019: HK$145,000).

AEBAFOHEEFRHZEEHNF
0E£270F - EERBAKEZFEHKE
FEEFZEERRALFIFTEERE -
FERBREEREFEIFERRE

RBEZE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HLHF
ER ERIAESZERREZGEES
BEEEA315,0008B T (ZFE—NF:
56,0008 7T) °

BEZRUFRER-_ZT_FTFFT_-A
=S+ -BZRAERRRFAFEHER
460,000 T(=F — AL F : 145,000
BIT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ=ZF—

28.

29.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 51.

Movements in the accumulated allowance for
credit losses during the year are as follows:

28.

EFEL-A=1—HAULFE

BEZEWRE#E
_-I- EIJJ:ﬁJ* ,%;%J?EHS( IEZZ,DHE
AL IR E R MIEE S -

FRRACERRBREZZBHOT ¢

2020 2019
—B-F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
At 1 January B—A—8H 145 89
Allowance for credit losses recognised FRABREEHERE
during the year 315 56
At 31 December BW+=—B=+-—H 460 145
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 29. BE  AARERHEMERRK
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FBT FET
Deposits ®e 10,894 348
Prepayments A RRIE 41,556 57,141
Other receivables H bW FIE 95,540 93,340
147,990 150,829
Less: accumulated allowance for credit & - HitfEWF1E ~ Bt
losses on other receivables EEEERE (26,189) (23,890)
121,801 126,939
Less: prepayments and other B DERIRBEEZ
receivables classified as non- i‘ﬁ'ﬁ‘ RIE K H A FEW
current assets RIE (25,441) (201)
96,360 126,738

At 31 December 2020, included in the other
receivables were the loan to a third party of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,763,000),
for a term of three years commencing on 22
May 2020 and the related interest receivable of
RMB104,000 (equivalent to HK$123,000).

The loan to a third party was interest bearing at
4.75% per annum, unsecured, and maturing on
21 May 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

29. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, included in the other
receivables were the loan to a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company of RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$27,909,000), for a term of 24
months commencing on 24 August 2018 and
the related interest receivable of RMB798,000
(equivalent to HK$891,000). On 2 June 2020,
the loan of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$27,178,000) was repaid. The key terms of the
loan to a director are disclosed in note 49.

At 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of
HK$201,000 classified as non-current assets
was prepayments relating to property, plant and
equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
allowance for credit losses on other receivables
of HK$723,000 was recognised, which was
related to the loan to a third party.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an
allowance for credit losses on other receivables
of HK$3,842,000 was recognised, of which
HK$3,818,000 was related to other receivables
and HK$24,000 was related to the loan to a
director.

Details of impairment assessment of other
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 51.

Movements in the accumulated allowance for
credit losses on other receivables during the year
are as follows:

29. % FARBEREMERKE

(&)

RZZE—AFE+ZHA=+—H st AHf
EUREEEOAQTAETHE AT 2
—ZEERMEER AR 25,000,000 7T
(%M 27,909,000 T)  BE=E— N
FNAZTHEHRERETEH24EAR
HEERF S B ARK 798,000 T(HZE
891,000/ 8L) c RZE_EFEF A=
H: BEEEXARY 25,000,000t (18
£ 27,178,0008 ) - BZEEIREE
R EBGERAM 49 E -

RZBE—-HhhE+=ZA=Z+—-—H: ' &H#
201,000 8B T MAFERBEE » ZEH
AYE BERRB2ESRE -

REBE-Z-ZEZF+-A=+—HLLHF
ER EREMEKRRERIAGESSE
B 723,0008 5t NEBE—-KE=
REERER -

RBE-Z-NAF+-_A=+—-HLHF
EX - EREMERKERREEEHR
143,842,000 8 5T © H 3,818,000 &
7T B HL 4t B U X I AR B % 24,000 78 T B2
B—HEERUERAENE -

BEZE_ZE_ZEERKR_ZE-N&E+ZA
=+—-HBLFE HttEWREZRE
AT IEEHRMIEES -

FARMBERNRERGEEBEREZ
BEINT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 January H—H—H 23,890 20,564
Allowance for credit losses recognised FRAER ZEEEIEEE

during the year 723 3,842

Exchange alignment AR 1,576 (516)

At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 26,189 23,890
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& B 3 8 Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_FH#{+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 30. EAFEFFABERZEMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong &8 i RAE % 410,395 240,815

Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong &3k & IRAE % - =

410,395 240,815

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong were
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The fair value of the listed equity
securities in Hong Kong were determined with
reference to quoted market closing price, except
for one of the listed equity securities, which have
been suspended from trading on the Exchange
since 27 November 2017, with a fair value of
HK$4,623,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$7,103,000). The fair value measurement
of the suspended listed equity securities was
classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and was based on the valuation performed
by Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval”) an
independent firm of professional valuers, using
market approach.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a gain
arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL of HK$140,509,000 (2019: a loss of
HK$80,487,000) was recognised in the “Other
gains and losses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NBERR  BBELTRABHUQT
BHAE - BELTRAZBFZAFES
EZMEMBRUTERE HR-Z-F
F+=-HA=+—H2¥EH4,623,000
BRT(ZE—NEF :7,103,0008 ) 2H
F—ErFrTRAEHF(BEZZ—tF+—
BZ+tBERBRFMEFEF)RN-
ESEASEIPLATFESHZ2EEF L
TRAEHFHNAFEDNER-—BBILE
¥AEMTEECEBERERAT(E
ENDERATSEETWEESE -

REBZE-Z_FEF+-_A=+—HILE
ER BAFEFAEZRCEREE
NEEEEESE < W 140,509,00058
T(ZZE—N%5F : E51880,487,00058 )
@ﬁé\ﬁéﬁwrﬁmuﬂéﬁgﬁﬁﬁa
\-;3\]\ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31. RERREEEY

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-NEF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 54,125 140,550
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and RBEBR REBUARBTAR
cash equivalents of the Group denominated MOIRER(TERDFEZRERE
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States £ZEYH A 516,838,000 T (==
dollar (“USD”) amounted to HK$16,838,000 — L5 : 4,910,000 jt ) % 872,000 &

(2019: HK$4,910,000) and HK$872,000 (2019: T(ZZ—h%F :520,00087x) °

HK$520,000) respectively.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Bank balances earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

For the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group performed impairment
assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty
banks are insignificant and accordingly, no
allowance for credit losses is provided. Details of
impairment assessment of bank balances for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set
out in note 51.

ARBLATEHAIBRAEMER - A
T RERENIESEEANREER
EERNEEERE mE.EELL
ERERRIELXE ZRITBARER
BEHME -

RITERBBBERITAFRNERIFEZ
FEARETE - RITEREFRREER
% B 49 30 MR AV R0 88 2 R 1T °

BE-ZE-_ZEHER_ZT-NAF+=-A
ST-HLEFE AEBEHRITERE
ITRERE  LRBEFHRITENN
AREMETAEXR BRI EEREER
iﬁﬁéﬁ BE-_Z-_ZFR-ZF-NF
TZA=+-BLEFE  RITERZM
EFEFRERMEEST -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. &
Number of shares Share capital
R A (&N
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZE-EF ZE-hE ZE-E2F ZE-hE
’000 000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FR K FET FET
Ordinary shares of BREE001ETZ
HK$0.01 each EER
Authorised: BEE
At 1 January and R—B—-Bk
31 December +=ZBA=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE -
At 1 January and R—B—-BRk
31 December +=ZBA=+—H 3,819,606 3,819,606 38,196 38,196
33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. ESENRE
2020 2019
gt 3.5 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables g 5 EARIE 7,961 5,510
The following is an aging analysis of trade iﬁ??’é%ﬁ HHEZIRBERRZE S ER
payables at the end of the reporting period MEZREIMAOT :
presented based on the invoice dates:
2020 2019
bt 22 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
0-30 days 0Z30H 4,159 2,409
31-60 days 31260H 970 336
61-90 days 61290H 1,039 603
91-120 days 91&120H 815 750
Over 120 days 120k 978 1,412
7,961 5,510
The average credit period on purchase of goods BEEmMERRBZ2FEFHEEHA120
and services is 120 days. The Group has financial B AKECEHKEREEBR
risk management policies in place to ensure that URERAMEBEEAREREERKEHER
all payables are settled within the credit time BfE o
frame.

220 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= &
ﬁ’“ﬂ# B ERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ
34. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND 34. BWiRe BETERAREMENSR
OTHER PAYABLES b1 |
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Deposits received B¢ 1,437 1,438
Accruals FEstE R 24,335 29,884
Other payables Hth B FRIR 138,347 120,787
164,119 152,109
Less: deposits received and other B DEARAFRBEEZ
payables classified as non- EHQ?&%&EH@FE'H
current liabilities MIE (62,583) (53,561)
101,536 98,548
35. BANK BORROWINGS . BT
2020 2019
— ? — ﬂE :ﬁ—j‘l’f’f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured bank borrowings 2EABWITER 162,465 155,720
Carrying amounts that contain a EEREREEKRK
repayable on demand clause (shown {BEEEZEZREE
under current liabilities) but repayable: (st ARBERE) :
Within one year —F R 54,333 44,236
More than one year, but not —FELEEFREBRE
exceeding two years 6,025 5,543
More than two years, but not MELLBREAASF
exceeding five years 18,541 17,391
Over five years HFEULE 83,566 88,550
162,465 155,720
Less: amounts shown under current B ETARBIEEZFIE
liabilities (162,465) (155,720)
Amounts shown under non-current SFAERBIEEZFIE
liabilities — —
KB Fﬂ‘é?ﬁ é‘ﬁﬁﬁ@j

—ECERFEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —E_—FF+_H=+—HIFE

35. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had the
following bank borrowings:

(a)

a secured mortgage loan of HK$114,080,000
(2019: HK$116,897,000), which is interest
bearing at 1% per annum over one-
month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) or 3% per annum below prime
rate quoted by the bank from time to time,
whichever is lower, secured by a first legal
charge over the Group’s buildings and
investment properties located in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$350,758,000 (2019: HK$377,867,000),
guaranteed by the Company and two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, namely
K E Group Limited and Om Gem Limited,
and maturing on 18 March 2038;

two secured revolving term loans of
HK$5,000,000 and HK$20,000,000 (2019:
HK$20,000,000), which are interest bearing
at HIBOR plus 2% per annum, secured
by the first legal charge over the Group’s
buildings and investment properties
located in Hong Kong with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$350,758,000
(2019: HK$377,867,000), guaranteed by
the Company and Om Gem Limited, and
maturing on 8 March 2021 and 27 April 2021
respectively; and

a secured account payable financing
facilities of HK$23,385,000 (2019:
HK$18,823,000), which are interest bearing
at 2% per annum over HIBOR, secured
by the first legal charge over the Group’s
buildings and investment properties
located in Hong Kong with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$350,758,000
(2019: HK$377,867,000), guaranteed by
the Company and Om Gem Limited, and
maturing within five months commencing
from January 2021 (2019: five months
commencing from January 2020).

As the secured mortgage loan contains a
repayable on demand clause, the entire
outstanding balance of the secured mortgage
loan was classified under current liabilities.

All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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35. SRITER#A)

R-ZBE-ZEE+-A=+—H £T5EH
BUTHRITHER

()

(c)

— % %,114,080,0008 T(Z&E—
£ :116,897,00058 7t ) 2 A & #
BBER NE—EABPEBRIT
AERFE(ERBBRTEEFRE )
MENMBA%HBTAEABRR
BEIMNEFEFERNZEI% (LEGRKE
AE)VGE  UAEEREDAEAS
350,758,000/8 T(=Z & — 1L &F :
377,867,000/ T) 2 UREHB 212
FREBEVEZE—FEMITEIR
o HAQARRADBHEEE M
BAR(AEBEEEERATKROmM
Gem Limited) I2HIER » R ZZ
=NE=ZA+N\BEH;

W ZE 9% Bl 25,000,000 T &
20,000,000 T(=Z= & — N &F:
20,000,000 B T) 2 BIEBRBRE
HER NDREBRITEZEIFEM
FFROGIE  UAREBERTAE
{8 A350,758,0008 T(=Z & — N
377,867,000 8 T ) 2 U R T
BZBRFRBEVEZE—ZAER
TEEB BAQXFROM Gem
Limited 2R LB NR=Z
——F=ZANBER=ZZE=—-FNA
“+tHEH &

— % 523,385,000/ T(ZE— R
£ :18,823,0008 T) 2 HIK H FE
NRETERE - DIREBERTE
EIREMERNR2%E » LIARE
= BR E 42 {8 A& 350,758,000 5t (=
E — L F : 377,867,000/ T ) 2
NREBZEFRRENMEZFE —
SEEMREERTE BAQFKROm
Gem LimitediZ2HiER TR =ZF
——F—-ARERAAN(ZE—H
F . RZIEZEF-AE5EMEA)
BH o

HREEARBERBSAREREE
R AL BEERFZBEREZHRTE
BEIERBES -

FRBRITERIIBITEHE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EiZ —FE_FEF+ _F=+—HILFE

36. OTHER BORROWINGS

36. HMfERK

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$’OOO HK$°000
FET FET
Secured other borrowings — BIRMEMER —
securities margin financing facilities HHRE %ﬂﬁ%miﬁ 54,315 —
Unsecured other borrowing I IR EMER 200,000 200,000
254,315 200,000
At 31 December 2020, the unsecured other RZE-_ZEFE+-_A=+—H  &EIKH
borrowing of HK$200,000,000 is interest bearing H £ 7 200,000, 000/%7_EL/L$*U78%
at 8% per annum, secured by (i) the post-dated e L)\()SEﬁﬁ IHERETAE R F
cheques drawn in favour of a finance company EmU—E ﬂ\ﬂs‘?’z}jﬁ? FEAZHE
for payment of the principal and the interests RHEESEIERITESTHES
stipulated under the loan agreement, and (i) a E2BABRREERR TR _F——
personal guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai, BEA-+NAEH BIKHHEMERS
the Chairman of the Board and an executive BREREBGRRI B TEHE -

director, and maturing on 28 May 2021. The
unsecured other borrowing contains a repayable
on demand clause and is denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with the finance company to extend the
repayment date of the unsecured other borrowing
from 29 May 2020 to 28 May 2021. Save and
except for the extension of the repayment date,
all terms and conditions of the loan agreement
remain unchanged and continue in full force and
effect.

At 31 December 2020, the securities margin
financing facility of HK$40,250,000 granted by a
securities company, which are interest bearing
at prime rate plus 3% per annum and secured
by (i) the Group’s listed equity securities in
Hong Kong held in the margin securities trading
account with a fair value of HK$158,115,000, of
which HK$98,788,000 is related to the Group’s
financial assets at FVTPL and HK$59,327,000 is
related to part of the Group’s listed investments
in associates, and (ii) a personal guarantee given
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2020, the securities margin
financing facility of HK$14,065,000 granted by a
securities company, which are interest bearing
at a fixed rate of 6% per annum and secured
by (i) the Group’s listed equity securities in
Hong Kong held in the margin securities trading
account with a fair value of HK$73,113,000, of
which HK$32,313,000 is related to the Group’s
financial assets at FVTPL and HK$40,800,000 is
related to part of the Group’s listed investments
in associates, and (ii) a personal guarantee given
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.
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= 2
FeEMBEERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE
37. LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HEE®E
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHE REHRE
O RBRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—v—vqs :E—jlﬂi —v—wﬂi :E—ﬁi
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEr FET FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: EHHEEEE
Within one year —FR 15,917 12,365 3,042 742
More than one year, —F UL EREBR
but not exceeding MF
two years 15,932 12,512 3,450 932
More than two years, but MELL EETRBE
not exceeding five years HE 46,815 38,040 7,975 2,369
Over five years HEUE 605,185 582,797 270,698 255,208
683,849 645,714 285,165 259,251
Less: future finance B RRBEE A
charge (398,684)  (386,463) - -
Present value of lease HEABHE
liabilities 285,165 259,251 285,165 259,251
Less: lease liabilities B EHEBEIESR
classified as non- FREBEE
current liabilities (282,123) (258,509)
Lease liabilities classified HESEDEAERE
as current liabilities =N 3,042 742
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease EANREBEEGBGREEFANENF

liabilities range from 4.75% to 5.13% (2019: from

4.90% to 5.13%).

The lease liabilities are denominated in currencies

set out below:

4.75% % 5.13% (=&
£513%) °

HERBUTIIERTHE :

—hF 4.90%

2020 2019

i g 253 ZE-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 216 506
RMB AREE 284,949 258,745
285,165 259,251

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2020
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ﬁ“ﬂ’l ik TP RE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ
38. SECURED NOTES 38. EREE

2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured notes EREE 250,000 299,841
HK$°000
FET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—hE—HA—H 299,611
Imputed interest on secured notes EREBE2HAEFR 24,231
Interest paid and payable 2 RENSRE (24,001)

At 31 December 2019 and R-ZE-hAF+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 K—_Z2-_FF—H—H 299,841
Imputed interest on secured notes BEREBZHERNE 28,105
Interest paid and payable 2 RENSRIE (27,946)
Issue of secured notes BITERERE 270,000
Set off of secured notes KEEREE (270,000)
Redemption FE[ (50,000)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZEF+=-A=+—H 250,000

On 25 August 2017, the Company issued the

secured notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 (the “2017 Notes”). The 2017
Notes are interest bearing at 8% per annum
and payable semi-annually in arrears, secured
by a share charge over 100% of the issued
share capital in China Jiuhao Health Industry
Group Limited (“China Jiuhao”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the principal
assets of which are the operating rights in
respect of the Club and the Subject Land, and
maturing on 25 August 2020.

The effective interest rate of the 2017 Notes is
8.09% per annum.

On 24 August 2020, the Company made a partial
redemption of HK$30,000,000 of the 2017 Notes
and the outstanding principal amount of the 2017
Notes was HK$270,000,000.

EA —tENA=Z+EAB » KAFEH

ﬁﬂxé,yu%‘ﬁﬁsoo 000,000 7T 2 #&
1%T\¢F(r_§ +tEEE ) ZF—+
FEBLUFENRE%TE  SXF2H
BX—% UAQATZERBLATH
HoEREEEXEEERLAA(HEY
EN(EETEEELEHESREEMR
SRR 100% O BITRA 2R 7 E
REEE YR=ZBEZFEFENA=t+H
HEIH -

“E-EEREBCERFRNRS8.09% ©

RIEBEZZEENAZ+HEAB » A2aH
—E—-tFZE#E1730,000,0008TE
fER M-E—-+tFEBEREER
£ %84 270,000,0008 7T ©
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38. SECURED NOTES (Continued)

On 25 September 2020, the Company as
issuer, Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wai Elton as guarantors entered into a
subscription and note instrument agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with the subscriber,
pursuant to which the Company will issue and
the subscriber will subscribe for the guaranteed
secured notes due 2021 in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$270,000,000 (the “2020
Notes”). Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Subscription Agreement, the proceeds of
the 2020 Notes will be fully set off against the
outstanding principal amount of the 2017 Notes.
On 29 September 2020, the Company issued the
2020 Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$270,000,000 to the subscriber.

The 2020 Notes are interest bearing at 13% per
annum and payable semi-annually in arrears,
secured by a share charge over 100% of the
issued share capital in China Jiuhao, guaranteed
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton, and maturing on 25 September 2021.

On 21 December 2020, the Company made a
partial redemption of HK$20,000,000 of the 2020
Notes together with unpaid interest accrued of
the partial redemption of HK$648,000. As at
31 December 2020, the outstanding principal
amount of the 2020 Notes was HK$250,000,000.

The effective interest rate of the 2020 Notes is
13.44% per annum.

The 2017 Notes and the 2020 Notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The Company had an option to repay the
outstanding principal amount of the 2017 Notes
at any time before the maturity date. The option
was regarded as embedded derivatives in
the host contract. The directors assessed the
fair value of the option with reference to the
valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited (“Grant Sherman”), an independent
firm of professional valuers, which assessed the
fair value of the option using the discounted
cash flow method and determined that the fair
value of the option was insignificant on initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the fair value of the option
was not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —E_—FF+_H=+—HIFE

BREE#E)

R-ZE-ZZEFEFhhA=Z+HB XD F
HEBBTAN)  ZHELERREREL
E(EBERANERBATIABRE
BIEHZE(RBHEZED Bl A2
ABBRITMABASRAB-_S=-—F3
NG §55%270 000,000 T Z & 1%
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ_?_ $mﬁﬁomﬁ
REHECEARGGE  —CE-FFE
FZﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%_i tim
BeAEBEAEE RZIZ2E=ZZ ¢nﬁ
Z+hB AATCHABART
:ﬁﬁgﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁgwamamo
BT o

—ECEFEBERFFNE13%E
t¥$§ﬁm%ﬂﬁvlu¢l9fz
100% 2 B ITRA Z R M EHRMERKT
HEZHEREERREREEREER
WHR—B-_—FAA=-+HBEH-

R-ZZE-ZF+ZA=+—H &2
AR FEBEERIMDED
& X ¢4 2 FE 5t R £.648,000 8 T & 1T
20,000,000 % T &R0 BE - R=ZF=F
Et-A=+-B —Z-ZEZHE>

KEE mé%%zwpmumm%no

_E_EEEBECCEBRENEA
13.44% o
TELFEER-ZBEIEFEEHIU
BITEHE °

NN R AR B E R B A2 AR RS B E
BE_Z-—tHEEB2ARAEELSHE - &
BEER/AESHNZRANTETA - EF
E2Z-BHBHLEXRMGEMTPENE
BARAB(HEDET 2 HEFGERE
B2AYE ZEEMERBRRESR
EHEBRERCAFE UBETRER
RULTEIARBEPRE 2 X FEHT
BEHLt WERNGRSPHEHRRTE
REREEZDFE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —F —FF+ _H=+—HIFE

38. SECURED NOTES (Continued)

Under the 2017 Notes, the Company covenanted
with the noteholders that from the issue date
and for so long as any 2017 Notes were
outstanding, (i) the Group would not create any
encumbrance upon the whole or any part of its
present or future undertaking, assets or revenue
of the Group to secure any present or future
indebtedness incurred or to secure any guarantee
or indemnity in respect of any guarantee or
indemnity in respect of (subject to the exceptions
as set out in the 2017 Notes), and (ii) the
Company would ensure the consolidated tangible
net worth of the Group (as defined in the terms
and conditions of the 2017 Notes) would not be
less than HK$1,300,000,000.

Based on the condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the consolidated tangible
net worth (as defined in the terms and conditions
of the 2017 Notes) as at 30 June 2020 was
less than HK$1,300,000,000, which constituted
a breach of the relevant terms and conditions
of the 2017 Notes (the “Breach”). The Breach
constituted an event of default under the 2017
Notes and entitled the noteholders to declare
the outstanding principal amount of the 2017
Notes, accrued interest and all other sums
payable under the 2017 Notes immediately due
and repayable. On 27 August 2020, the Company
obtained a waiver from the noteholders in respect
of the Breach.

Under the 2020 Notes, the Company covenants
with the noteholders that from the issue date and
for so long as any 2020 Notes are outstanding, (i)
the Group will not create any encumbrance upon
the whole or any part of its present or future
undertaking, assets or revenue of the Group
to secure any present or future indebtedness
incurred or to secure any guarantee or indemnity
in respect of any guarantee or indemnity in
respect of (subject to the exceptions as set out
in the 2020 Notes), and (ii) the Company will
ensure the consolidated tangible net worth of the
Group will not be less than HK$1,000,000,000.
The Company has complied with the covenant
throughout the period from 29 September 2020
to 31 December 2020.

38. EREE#E)

RE-ZT-tFREE AR FAHZEEF
BATH BROBHBRAREFNZ=Z
—tFRBNAREEHD (VA KBS
TERHBARRERNEAE - EERW
ANERBREMBIEREESRE - U
S ARG R REH MG REH
EREBERIAFBMEAR (X2 —L
FEBFREREERN)  R({)A2T
BRARAEENGSELFE(EER =
E-tFERB2BRARGH)ZEFIR
1,300,000,000 /& T °

REARABE-_ZE-_ZFE~A=1+H
IERERzEREEaEHREx  RZIE
CEFEARB=ZtTHZHEEEBRERE(EE
RIZ—tFEBZBRARGBHE)DR
1,300,000,0008 T ' BER_-Z—t
FEECHBRARKETER]) -
ENBR-ZE—tFEBETZENS
# BFEEFEAENEHR=_ZT—t
FEEAEEASLHE  —E—+F
EEBT2EFNERFEHMENR
BHYNBBES - RZFBE=-_ZFFENAH
“t+tH ARARERDNEBEEIZE
ABHZEGR -

RE-_Z_ZFZEE AQAHZEEF
BARTY  BRTHHRRENZ=Z=Z=
ZEEEDAREEZEHB (()FAEEET
ERAEERKIERAEIE - EER
KEHNEHREATNERTANEES
B UEESTMEBEERERELIEE
REIBEREEZERIRBERIF(Z=
Z_ZEFEEMBBRERIM) - K (i)
KRG EEREAEBNZEEEFES
F 4> $1,000,000,000& 5t c XA T2
RIEZZEFEABRZ+NABEZEZZE_-ZF
F+-RA=1+—HLEZERAHEESTEB
B o
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39. AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

EFEL-A=1—HAULFE

39. B —EBE RRMRIEA

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

40. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

EN—-—REKLARZELERE 28
NBBREREE

. BN —RESRE

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REIE B4 - -
Mr. Lei Hong Wai FHEEE 1,300 =

Amount due to a director is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

On 4 January 2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance of HK$50,000,000 to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 28 August 2020, Mr. Lei Hong Wai made a
cash advance of HK$1,300,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.

On 30 January 2020, 2 March 2020 and 8 April
2020, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, an executive
director of the Company, made cash advances
of HK$600,000, HK$400,000, and HK$200,000
respectively to the Group for financing its short-
term funding needs. On 29 June 2020, the Group
repaid the cash advances to Mr. Cheung Kwok
Fan.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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RZZ-ZZFFNA=-TNE  FHESL
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 4. EEBIBEE B
For the purpose of presentation in the REJIRGESUMBARRE » BHTELER
consolidated statement of financial position, BEEREME TLURSE - BAMBERE
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have ME > UTHREBEERIEESR DN

been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 50,642 15,974
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE (230,521) (232,083)
(179,879) (216,109)
The followings are the major deferred tax assets LTATECRIAEERELEEREAEE
and liabilities recognised and movements RESE
thereon:
Fair value
adjustment on  Amortisation Allowance
Tax acquisition of lease for credit
losses of subsidiaries contract losses Total
WENELE HERH FEER
WEEE 2ZATERE e B a3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr 7T Fhr 7 FEr
At 1 January 2019 BR=E-n%E-A-A - (239,843) 7,047 8,036 (224,760)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated  REFABRRTA/ (k)
statement of profit or loss - 5,605 (1,458) 744 4,891
Exchange alignment iR - 2,155 1,717 (112) 3,760
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-NETZA=+-BR
1 January 2020 “ZZZE-f-H - (232,083) 7,306 8,668 (216,109)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated  AEFARHRTIT A/ (k)
statement of profit or loss 2,070 5,550 505 30,154 38,279
Exchange alignment ERAZ - (3,987) 1,604 334 (2,049)
At 31 December 2020 RZE2-EF+-A=1-H 2,070 (230,520) 9,415 39,156 (179,879)
At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused N-ZE-—ZTE+=—A=+—8 A£EHE
estimated tax losses of HK$213,307,000 (2019: AR A GBI EEE 213,307,000
HK$173,314,000) available for offsetting against FT(=ZF— AE :173,314,0008 7T ) 7
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has KSR ERERER - REFBD R
been recognised in respect of HK$12,546,000 ZE 812,546,000 T(ZEE—HEF :
(2019:Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset WMVBESUEIERIEEE - AREELEA
has been recognised in respect of remaining %25 F > B E R 8 T 200,761,000
HK$200,761,000 (2019: 173,314,000) due to the BIT(=ZF— N 173,314,000 7T)
unpredictability of future profit streams. TESEERIIEESE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

(a)

42. XD T Z2MBMRR R 2B

COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the (a) AT ZHMBEMRRE
Company
2020 2019
—E_ZTHF —ZT-hEF
HK$"009 HK$"OOQ
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RMB AT 2R 2,769,432 2,831,433
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TR RIE 709 670
Cash and cash equivalents BeEkREEEY 1,831 1,418
2,540 2,088
Total assets EEH#AE 2,771,972 2,833,521
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to 7~ Bl H A FE{h
owners of the Company B &
Share capital [N 38,196 38,196
Reserves E3E] 2,255,943 2,260,174
Total equity R 2,294,139 2,298,370
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities nEaE
Accruals and other payable EstE R R EMESRIE 12,536 21,313
Amounts due to a director B —REENE 1,300 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS Bt B A RIFRIE 13,997 13,997
Other borrowings H b {& 200,000 200,000
Secured notes EREE 250,000 299,841
477,833 535,151
Total liabilities BEHE 477,833 535,151
Total equity and liabilities EELEEHAE 2,771,972 2,833,521
Net current liabilities REBAERE (475,293) (533,063)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEELERABAERE 2,294,139 2,298,370
Signed on behalf of the board of directors RERESESHE

by:

Lei Hong Wai
TR

Director

EE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

Chan Kin Wah Billy
PRiZZE

Director

EFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #iZ = FE_FF+ -HA=+—HIFEF

42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42, RPTZHBBMRRKRRBEEEZE
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve of the Company (b) KA TFFEE
Equity-
settled
share-
based
Share  Contributed payment  Accumlated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
HREEE
2R
RisE B4ER XARE ZitEiR @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FEL FEL

At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-f-R 1,807,051 488,016 9,063 (40,983) 2,263,147
Loss and total comprehensive ~ REEFER2EER

expense for the year &% - - - (2,973) (2,973)
Release on lapse of equity- NRBEEZRBEF

settled share-based SRERE - - (9,063) 9,063 -

At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NE

1 January 2020 TZA=t-8k
“B2EE-f-H 1,807,051 488,016 - (34,893) 2,260,174
Loss and total comprehensive ~ REEFER2EER
expense for the year ok - - - (4,231) (4,231)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-%%
ZR=1-H 1,807,051 488,016 - (39,124) 2,255,943

e BB EERAT
—R-EEEH 2O
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Contributed surplus represents the net amount
transferred from share capital and share
premium to retained profits pursuant to the
special resolutions passed at the special
general meetings held on 22 August 2003, 30
April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot
make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

(b) Equity-settled share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The
amount for each reporting period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses
with a corresponding increase in equity-settled
share-based payment reserve.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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42. ADTF 2 BMBMRR KRR S B

(4&)

(b) ATk (E)

Bz -

()

(b)

EHEBERER-_ST=E/A
—+t=g - —BENEmA=1H
R-B-—#+-At+-REFZ
RESBAE BB EIREE
AR AN IR AR 19 36 (8 48 5 R B %R
2 BE -

$E'<$FE§L AN—F D FE (g
ARSI HESIR o A R
U\T%/R KATTEEHBARER
RAERSIR () AD R ERRER
IR EEDEEINEMEEEZE
B H()AAREEZTEEER
AmMEREESE -

LREEE 2 RN I RFEHEIENE
Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬂguiﬁﬂﬂ
REt I EERE 2 AV E HBE
TIRBEERERR EI%HZ"?E
AE - EHREMEBENEBKE
REAFEREEEBEH(ME)RA
BoEE IEIKETIHARE
B MURBEE 2RO
R EMRFEIE D -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

43. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 43. HE— BB LR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZFF+-_A=+—-HLEE
WHRIHBEEEEEFRAL A R FEEEEFRAL A
On 14 July 2020, the Group entered into a R-ZZE-_ZFFLtA+THA > XEERE
conditional sale and purchase agreement relating BAEELtFZtHEEXEEERRELATIZE
to the disposal of the entire issued share capital HEBITRAF—EBBEILE=F:TXL
of tFILHMHESEAER AT to an independent EMHEEHE ReREAARKE
third party, at a cash consideration of RMB1. The T ZHEETHEER-_Z_ZFtA
disposal was completed on 14 July 2020. TIAEK °
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEZHIREERBESH
control was lost
HK$’000
FETT
Property, plant and equipment M - MERZE 600
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1&#& - FETF0E Kk H A FEURFRIE 3,453
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 116
Deposits received, accruals and other g2z E - BT ERARAEMMEMATIR
payables (4,608)
Amounts due to group companies EEBEQRKIE (6,858)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEZEEFE (7,297)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB A a2
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received BEWESRE -
Net liabilities disposed of EHEZEEFHE 7,297
Amounts due to group companies assigned EETEH BN EERQTRIE
to purchaser (6,858)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal RHE—EKH B TERERHERD
of a subsidiary 508
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BEMB ARz 947
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEZHEHHFE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received EUWRERE -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of Jjif - EHEZRERREEEY (116)
Net cash outflow RERHFEE (116)

KERMREATRAT  oqq
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

44. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

Rental income from investment properties earned
during the year amounted to HK$5,095,000 (2019:
HK$5,095,000). All of the Group’s investment
properties are held for rental purposes. The
investment properties are expected to generate
rental yields of 3.60% (2019: 3.20%) on an
ongoing basis. The investment properties have
committed tenants for the next four months
(2019: two years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

44,

RedHERH
AEEERHBA

FAREVERDZ2EBERAAE
5,095,000/ T (=& — 1% : 5,095,000
BI)e MEBEAEB2BREMEDNSE
HERAZ BHREVENSEELE
3.60% (ZZFE—NF :3.20%)2HHEW
BR REVENARAROLBER(=ZE—N
T WME)HIEHFREHEE -

R|EHPR - AEBRFAIRELEHE
ETHTHRARREAEMNRERBEA
A BERRIBBRAOT

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-h1EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Within one year —F R 1,600 5,095

In the second to fifth year inclusive gy}
(BHEEEMF) - 1,600
1,600 6,695

45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. EREIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following capital commitments which were
contracted but not provided for.

RBEHR  AEEBEUTEINEL
REE 2 EAREIE -

2020 2019

g g 253 —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Capital expenditures for the Subject Land FEihifi o EAFX 237,998 26,854
Renovation costs for the properties NRE B2 Y 2 B

located in Hong Kong 290 -

238,288 26,854

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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46. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
Share options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The Company may refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit subject to approval of the
shareholders in general meeting, provided that
the Scheme Mandate Limit as refreshed must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit.

/|

46. UREBE ZROXRZR S

BRERRNR=-ZE——F+=-B+=HBHE
BrEBRER  XQABARMH—EHE
REFE(BRESTS D URRAR=
EE_F A+ —HEREMNZBRES
2o -BREMESHR=-ZE=-_—%F1+=A
+—HER BRESFZEESAAT
ARRECEERSHEERBBERE
EARSHAEB cEMIELEER 2
BRI o

REBRETE  SERBHEED/LE
BBy RBES (BERQXAHEM
MEBRARZEMES  TWmHTRIED
17 RTIWREBY) ; AKRBABRITE
ARE 2 EMFEEA ) RAEE M
EBRHSECREBH  ABH  KEH
RE--BE -BRAA HEB RAB
FEREAFF  EREA(BEEME
RERBAN)HBRTE EETHEF (B
BEMSEBEF)  REZS2EHBER
EEEYAREARNEEFELEEM2EM
AL

ROFERBEBEREFERADTEME
R ETEREMERTEZIEE
REEATFHRTZRMOEE ZE LR
TEBBRAREHEITRM230% - £ L
MEBRERRIERRT » NITERBER
REET 81 & AN D B E A H 4th B8 IR FE 5T 2178
FRECAEERERAFHITZRA
M SHAESEBBRETEZELE
EHCBRITRHO210% ([T 8B #ER
) o NETEFTEIRERER SR
BRETE BB B RES T
EERN HERRASLERRAER
AAT A EHTEREREE  HEHE
ZETEIREREISEBEHRAEHR
HEEHEBITRMNZ210% °
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46. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders in the
manner set out below, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Where any further grant
of share options to an eligible participant would
result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all share options granted
and to be granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the shares
in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders in general meeting
with such eligible participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or an independent non-executive director, or
their respective associates, would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options already granted and to be
granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant: (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options must be approved by the shareholders
at a general meeting, with voting to be taken by
way of a poll.

An offer for the grant of share options shall
remain open for acceptance for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made. A
non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of
an offer for the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised in whole or in part at
any time during the period to be determined and
identified by the board of directors, but in any
event no later than 10 years from the date of
grant but subject to the early termination of the
Option Scheme.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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46. IREBE 2RO XRZR 5 (#)

BRIELAT M5 KR RAL A& - BREM
12EAHER . BEAEKRSRERT
EERTcBREBEBECSTERERT
EZzBERB)REBITRETFERITZRG
B TEEBCBRITROZ21% ° i
MEERSHEEE-SIRHBRELS
FRBEE-SIRHUBREE A (BHE%
R)E12@BHEA > RITEERTR
BRTFZEERBHEEZHEERE(R
BETE  EERERTEZBRE) R
EBROTEBTFRTZRNGHABBE &
TR Z1% @ AE—SREZEBRE
AERRMRRRASELHME ZEER
SHRERABBAARRRE -

HEARAARETERR(EEZRE EmHRLA)
BBUFHTEETLIRESECHEA
TREFMERESERIREBERLEE
[RESE R (BEZE)LE12@BHER
RITEEREREFREE A BERE
(BEETHE THEHESKRTHEZBEBR
B)BEBTREFRITZRG : ()&H
HBBERTRM20.1%; R(i)RKRH
RERHEBHZRHEFNE  #AEBB
5,000,000/t » AIE—FSRHZEBER
EEAERRARREASELURERRT
RHLE -

HEBREZENAMMELHEN A B
SORHIM MR AT M- AR
ARBERFRREBREZZQFAEMN
1.008 T2 A A RERRNE - BRE
TREFEEERBE ZBERNER2
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46. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise price shall be determined by the
board of directors at its sole discretion, provided
that it shall be not less than the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Exchange on the offer
date; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company
did not adopted any share option scheme other
than the Option Scheme.

Details of specific categories of share options
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

46. URBEHE 2RO XRZR 5 (#)

THEEHESSUHE-RIFRET -
EBERBERUT=EZE&SE : ()RHD
RENBAHMEBRXMBERERFARZ
WHE: ()RORBEZLN A A E
EEBEBITERABERATZFY
W B 5 R (i) ROREN B ZEE °

NZE—_BEER=_FE—HhE+=H
=+—B > ARRAERNRERES
SNV EMEE IR AESTE

BEENBRERBE-ZT-N\F+=
B=T-BLEFERZHBNOT :

Share

option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price

BREER REAH 1T TEE

2018 27 April 2018 27 April 2018 to 26 April 2019 HK$0.185
—E-N\EWA=+tH —E-N\FEHAZTtHE 0.18538 7T

“E-NENAZ=1AHE

The following table discloses movements of
the Company’s share options held by directors,
employees and consultants during the year ended
31 December 2019:

TREEES  EERBEEARBE=Z
—NF+-RA=1T—-HLEFERMREFAR
NEBREZEE

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed as at
1 January during during 31 December
Share option type 2019 the year the year 2019
RZE-1% RZZ-NEF
—-A-H TZA=1+-H
BERESR ta RAT RERRH RERTTE REREN & RATE
2018 316,920,000 - (316,920,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the reporting
period

REERMRAFTE -

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.185 HK$0.185
MEFHTRE 0.185/8 7T - 0.185/ 7 -
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46. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 46. LIRBEEE 2RO IRZR S (&)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and REBE-_Z-_ZFR-_ZF—-—HIFE+=A
2019, no share options were granted. =t+t—HILEFER  BERHBIRE-
During the year ended 31 December 2018, RBE-Z—-N\F+-A=+—HL#TF
316,920,000 share options were granted on ER ERZZE-—N\FOAZ-+EHE
27 April 2018. The estimated fair value of the i 316,920,00017 #E B £ - AR H B &
share options granted on the date of grant was R ZBREZ 452 FEA9,063,000
HK$9,063,000, which had been expensed as B DHEUREEE 2 RB TR
equity-settled share-based payment expenses. & o
The fair values of the share options for the year BEZ-_Z-—- N+ -A=+—HLH#E
ended 31 December 2018 were calculated by E BRECAFTEDNHPRERAZE
Grant Sherman using a binomial option pricing AN EEBERNGTE - TRIHIEX
model. The following table lists the inputs to the i A 808 -
model used:

Share option type

BREER
2018

—B-N\F
Share option life 1 year
85 IR 1 58 5P 146
Grant date share price HK$0.185
BB ERE 0.185& 7T
Exercise price HK$0.185
1T1EME 0.1858 7T
Expected volatility (%) 40.65%
FEHAR 1@ (%)
Expected life of share options 1 year
BB IR 2 FEEF 1 16
Dividend yield (%) 0%
IR B U R (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.945%
B R = (%)
Expected volatility was determined by using FEERE IR AARNTRBE—F2RE
historical volatility of the Company’s share prices ZELRIRERE °

over the previous one year.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options
were based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of a share option varied with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

For equity-settled share-based payments with
parties other than employees, the Group rebutted
the presumption that the fair values of the
services received could be estimated reliably
as in the opinion of the directors, the fair value
of the services received could not be reliably
measured. Accordingly, the Group measured
the services received from these parties, with
reference to the fair values of the share options
granted using the binomial option pricing model,
at the date of grant.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company
had no share options outstanding.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the MPF Scheme for all the eligible employees of
the Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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48. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. B AR ZFHE
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 AARMBRARAR=-_Z=_FF+_A
December 2020 are set out as follows: =E+—HAZFBHINT :
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
AL KERS,/ ARAREZRERRR ERORBERE/
MEARER BEzExR/HE  ERREEH RRERELA ERE TEXK
2020 2019
ZBIEE “Z-NE
% %
Adelio Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLRS R e REER
Angel Wish Group Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRLHS i (S REER
Bayhood No. 9 Co.¥ The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB50,000,000 Provision of recreational
LAY HE it AR®50,000,0007  and wellness
services through the
management of a
membership-based
golf club and resort
EBEREEHEAAR
eSO
ERRRERS
Best Season Holdings Corp.  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 75 75 US$100 Dormant
ABRLES Gl 100%7 gEgx
Bluelagoon Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Dormant
Holdings Limited ABRLEE L@ 1%5% gRex
China Jiuhao Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
HE IR £ LE 187 RELR
Eternity Finance Group British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 HK$100,000,000  Investment holding
_ Limited EBERUEE ) 100,000,000 ¢ REER
KERBEBARAF
Gainful Fortune Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 99.99 99.99 HK$160,000,100 Dormant
ABRAEE LE 160,000,100 ~ EEE¥
Golden Stone Management  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
Limited ABEARE L@ 1% REER
Hong Kong Builders Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Money lending
Finance Limited B LB 2B &
BRIBERALR
K E G Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
BEARAR ABRLHE LE 1%% RELZR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

48. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

48. B AR 215 (&)

(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Al KERS,/ RARBEZRERRES BRORBRRE/
WEAFER BEzExR/HE  ERREEH RBREELA ERE TEXH
2020 2019
“g-gf “F-qfF
% %
K E Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
EEXEERAR 5B L@ 10,0003 1T jewelry products
Rt RHEREER
Legend Rich Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EBELRS LE 1%7 REER
Max Winner Investments Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Property holdings
Limited & i 187 BENE
AEREBRAT
New Cove Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
EERLHE LE 1%% RELZR
Om Gem Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000 Design and sale of
; LB 10,0003 7 jewelry products
R RHEREER
One Synergy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
&8 HE 187 REZR
Open Heart Investments British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
Limited By Treids L 127 REER
Rexdale Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$10,000,000 Property holdings
&h LB 10,000,008  HENE
Riche Advertising Limited  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
EBEARE LE 1%7 HETREE
Riche (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1,000 Investment holding
ABRIEE i 1,000 %7 REER
Riche Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
EXBTERAA 35 LB 1,000,000 7 gEex
Riche Multi-Media Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$2 Dormant
EXSERARLT &8 LE 2B gEeX
Riche Pictures Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABEARS LE (E REER
Simple View Investment British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited KERLES EE (S HESRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z —FE_FH#{+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

48. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. B AR ZFH1E (&)
(Continued)
Class of Proportion of
Country/place of  shares held/  ownership interest and Issued and fully
incorporation or registered voting power held by paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company registered capital  Principal activities
Gl KERHR/ KRAREZRERRR ERTRBERE/
MEARER fEvER/HE  ARRAEH RREELA R A TEER
2020 2019
ZEIRE ZE-NE
% %
Smart Field Management Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1 Investment holding
Limited &8 LE 187 REZR
BRERERAT
Smart Sphinx Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
ABRELHS HE 1% REER
Smart Title British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Investment holding
AERUHE EE 1£% REZR
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1,000,000 Dormant
BHERAF &B HE 1,000,000 gEeX
Victory Peace Holdings British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 US$1 Sale of financial assets
Limited ABRLES HE 1£% HESREE
REERERAH
Yuan Shun Investments British Virgin Islands  Ordinary 100 100 USS$1 Investment holding
Limited EBEARS LE 1% REER
TEREERAF
MR (1) BROUEER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMBS,657,085 Investment holding
ATl e i AR¥6,657,0851 REZR
BonR Ut BR(ER)ER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB100,000 Investment holding
Gk HE A ARHE100000  REZR
TERERBRENEEEER  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000  Provision of property
AL HE i AR#10,000,0007T  management
services
RENEERRE
TREHHELEEERAF  The PRC Registered - 100 RMB10,000,000 Leasing of properties
HE T AK#10,000,000 #MEHE
EREREREERAR  The PRC Registered 100 100 RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
HE i AK#10,000,000 REZR
IREBERERAT  The PRC Registered 70 70 RMB10,000,000 Managing and operating
(T8 ))e E afft AK#10,000,0007  cultural forum and
related cultural
activities
EEREEN(LRERAY
XLES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

48. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

& limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan,
Hong Kong or Macao legal person) established in the
PRC.

H limited liability company (solely invested by legal

person) established in the PRC.

g limited liability company (solely invested by foreign
owned enterprise) established in the PRC.

© other limited liability company established in the
PRC.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year or during the
year.

The directors consider that Best Season Holdings
Corp., Gainful Fortune Limited and # B, the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests, are not material to the
Group. Accordingly, the financial information of
Best Season Holdings Corp., Gainful Fortune
Limited and ##5t is not separately presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

48. B AR 215 (&)

. RPBERI2EREEAR(BBEEA
BE) °

? RABERIZEREEARCEABE) °

& RPBRI2EREEAAGIERER
xBE) -

@ RAPBERL 2HMEREEAT -

KA B EEFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
@ TERHMKEBARNYBEALNAR[
BER -

BEMNBLACRFRINFRBRITEMN
EHEE -

EE R A Best Season Holdings Corp.
Gainful Fortune Limited & 5t (& #
EHEREZZIZENBLAR)EHK
SEEMSMLHFEK - HitkBest Season
Holdings Corp. » Gainful Fortune
Limited R AR5t = B 1 & R MA KRS
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 49. EXBEALTRS
TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended 31 December 2020 RBE-_ZE-_ZTFR-_F-—NAF+=A
and 2019, the Group entered into the following =+—HALFER AEEHEBEAL
transactions with related parties: FIMUTRS :
(a) Transactions with associates (a) EEEQARZRS
Amounts due to/(from) associates FEff - (FEW)BE R a7 E
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Amount due from an associate FEUR — B & A Bl 5k IE
(note 25) (Btat 25) 38,437 38,437
Amount due to an associate P — B E A Rl IE
(note 39) (Kia£ 39) (1,966) (1,967)
The amounts to/(from) associates do not FEAS(FEUR) Bt N R FRE I T8
constitute connected transactions as defined BETRBEAAEMER 2BEE
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. 5 e
Expenses paid/payable to and income Eft ENBEELAGTHREK "
received/receivable from associates FEWHE L Gk A

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLFE

2020 2019
g g 253 —E-h1F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Brokerage and related expenses B — R QT
paid/payable to an associate R RAEBRX 113 149

Rental income received/receivable B2 Uk FEWELZ N T)

from associates HEWA 5,095 3,335

The above transactions do not constitute
connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation for key management
personnel

The remuneration of executive directors
and the chief executive officer, who are
key management, during the year was as

i 8 MR R T

49. EXBEALIRS (&)

(b)

FTEEEASHM

FRBTESRTHRAR(RE
EEEAB)ZHMEMT :

follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+T—HLEE
2020 2019
—ECRF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHET
Short-term benefits EHIER 24,360 26,260
Post-employment benefits BRI 2R A 72 72
24,432 26,332

Total remuneration is included in “staff
costs” (see note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements).

The remuneration of executive directors and
the chief executive officer is approved by the
board of directors on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the duties and responsibilities of
individuals and market trends.

B AIETIAARN(REGSE
B IRRMEE 12) ©

HITESRITHREB 2 HMEDHE
ZERFHEZEES 2 HEBERRS
ZEACBERBERTSBEE
s

KERKBREBRAR
—ToEFER
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 29 November 2018, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai, the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director, provided a personal
guarantee to secure the Company’s
repayment obligations under the loan
of HK$200,000,000 granted by the
finance company to the Company. No
consideration was paid by the Company
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the provision
of personal guarantee. No security over
the assets of the Group was provided
for the personal guarantee given by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
provision of personal guarantee by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai remains in full force and
effect.

On 24 December 2018, Mr. Lei
Hong Wai made a cash advance
of HK$50,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 4 January
2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 30 January 2019, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai made a cash advance of
HK$25,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 7 March
2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 15 February 2019, Twin Success
International Limited (“Twin Success”),
a substantial shareholder of the
Company which is beneficially owned
as to 50% by Mr. Lei Hong Wai, as
to 25% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton, an executive director, and as
to 25% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan,
an executive director, made a cash
advance of HK$7,200,000 to the Group
for financing its short-term funding
needs. The cash advance was non-
interest bearing and unsecured. On 28
February 2019, the Group repaid the
cash advance to Twin Success.
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

On 17 October 2019, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai made a cash advance of
HK$20,000,000 to the Group for
financing its short-term funding needs.
The cash advance was non-interest
bearing and unsecured. On 29 October
2019, the Group repaid the cash
advance to Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

On 30 January 2020, 2 March 2020 and
8 April 2020, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
made cash advances of HK$600,000,
HK$400,000, and HK$200,000
respectively to the Group for financing
its short-term funding needs. The cash
advances were non-interest bearing
and unsecured. On 29 June 2020, the
Group repaid the cash advances to Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan.

On 9 March 2020, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai provided a personal guarantee
to secure the Group’s repayment
obligations under the securities margin
financing facility of HK$40,000,000
granted by a securities company to the
Group. No consideration was paid by
the Group to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the
provision of the personal guarantee.
No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal
guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2020, the provision of
the personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai remains in full force and effect.

On 28 August 2020, Mr. Lei Hong Wai
made a cash advance of HK$1,300,000
to the Group for financing its short-term
funding needs. The cash advance was
non-interest bearing and unsecured.

At 31 December 2020, the outstanding
balance of the cash advance is
HK$1,300,000, which is presented in
the “Amount due to a director” line
item in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with the directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company
(Continued)

(ix)

On 29 September 2020, each of Mr. Lei
Hong Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai
Elton provided a personal guarantee
to guarantee the punctual performance
by the Company’s obligations under
the HK$270,000,000 13% guaranteed
secured notes due 2021 issued by
the Company on 29 September 2020
pursuant to the subscription and
note instrument agreement dated 25
September 2020. No consideration was
paid by the Company to Mr. Lei Hong
Wai and/or Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
for providing the personal guarantees.
No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal
guarantees given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai
and/or Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton.

At 31 December 2020, the provision of
personal guarantees by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
remained in full force and effect.

On 22 October 2020, Mr. Lei Hong
Wai provided a personal guarantee
to secure the Group’s repayment
obligations under the securities margin
financing facility of HK$14,000,000
granted by a securities company to the
Group. No consideration was paid by
the Group to Mr. Lei Hong Wai for the
provision of the personal guarantee.
No security over the assets of the
Group was provided for the personal
guarantee given by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

At 31 December 2020, the provision of
the personal guarantee by Mr. Lei Hong
Wai remains in full force and effect.

All of the above transactions also constitute
connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
these transactions are fully exempt from
the connected transaction requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules under Rule
14A.90.
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

49, EXRBEEALIRF (&)

BRARTANBRAAZESEZRS

(d) Transactions with the directors of the (d)

subsidiaries of the Company

On 20 August 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co.
as lender entered into a loan agreement
with Mr. Guan Jialin, a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, as borrower, and
Ms. Hao Yuhui, the spouse of Mr. Guan
Jialin, as guarantor relating to grant a loan
in the principal amount of RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$28,532,000) to Mr. Guan
Jialin for a term of 24 months commencing
from 24 August 2018. The loan was interest
bearing at 9.00% per annum, secured by
a real estate mortgage over a residential
property located in Beijing, the PRC owned
by Ms. Hao Yuhui (the “Property”) and
maturing on 23 August 2020. The terms of
the loan agreement were negotiated on an
arm’s length basis between Bayhood No. 9
Co. and Mr. Guan Jialin with reference to
terms and conditions of the loan agreements
entered into between the Group and its
money lending customers.

On 20 September 2018, Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
Mr. Guan Jialin and Ms. Hao Yuhui entered
into a supplemental agreement relating to
the amendment of the condition precedent
of the loan agreement dated 20 August
2018. Pursuant to which, the loan agreement
was conditional upon the real estate
mortgage over the Property having been duly
registered with tERHIEXREFEZEES (Real
Estate Bureau of Beijing Shunyi District) (the
“Real Estate Bureau”) by Mr. Yuan Huixia
(as agent of Bayhood No. 9 Co.), a then
director and legal representative of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ms.
Hao Yuhui.
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Transactions with the directors of the

subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Concurrently, on 20 September 2018,
Mr. Yuan Huixia executed an irrevocable
undertaking in favour of Bayhood No. 9 Co.,
pursuant to which:

(i)  Mr. Yuan Huixia shall, on behalf of
Bayhood No. 9 Co. and together with
Ms. Hao Yuhui, register the real estate
mortgage over the Property with the
Real Estate Bureau;

(i) in the event that Mr. Guan Jialin does
not repay the loan in accordance with
the loan agreement, Mr. Yuan Huixia
shall sell the Property on the instruction
of Bayhood No. 9 Co. and transfer the
proceeds in full to Bayhood No. 9 Co.;

(i) in the event that Bayhood No. 9 Co.
proposes to change the mortgagee
of the mortgage over the Property
or terminate the mortgage, Mr. Yuan
Huixia shall execute all necessary
documents on the instruction of
Bayhood No. 9 Co. to effect such
change or termination; and

(iv) unless on the instruction of Bayhood
No. 9 Co., Mr. Yuan Huixia shall not
change the mortgagee of the mortgage
over the Property, terminate the
mortgage, or sell the Property.

As each of Mr. Guan Jialin, Ms. Hao Yuhui
and Mr. Yuan Huixia was a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as at the date of the loan agreement,
the entering into of the loan agreement
(as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

49, EXRBEEALIRF (&)

BRARTAHNBRAAZESEZRS

(d) Transactions with the directors of the (d)

subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

The directors (including all the independent
non-executive directors) confirmed
that the terms of the loan agreement
(as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement with the undertaking) were
fair and reasonable, the transactions
contemplated thereunder were on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Announcements in respect of the loan
agreement and the supplemental agreement
with the undertaking were published on
20 August 2018 and 20 September 2018
respectively in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The loan agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemented agreement with the
undertaking) became unconditional on 26
September 2018 and the drawdown of the
loan was made on 29 September 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding
balance of the loan is RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to HK$27,909,000), which was
included in the “Other receivables” line item
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The related interest income for the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB2,248,000 (equivalent to HK$2,554,000),
which was included in the “Investment and
other income” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

On 2 June 2020, Mr. Guan Jialin repaid
the loan of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$27,178,000) together with the accrued
interest thereon of RMB599,000 (equivalent
to HK$651,000).

The directors confirm that the above
transactions have complied with the
connected transaction requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. EAEEEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue of new shares or
redemption of existing shares as well as raise
or repay debts. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The Group’s policy
is to maintain the gearing ratio between 20%
and 40%. Debt includes interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, amount due to a director
and secured notes. Equity attributable to owners
of the Company includes share capital, retained
profits and other reserves. The gearing ratio as at
the end of the reporting periods was as follows:

AEBEREACTEERARELSE
BiEREKE AL EFTRELER I
REEEBREARREER -

AEBEEHEERAGRBRIRBEEBR
SFHARE  EFARABRELE
B AEESREARRRBZRE
ARRBEBEAS - RTHRIAERES
BROUREENEEEH -BLFE
FEBZBRERBESTE -

AEBFRAEEEBLRERER %
LRI ERBERUKR AT EE AES
BETE AEENBRREFEES
BEENF20% £40% - BB EIETE
RITEARHEMER BT —FBEER
BERIEREZE - AATHEE AEGRER
BEBRAE - REBEEANREtHE - RiR
EHARCEEEBLERNT ¢

2020 2019

—E-BF ZFAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total debt B4R 668,080 655,561
Equity attributable to owners of the RARHEE AELER

Company 2,368,661 2,423,931

Gearing ratio EESBLE 28.20% 27.05%
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50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

On 25 August 2017, the Group issued 2017
Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000. Under the 2017 Notes, the
Company covenants with the noteholders that
from the issue date and for so long as any 2017
Notes are outstanding, the Group will ensure the
consolidated tangible net worth of the Group will
not be less than HK$1,300,000,000. Consolidated
tangible net worth of the Group means, by
reference to an annual audited consolidated
financial statement or a semiannual unaudited
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
the aggregate of the amounts paid up or credited
as paid up on the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company and the amount standing to the
credit of the reserves of the Group, but deducting
any amount shown in respect of goodwill or other
intangible assets of the Group.

The Company complied with the covenant
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019. At
31 December 2019, the consolidated tangible net
worth of the Group was HK$1,316,436,000. At 30
June 2019, the consolidated tangible net worth
of the Group was HK$1,406,104,000.

Based on the condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the consolidated tangible
net worth as at 30 June 2020 was less than
HK$1,300,000,000, which constituted the Breach.
On 27 August 2020, the Company obtained a
waiver from the noteholders in respect on the
Breach.

On 25 September 2020, the Group issued 2020
Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$270,000,000. Under the 2020 Notes, the
Company covenants with the noteholders that
from the issue date and for the so long as any
2020 Notes are outstanding, the Group will
ensure the consolidated tangible net worth of
the Group will not less than HK$1,000,000,000.
Consolidated tangible net worth of the Group
means, by reference to an annual audited or
a semiannual unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the aggregate of the
amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company and
the amount standing to the credit of the reserves
of the Group, but deducting any amount shown
in respect of goodwill, other intangible assets
or right-of-use assets of the Group, and adding
any amount show in respect of lease liabilities
or deferred tax liabilities relating to the other
intangible assets of the Group.
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50. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

51.

The Company has complied with the covenant
throughout the period from 29 September 2020
to 31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the
consolidated tangible net worth of the Group was
HK$1,466,722,000.

50.

EXEREEE)

AXABRER=ZZB-BEFAA=TNBZE
—ECEF+-_A=+—RHLHE &
ETEBERZ#Z R-_ZTE-_ZEF+=A
=+—-B  AXEBEZHEEEFES
1,466,722,000 % 7T °

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51, €@ I A
Categories of financial instruments SR T AE>ER
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost 1 8H AR 925,951 1,227,914
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRRZ
— listed equity securities in Hong — BB LLTMRARES
Kong 410,395 240,815
Financial liabilities cEAE
Amortised cost #8E R AR 1,127,291 1,074,398

The Group’s major financial instruments include
loan receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, deposits received, accruals and other
payables, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
amount due to an associate, amount due to a
director, lease liabilities, and secured notes.

At the end of the reporting period:

(@) loan receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
are categorised as “amortised cost” under
financial assets; and

(b) trade payables, deposits received, accruals
and other payables, bank borrowings, other
borrowings, amount due to an associate,
amount due to a director, lease liabilities,
and secured notes are categorised as
“amortised cost” under financial liabilities.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong classified
under financial assets at FVTPL, loan receivables,
trade receivables, other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables, bank
borrowings, other borrowings, amount due to
an associate, amount due to a director, lease
liabilities, and secured notes. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong
Kong and the PRC. An entity within the
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
from commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group engages in property investment
business in the PRC through its local
subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency. These PRC subsidiaries are not
exposed to foreign currency risk as their
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB.

Several subsidiaries of the Group with Hong
Kong dollar as their functional currency
have commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in
USD, Pound Sterling and Euro.
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
financial position and cash flow exchange
risk exposures and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts,
foreign currency options and forward rate
agreements, to hedge the foreign currency
risk.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
entities with functional currency of Hong
Kong dollar had the aggregate net monetary
assets denominated in USD amounted to
HK$7,092,000 (2019: HK$4,585,000). Given
that Hong Kong dollar are pegged to USD,
the directors consider that there is no
significant foreign currency risk exposure
with respect to USD.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
entities with functional currency of Hong
Kong dollar had the aggregate net monetary
assets denominated in Pound Sterling
and Euro amounted to HK$261,000 (2019:
HK$700,000). Given that the aggregate
net monetary assets denominated in these
foreign currencies is less than 1.00% (2019:
less than 1.00%) of the Group’s net assets
at 31 December 2020, the directors consider
that the net monetary assets of these
currencies are not significant to the Group at
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is prepared and
disclosed.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to its bank borrowings
and one of the securities margin financing
facilities classified under "other borrowings"
respectively with variable rates. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
concentrated on fluctuation of HIBOR and
prime rate arising from its Hong Kong dollar
denominated bank borrowings and securities
margin financing facilities respectively.
The Group’s certain other borrowings and
secured notes carry fixed interest rates,
which are not exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. It manages
its interest rate risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where
considered appropriate using financial
instruments to hedge the interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates of
the bank borrowings and securities margin
financing facilities had been 50 (2019: 50
basis points) higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group’s loss
and total comprehensive expense for the
year ended 31 December 2020 would have
increased/decreased by HK$846,000 (2019:
HK$650,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to
a change in interest rates for the bank
borrowings and securities margin financing
facilities with variable rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
the Group’s bank borrowings and securities
margin financing facilities with variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s loss and
total comprehensive expense for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such change in interest rates. The sensitivity
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2019.
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(c)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from listed equity securities in
Hong Kong held by it classified as financial
assets at FVTPL. The Group’s listed equity
securities in Hong Kong are listed on the
Exchange.

The Group manages its equity price risk
by regularly monitoring equity portfolio to
address any portfolio issues promptly and
spreading price risk exposure by investing
a number of listed equity securities in Hong
Kong.

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2020, if the prices of the
listed equity securities in Hong Kong with
quoted market price held by the Group had
been 15% (2019: 15%) higher/lower, with all
other variables remain constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have increased/decreased by
HK$51,402,000 (2019: HK$30,162,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from bank balances, trade receivables, loan
receivables and other receivables. The exposures
to these credit risks are regularly monitored on
an ongoing basis by established credit policies in
each of the Group’s core businesses.

(a)

Bank balances

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are high-credit-quality banks
and/or financial institutions, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the Group’s
sale of jewelry products business. The
Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group allows
credit period ranging from 0 to 270 days to
its customers. Before accepting any new
customer, credit evaluation is performed by
the responsible executive director to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and
define its credit limit. Credit evaluations
are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group performs impairment assessment
by applying the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach, which uses lifetime ECL
allowance as basis for all trade receivables
with reference to an ECL valuation prepared
by Grant Sherman. The ECL of trade
receivables is calculated as the product of
the three factors: gross credit exposure,
probability of default, and recovery rate
in case of insolvency in Hong Kong. The
probability of default is derived through the
application of a linear multiple regression
model, which estimates the statistical
relationship between a dependent variable
and multiple independent variables. To
reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the customers’ abilities
to settle the trade receivables, certain
adjustments have been made in the process
of deriving the appropriate probability
of default. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the end of the
reporting period about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(b) Trade receivables (Continued)
The following table provides information

about the Group’s exposure to credit risk
and allowance for credit losses on trade

51.

SRTIAE

MMEBEEEBRRBEE)

FE R R BEFE(E

(b) EZEWNEE)

TREHABAAEER-Z-ZF
R=Z2-—NF+=-B=1+—A05E
ZSRUREBEZEFERRREEER

receivables at 31 December 2020 and 2019: BE
2020 —EZERF
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
RHEE ERAGE
Past due status BERR BRX REAE BRRE REFE
HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000
FET FET FET
Current (not past due) BNER (i) 1.03% 28,865 (298) 28,567
1-30 days past due BH1ZE30H 4.61% 477 (22) 455
31-90 days past due BH31Z90H 17.11% 228 (39) 189
More than 90 days past due #EHii#iE90 R 22.75% 444 (101) 343
30,014 (460) 29,554

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. T R(#&
Financial risk management objectives and HERAREEEERBR (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B B R E TS (E
(Continued)
(b) Trade receivables (Continued) (b) EZEWEE)
2019 —E-NF
Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts
HHEE ERAGE
Past due status BEAMR EiEE REAR BERE REFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Current (not past due) BNER (Y fE AR ) 0.29% 39,295 (114) 39,181
1-30 days past due BIE12 300 2.96% 540 (16) 524
31-90 days past due BHA31Z90H 6.67% 15 1) 14
More than 90 days past due #EHIEB90 R 8.80% 159 (14) 145
40,009 (145) 39,864
Trade receivables are written off when there EEEREREFERENBEE
is information indicating that the customer is RARIBBERHKESKREBER
in severe financial difficulty and there is no B HIMEBEFEEBERREEST
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the WEREF EZEKRFERERE
customer has been placed under liquidation Bo27TOH (B RBEERE) 5 I
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, WEEEBEE S EWFIE -

or the trade receivables are over 270 days
past due, whichever occurs earlier.
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables

Loan receivables arise from the Group’s
money lending business. The Group has
developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business.
The credit policy and procedures manual
specifies the Group’s credit policy towards
its money lending business, the risk
management of the Group’s money lending
business, and the credit procedures for the
Group’s money lending business, which
include, among others, the loan application,
credit approval, loan closing, and monitoring
ongoing credit risk procedures. All new
customers of the Group are subject to
loan application procedures, which include
customer due diligence, reference check
for credit and character, and financial
background check. Granting of loan and
extension of final repayment date of loan are
approved by the two responsible executive
directors based on customer’s financial
position, past experience, credit assessment
and other factors. Monitoring the ongoing
credit risk of each individual customer is
carried out by the two responsible executive
directors twice a year, which includes
meeting with the customer and reviewing
of its/his/her periodic financial position. In
addition to monitoring on credit risk of each
customer twice a year as mentioned above,
review of patterns of repayment of principal
and/or interest of each individual customer
are/is carried out by the two responsible
executive directors monthly in order to
ensure potential problem loan is timely
identified. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

51. €@ T R (&)

MMEBEEEBRRBEE)

=B E AR R B EG ()

()

EEWREF

REBZEEXBELERRER -
AEBECEREBEERHFHERFE
HREEFFM FEBRRRE
FFMiAAEERREHEEESR
BHEEHR AEEEEREEHN
REEREUARAEBEEEELNE
ERF BREETEE)RFE
B FEME ERTAERERR
BEERMBRER - AEBEWFREH
EFAMBERRBERERF  BER
FEBEES FERABNERA
ENVBERAE ERRHRE
FNBRERBHEHEMEEE
HITESEREFFOMBMRR - B
HER  FEFEREMERER
EH - MEEEHTESEFMAX
ERS-—HENEFNEFESER
B ERERRAZEFEERER
HEMPBMR - R AT FR
REEB-EEFNEERRI -
CZMEEEHITESEAEMER
reR/HAEHEX  UBRERRK
HERREEBEER - Bltm S -
RARDEERRAEENEERR
RIEED ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables (Continued)

The board of directors of the Company
is responsible to ensure the credit policy
and procedures manual is appropriate to
the market need and the procedures as
set out in the manual are strictly followed
and carried out by the staff. The board of
directors has appointed Infinity Concept
Ripple Limited, an independent firm of
professional accountants, to conduct
independent review on adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group’s
money lending business.

For the purpose of internal credit risk
management, the Group considers a loan
receivable as underperforming if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or interest has
been overdue for more than three months,
and (ii) the principal, accrued interest and/or
future interest of the loan may not be fully
secured by the fair value of collateral at its
prevailing market price. The Group considers
a loan receivable as non-performing if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or interest has
been overdue for more than six months, and
(i) the collection of principal and/or interest
in full is improbable after taking into account
the fair values of the collateral at prevailing
market price.
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment
by applying the HKFRS 9 general approach
for all loan receivables on the basis of
allowance of 12-month ECL for items
without a significant increase in credit
risk (“SICR”) and lifetime ECL for items
with a SICR with reference to another ECL
valuation prepared by Grant Sherman.
The ECL of loan receivables is calculated
as the product of the three factors: gross
credit exposure, probability of default over
12 months following the reporting date,
and recovery rate in case of insolvency in
Hong Kong and the PRC (as the case may
be). The probability of default is derived
through the application of a linear multiple
regression model, which estimates the
statistical relationship between a dependent
variable and multiple independent variables.
To reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the customers’ ability
to settle the loans, certain adjustments
have been made in the process of deriving
the appropriate probability of default. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the end of the reporting
period about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c) Loan receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk
and allowance for credit losses on loan
receivables at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

e M BB RN
TR AHE

PMBEREEERERBEGE)

=B E R R B EFG (&)

(c) EUEF (&

TREHEBEAEER-_ZE-ZF
RZE-NAE+=-A=1+—HHE
WERzEFERBEEEEBR
& :

2020 —R-%F

Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts

Internal credit quality EHEE ERAEE
classification ABEEERSE Bz REAE EERE REFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Performing BE# 4.40% 668,200 (29,380) 638,820
Underperforming = 45.98% 141,779 (65,184) 76,595
Non-performing TEH 65.49% 166,620 (109,114) 57,506
976,599 (203,678) 772,921

2019 —E-NE

Allowance
Gross for credit Net
carrying losses carrying
ECL rate amount recognised amounts

Internal credit quality HHEE ERAGE
classification WHBEEEZDE BExR IREAE BERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Performing B4 2.20% 1,000,071 (22,021) 978,050
Underperforming R 0.00% - — -
Non-performing TEA 0.00% - - -
1,000,071 (22,021) 978,050
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z ==

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED

Loan receivables (Continued)

Movements in gross balance of loan

receivables:

FE=f=+“ALEE

51. €M T A(#)
MMEBEEEBRRBEE)

=B E AR R B EG ()

(c) EWEN(E)
BRER 2 BEHREE :

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-E-_EF+-A=+—-HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1RE F2RE FEIME #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZEZZF
—A—H 1,000,071 - - 1,000,071
(Decrease)/increase in EWER D),/
loan receivable 2140 (9,831) 2,775 (641) (7,697)
Transfer from Stage 1 to EE?I'%W RERERE
Stage 2 2P ER (139,004) 139,004 - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to E‘ﬂ?ﬂ BREREEZ
Stage 3 B3R (183,036) - 183,036 -
Written-off of loan MeEERER
receivables - - (15,775) (15,775)
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EfF
+=ZB=+-H 668,200 141,779 166,620 976,599
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NE+-A=+t—-HLEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1MRER F2MEER FEIMER @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
At 1 January 2019 R=Z2-1%F
—A—H 1,186,286 — — 1,186,286
Decrease in loan receivables JEUE R4 (186,215) - - (186,215)
At 31 December 2019 R=—E-hF
+=ZA=+-8 1,000,071 - - 1,000,071

Annual Report 2020
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

(c) Loan receivables (Continued)

Movements in allowance for credit losses on

loan receivables:

51.

TR EHE)
PMBEBEEEBERBEGE)

=B mE AR B EFG (E)

(c) EWEN(E)
BRERZFEBRREEE :

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-E2F+-A=1T-HLEFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE F2RE FEIME mt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZEZZF
—-A—H 22,021 - - 22,021
Transfer from Stage EE 1EERERE
1 to Stage 2 F2RER (2,881) 2,881 - -
Transfer from Stage 5%1 BRRERZ
1 to Stage 3 IEER (1,162) - 1,162 -
Allowance for credit losses BRERZEEEE
recognised 15 11,402 62,303 123,727 197,432
Written-off of loan s e W B X
receivables - - (15,775) (15,775)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EfF
+=-A=+—H 29,380 65,184 109,114 203,678
KEREREBRAT
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(c) Loan receivables (Continued)

Movements in allowance for credit losses on

loan receivables: (Continued)

51.

SRIAE)
MMEBEEEBRRBEE)

FE R R BEFE(E

(c) EWEN(E)
BRRERZFEBREEZD

V=

(48

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z-NF+ZA=+—-HLEFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1RER L2 EIRER Fah
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-1%F
—A—H 17,547 - - 17,547
Allowance for credit losses CHERZEEERE
recognised BiE 4,474 - - 4,474
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE-1E
+=ZB=+-H 22,021 — - 22,021

The Group writes off a loan receivable in
whole or in part when its credit quality
is classified as non-performing. The
amounts written-off during the year ended
31 December 2020 was HK$15,775,000
(2019: Nil). The Group still seeks to recover
amounts it is legally owned in full, but which
have been written-off due to no reasonable

expectation of full recovery.

Revenue from the top five money lending
customers constituted 27.70% (2019:
35.60%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2020. They
accounted for 72.46% (2019: 60.65%) of
the loan receivables (before accumulated
allowance for credit losses) as at 31

December 2020.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(@)

Other receivables

Other receivables arise from transactions
outside the principal activities of the Group
and mainly represent cash advances to
various construction contractors and
services providers in relation to the
development of the Subject Land prior
to the acquisition of the operating rights
in respect of the Subject Land. Other
receivables also include the loan to a third
party of HK$23,763,000 for a term of 3
years commencing on 22 May 2020 and the
related interest receivable of HK$123,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020. (2019:
loan to a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company of HK$27,909,000 for a term
of 24 months commencing from 24 August
2018 and the related interest receivable of
HK$891,000). The key terms of the loan to a
director are disclosed in note 49.

The Group performs impairment assessment
on other receivables of HK$71,654,000,
excluding the loan to a third party of
HK$23,763,000 and the related interest
receivable of HK$123,000 (2019:
HK$64,540,000, excluding the loan to a
director of HK$27,909,000 and the related
interest receivable of HK$891,000) at the
end of the reporting period by assessing
whether a receivable becomes a credit-
impaired financial asset. In assessing
whether a receivable becomes a credit-
impaired financial asset, the Group has
taken observable data into account, such as
the current financial conditions of a debtor,
the probability of default of a debtor, and
the aging of a cash advance. The impairment
assessment was performed by the directors
of the Company. No independent valuer
was engaged for preparing an ECL
valuation. Having performed the impairment
assessment, no allowance for credit losses
on other receivables was recognised in
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$3,818,000).
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51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

(@)

Other receivables (Continued)

For impairment assessment on the loan to a
third party of HK$23,763,000 and the related
interest receivable of HK$123,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: the
loan to a director of HK$27,909,000 and the
related interest receivable of HK$891,000),
the Group performs impairment assessment
by applying the HKFRS 9 general approach
on the basis of allowance of 12-month ECL
for item without SICR and lifetime ECL for
item with SICR with reference to the ECL
valuation prepared by Grant Sherman. The
loan to a third party was not classified
to have a SICR at 31 December 2020.
The loan to a director was not classified
to have a SICR at 31 December 2019.
The ECL of the loan to a director and the
loan to a third party are calculated as the
product of the three factors: gross credit
exposure, probability of default over 12
months following the reporting date, and
recovery rate in case of insolvency in Hong
Kong. The probability of default is derived
through the application of a linear multiple
regression model, which estimates the
statistical relationship between a dependent
variable and multiple independent variables.
To reflect any current or forward-looking
information affecting the director’s ability
to settle the receivable, certain adjustments
have been made in the process of deriving
the appropriate probability of default. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Having
performed the impairment assessment, an
allowance for credit losses on the loan to a
third party of HK$723,000 was recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
the loan to a director of HK$24,000 was
recognised).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests
with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring liquidity and financial position,
maintaining appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments, limiting liquidity risk exposure
by investing only in securities listed on major
stock exchanges, and ensuring acceptable and
appropriate finance in place, or believed to be
available before committing investment projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
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FeMBGwERME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE
51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51, €T R (#&
Financial risk management objectives and HERAREEEERBR ()
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (&)
Weighted
average Within Total Total
effective 1 year or 1to 5 Over5  undiscounted carrying
rate on demand years years cash flows amounts
MERH 15/ AHR
ik FREX 125% 5ENE BRshE FEAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr FAT FAr FA7 FA7T
2020 33
Non-derivative financial TESRER
liabilities
Trade payables BAEMZE - 7,961 - - 7,961 7,961
Deposits received, accruals and ~ BUiRE - EFBRREM
other payables ENFE - 101,536 62,583 - 164,119 164,119
Secured notes ERZE 13.44% 273,863 - - 273,863 250,000
Other borrowings B 7.93% 254,315 - - 254,315 254,315
Bank borrowings BTHES 1.69% 162,465 - - 162,465 162,465
Amount due to an associate EH-B¥EAT0E - 1,966 - - 1,966 1,966
Amount due to a director Eff-2EEHE - 1,300 - - 1,300 1,300
Lease liabilities HESE 4.89% 15,917 62,747 605,185 683,849 285,165
Total @ 819,323 125,330 605,185 1,549,838 1,127,291
2019 “E-NE
Non-derivative financial FTEERER
liabilities
Trade payables BARNANE - 5,510 - - 5,510 5,510
Deposits received, accruals and ~ BHES - Bt BAREM
other payables Efi5E - 98,548 53,561 - 152,109 152,109
Secured notes EREE 8.09% 315,715 - - 315,715 299,841
Other borrowings gz 8.00% 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000
Bank borrowings BOER 2.72% 155,720 - - 155,720 155,720
Amount due to an associate Eft-BBeNA0E - 1,967 - - 1,967 1,967
Lease liabilities fgsE 4.90% 12,365 50,552 582,797 645,714 259,251
Total @t 789,825 104,113 582,797 1,476,735 1,074,398
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings and the unsecured other
borrowing classified under "Other borrowings"
with a repayable on demand clause are included
in the “within 1 year or on demand” time band-
in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December
2020, the aggregate undiscounted cash flows
of the bank borrowings and unsecured other
borrowing amounted to HK$175,930,000 and
HK$206,488,000 (2019: HK$181,168,000 and
HK$207,847,000) respectively, which contained
a repayable on demand clause. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that
the counterparties will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings and
unsecured other borrowing will be repaid after
the end of the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set out
in the table below:

Maturity Analysis — Borrowings with a repayable
on demand clause based on scheduled
repayments
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Within Total Total
1 year or 1t05 Over undiscounted carrying
on demand years 5years  cash flows amounts
15/ AR
FEER 1258 56F  #RERE REAR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEx FEn TEx TET FiEx
2020 g o 3:3
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{T£¢REE
Bank borrowings RITHER 56,146 30,514 89,270 175,930 162,465
Other borrowings Hithfg 206,488 - - 206,488 200,000
262,634 30,514 89,270 382,418 362,465
2019 “E-0F
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{T£¢REE
Bank borrowings RITER 47,329 33,885 99,954 181,168 155,720
Other borrowings HinfER 207,847 - - 207,847 200,000
255,176 33,885 99,954 389,015 355,720
KIEREEIREFRAR
“ECEREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —E_—FF+_H=+—HIFE

51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

G))

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. Observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available;
and

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Board has appointed the Finance and
Accounting Department, which is headed up
by an executive director, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent third party qualified
valuers to perform valuation. The Finance
and Accounting Department works closely
with the independent third party qualified
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
executive director who is responsible
for the Group’s finance and accounting
function reports the Finance and Accounting
Department’s findings to the Board twice a
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. €M T A(#

ERMITRAZAFENEAE)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

BEEMEREL L FEISEZEIEAE
HEERBMEZ 2 FEGE)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ZR(E

(a) &F

Fair value measurements catagorised into

AFEHRIE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F18 28 38 st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
RSRF C-AF CESRE CE-AF ESRE CE-F SESEE CRNF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Fér  TEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  TEn  TEr TEn
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ RAFEHAERR
LEREE
— listed equity securitiesin - BB LHRAES
Hong Kong 405772 283,712 - - 4,623 7103 410,395 240,815
Valuation
Fair value at  Fair value at techniques
31 December 31 December Fair value and key
2020 2019 hierarchy inputs
R-ZBZ2F RIZ-NE
t=A T8
=+-H =t-H RERTR
ZDYHE ZBFE  DTESSR TERAME
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FiEr
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEFABREZ
TREE
— listed equity securities in - BBLMREES 405,772 233,712 Level 1 Quoted
Hong Kong %14 closing prices
in active
markets
RE BT I%
£ A Gl
— listed equity securities in - BRLTREES 4,623 7,103 Level 3 Significant
Hong Kong %34  unobservable
inputs
BEATTER
WARE
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continueqd)

During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, there were no transfers between
Levels 1 and 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

On 28 October 2019, the Group
transferred 1,483,728,240 shares of China
Healthwise with an aggregate fair value of
HK$53,414,000 out of Level 1 as the Group
has applied equity method to account for its
investment in China Healthwise.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as
of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that cause the transfer.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. €I R (&
Fair value measurements of financial EMITEC2AFEFEE)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BEREMEEUL FEITEZLEETL
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a BEEREEZL-FE(E)
recurring basis (Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value (b) BREIRLFEGTEZER
measurements
Relation of
significant
unobservable
Valuation Significant inputs to
technique unobservable input fair value
EXTUEER
BXTUEER BAER
HER BAYE NVEZER
At 31 December 2020 R-E-%%
t-B=t+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BROVEABRRZ Market approach Holding return basis  The holding return basis
THEE mEE of negative 56.29% s positively correlated
BREREEE 56.29% to the fair value
— listed equity securities in - BALMRAES measurement
Hong Kong BREREESR
DVEGERER

Price-to-earning The price-to-earning
basis of 13.09 basis is positively
TEEE1309  correlated to the fair

value measurement
mEEEEATE
STEMEL

Discount rate of 72.36% The discount rate is
BER % 72.36% negatively correlated

to the fair value

measurement

BRERATE

SrERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ = FE_—FF+ —H=1+—HIFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. T R(#&
Fair value measurements of financial SWMIAZATENEE)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BEREMEELLN FEITEZFEFL
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a BEEREEZ 2 FE(E)
recurring basis (Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value (b) BERFEIRLFEGTEZEF (E)
measurements (Continued)
Relation of
significant
unobservable
Valuation Significant inputs to
technique unobservable input fair value
EXTUEE
EXTIEE BARER
fhER BAYE NYEZBHE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE
+t-A=1-H
Financial assets at FVTPL RATESABRRL Market approach Holding return basis  The holding return basis
SHEE st of negative 42.44% is positively correlated
BREREEE 42.44% to the fair value
— listed equity securities in - BELMRAES measurement
Hong Kong BREGEEEATE
SHEREL

Price-to-earning The price-to-earning
basis of 48.12 basis is positively
TREE412  correlated to the fair

value measurement
mRERENYE
STEMEL

Discount rate of 74.29% The discount rate is
BRRZET74.29% negatively correlated

to the fair value

measurement

BRERATE

HE 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —F _FH#{ _H=+—HIFFEZ

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

(b)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

One of the Group’s listed equity securities
in Hong Kong classified as financial assets
at FVTPL has been suspended from trading
since 27 November 2017 and no unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets are
available. The fair value of the suspended
listed equity securities in Hong Kong at 31
December 2020 and 2019 was measured
by Graval using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs and hence
was classified under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The movements during the year in
the balance of this Level 3 fair value
measurement are as follows:

51.

SRIAE)
ERMITRAZAFENEAE)

BEEMEREL L FEISEZEIEAE

BEEREEZ X FE(E)
(b) BERFEIRLFEGTEZEF (E)

AEBHEHP-E/EARAFE
ANEBBRZEREEZEBLTR
AEHH-E—tF+—BA=++
ARREEFES  THERTHEIE
AAREHARRKRE - N=ZTFF
F—ZE-NE+ZA=+—H &
FEEEEBLTRAESLQATE
DNEEFERER T TEER AZE
ZEERME  BEHoELASE
SHATFESER -

FEEFEIRATENBERZE
BOT :

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2019 R=-ZE-hF—-—HA—H 6,211
Gain arising on change in fair value of RATFEFABERZEMEEZ

financial assets at FVTPL NPEEBEE WS 892

At 31 December 2019 and R-E-hF+=ZB=+—H

at 1 January 2020 r—EZZEHE—-H—H 7,103
Loss arising on change in fair value of RATFEFABERZEMEEZ

financial assets at FVTPL NEERBEEZEHE (2,480)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZFB-FF+=-A=+—H 4,623
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE_FF 1+ _F=+—HILFE

51.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values at
31 December 2020 and 2019, except for the
secured notes, which had a carrying amount
and fair value of HK$250,000,000 (31 December
2019: HK$299,841,000) and HK$258,868,000
(31 December 2019: HK$309,473,000) at 31
December 2020 respectively.

The fair value measurement of the secured notes
was classified under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of the secured notes
was determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant
input being the discount rate that reflects the
return required by the noteholders for investing in
similar financial instruments.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z = FE-FF+ -F=+—HIFE&E

52. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

52.

METHELCEBYHEK

TRALAEBRETHIEE2EE

BE(EERERFERESEE) - MEE

EJF&F’EEEFEZiﬁ%uwij*ﬂzlﬂﬁhm
ECRIAKERETEEGRERERER
/\*EgﬁﬂﬁléibIﬂﬁlllbi %

Amount Amount Amount

Interest Bank Other Lease Secured due to an dugtoa dueto
payable  borowings  borrowings liabilties notes associate  shareholder  adirector Total
E-B BH-% Ef-%
EfME  BORY  HbER 0 HEBE  BREE BENWRE 0 RRE EE it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKk§'000
1 fr fér fr &7 fr fér fér fér
At1 January 2019 HZE-7E-5-8 981 157201 200,000 264,967 299,611 - - 50,000 981,652
Non-cash changes #5489
Interest expenses on bank RiTEAMAERS
borrowings 430 - - - - - - - 431
Inerest expenses on other HEamAaRs
borrowings 16,000 - - - - - - - 16,000
Inerest expenses on secured notes~ EREBHAEHR 24001 - - - 20 - - - 24931
Inerest expenses on lease iabites ~ BEEBHHERER 294 - - - - - - - .1
Foreign exchange translafion HELS (19 - - (.83 - - - - (5802
New leases entered BiuE - - - 51 - - - - 51
Cash flows Hehe
Inlow from fnancing actiies BRETHAA - 81,766 - - - 1967 720 45,000 135,03
Qutlow from financing activites BREFETL (56,195) (63247 - (10) - - (7,200, 000 1)
At 31 December 2019 W51
TZAz1-8 1098 185,720 200,000 259,251 299,841 1,967 - - Q1107

X18 *E‘é?ﬁ ERRAH
—ECREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 =FE=ZFF{+ -H=+—HIFE

52. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 52. RIEEEIELE 2EBYHKRE)
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Continued)

Amount Amount Amount

Interest Bank Other Lease  Secured  duetoan  duetoa due to
payable borrowings  borrowings  liabilities notes  associate shareholder a director Total

Ef-8  Bf-%  Ef-%
ERHE  RORR  EBER  BEBE  BARE BEMEME  RRME EENE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSU000
FAT FAL AT 741 AL FAr AT FAL AT

At 1 January 2020 W-E-EE-A-H 10,928 155,720 200,000 259,251 209,841 1,967 - - 921,707
Non-cash changes E3 LY
Interest expenses onbank ~ ETERNFSHR

borrowings 3,528 - - - - - - - 3,528
Interest expenses on other ~ ERERNASHT

borrowings 18,357 - - - - - - - 18,357
Interest expenses onsecured ~ ERZENTERR

notes 27,946 - - - 159 - - - 28,105
Interest expenses onlease ~ ERENTERER

liabilities 12,867 - - - - - - - 12,867
Foreign exchange translation NS 141 - - 17,158 - - - - 17,299
Interest expense on lease itAEfEER RE

liabilties charged to BEMAEEL

operator of the Club 13 - - - - - - - 13
Issue of secured notes BEATE - - - - 200000 - - - 200000
Set off of secured notes BBEREE - - - - (270,000) - - - (270,000)
New leases entered B IZHRE - - - 10,747 - - - - 10,747
Cash flows Réne
Inflow from financing activites ~ EHEEBHA - 82,214 54,315 - - - - 2500 139,029
Outon from fnancing acties EREEERS M3 (1549 - ) (B0 ) S0 (1896

At 31 December 2020 WZECEE
tZA=1-H 12,558 162,465 254,315 285,165 250,000 1,966

1,300 967,769
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56.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=Z&—

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in notes 19 and 38 in
the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered the following major non-cash
transactions during the year ended 31 December
2020:

(@ The Group entered into a new lease
agreement for a staff dormitory. The
new lease agreement is entered into for
a fixed term of 4.17 years. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised
HK$10,747,000 of right-of-use asset and
HK$10,747,000 of lease liability.

(b) On 29 September 2020, the Company
issued the 13% guaranteed secured notes
due 2021 in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$270,000,000 and the proceeds was
fully set off against the outstanding principal
amount of the 2017 Notes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

IMPACT OF THE NOVEL CORONAVIRUS
ON THE GROUP’S BUSINESS
OPERATIONS

The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent
quarantine measures as well as the travel
restrictions imposed by many countries have
had negative impacts to the global economy,
business environment and directly and indirectly
affect the Group’s operations. The financial
positions and performance of the Group were
affected in different aspects, including a
significant increase in allowance for credit losses
on the Group’s trade and loan receivables and
an increase in loss arising on change in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties as
disclosed in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 7 to 45 of the annual report.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2021.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEMBGEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ —FE—FF+-H=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=t+-BL#EE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEf ZE-Af ZE-N\E& ZE—+tF ZE-RE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results E |
Revenue & 221,757 198,796 188,037 53,989 161,042
Loss from operations KepE (122,294) (161,491) (556,540) (181,042) (201,278)
Finance costs BEER (54,278)  (48,891) (43,276) (23,627) (9,529)
Loss before taxation BB AR (176,572)  (210,382)  (599,816)  (204,669) (210,807
Income tax credit/ Frig®ige,/ (BxX)
(expense) 35,547 (1,724) 11,001 9,052 2,903
Loss for the year from REBELEER
continuing operations REEFE (141,025)  (212,106)  (588,725)  (195,617)  (207,904)
Loss for the year from RECHRELEER
discontinued operation ZAREEEE - - - (3) -
Loss for the year REERHE (141,025)  (212,106)  (588,725)  (195,620)  (207,904)
Dividends 3= - - - - -
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-8
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—B-%RF ZBR-AF ZE-N\F St ZF-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEHAE 3,840,915 3,834,656 3,971,193 5,223,905 4,241,538
Total liabilities £ EME (1,478,258)  (1,416,200) (1,318,115) (1,957,600)  (992,399)
Net assets BEEFE 2,362,657 2,418,456 2,653,078 3,266,305 3,249,139
Capital and reserves BARG#E
Equity attributable to ENGIE 2SN
owners of the Company bR 2,368,661 2,423,931 2,655,704 3,266,389 3,249,145
Non-controlling interest FERER (6,004) (5,475) (2,626) (84) (6)
2,362,657 2,418,456 2,653,078 3,266,305 3,249,139
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